City of Muscatine, Iowa

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009



CITY OF MUSCATINE, 10WA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SUBMITTED BY:
FINANCE DEPARTMENT
CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA

Nancy A. Lueck
Finance Director



COVER:

Muscatine City Hall

PHOTO BY:

Dan Beenen



CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Tabte of Contents...

Letter of Transmlttal .
GFOA Certificate of Achlevcment

City Organizational Chart
List of Principal Officials ..ot

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report... rretreeerienaaens
Management’s Discussion and Analysls
Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

STALETNENE OF TNEE A SBEEE 1ottt it ieeie et ettt e e e ts e et s st e e e s nt e e e e e e ee e e e eeeeeee e v e e eieessannms
AL ETNIETIL OF ACTEVITIES 1. oottt eee e et ee e e ve e st e e ess st b st ete e e eas e e oo

Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds ..
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change% in
Fund Balances — Governmental Funds...

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues Expcndrtures and Changcs in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities .

Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Funds ..

Statement of Cash Flows ~ Proprietary Funds...

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities — Fldumary Funds

Notes to the Financial Statements...
Required Supplementary lnformation:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — Budgetary Basis —
Budgeted Governmental and Proprietary Funds .,

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan — Schedule of Fundmg Progre%%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information ..
Combining Fund Statements and Schedules:

Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Governmental Funds ............coovviienivei oo

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Non-Major Governmentat Funds...
Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Special Revenue Funds...

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes i Fund Balances -

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds ..

Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Cap:tal PI’OJCC{S Funds ..............................
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Non-Major Capital Projects FUNAS........coooviiiioi e e e

10
11
2

13
15

29

30

31

32

o 33
. v 34
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Ch'mges in Net Assets - Proprlemry Funds
. 36

35

37
38

e 67
v 69
. 70

71

72
73

75
77

79



Combining Batance Sheet — Non-Major Permanent Funds ..

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expendltures and Ch'tnges in Fund Balant,e% -

Non-Major Permanent Funds ...

Combining Statement of Net Assets - Non Major Entcrpnse Fund%

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenscq and Changes in Net Assets -
Non-Major Enterprise Funds...
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Non M&JOI’ Enterprtse Fund%
Combining Statement of Net Assets — Internal Service Funds ..
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets - Internal Service Funds...
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Intemal Serv1ce Funds

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities — Agency Fund% ..........................
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds...........ccc..........

Statement of Net Assets — Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency
Component Unit .. .

Statement of Revenun.s Expen%e% and Changes in Net Assets - Muscatme
County Solid Waste Agency Component Uni. ..

Statement of Cash Flows — Muscatine County Sohd W’lste Agency
CompPONEH UMNIE .c.ooiio et et en et e rreer e et a et ae b ressassrsassrarares

STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited)

Statistical Section Table of CONENS. ..ot e
Net Assets by Component. ... crvee v SChedule
Changes in Net Assets .. ST OO U OUROUURUIPIPRORPRR: T 1 ~« (111
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds cereetie e e ene e SCHEAULE
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmentai Func['; Schedule
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source ..oooveoiveeivvevne e Schedule
Taxable Value and Estimated Actual Value of Property..........c..co........... Schedule
Property Tax Rates — Direct and Overtapping Governments .......ccvovve.o.. Schedule
Principat Property Tax Payers ...t SChedule
Property Tax Levies and Collections....................vnnene. Schedule
Ratios of Quistanding Debt by Type ... retrreee e e renneenn. SCHEAUE
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstandmg i e SChedule
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Actlvltles Debt ceereemreeeeeeeee SChedule
Legal Debt Margin Information... rrern et SCHEAUEE
Demographic and Economic Statistics ettt nne e seesrn e cnnen e nneenns SCHECEE
Principal EMpPIOyers. ...t erv s s er s Scheduie
Fult-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function .............. Schedule
Operating Indicators by Function/Department ..........c..coooeveviceevrnenenne.n. Schedule
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Department .............cccccceeeevveveenennane. Schedule

11
12
13
14
5
16
17
18

81

82
83

35
87
89

90
ot
92
93

94

95

96

97

98

99
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
I15
L6
117



COMPLIANCE SECTION

Information Provided to Comply with Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133:
Report on Internat Control over Financial Reporting and on Comptiance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards ................. U UUUTOURURUPPRRRRS I I -
Report on Compliance with Requ1rements Appl:cabte to 1t~;
Major Program and on Internal Controt over Compllance

in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133... i e sresese e seessiansanasiesmsnnns 1 20
Schedule of Expenditures of Federat Awardw v et naveressnssenens §22
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federa] Awards .................................................. 124
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings.... O PR P O ORURPUROTORTPUUPPRORORIS B
Schedute of Findings and Questioned COStS .......cooveriviviiiiviiie it ereenaeeenn. 1 26
Corrective ACION PN ...ttt ettt ee e et et es et nanas 130






City Hall, 215 Sycamore St
Muscarine, 1A 52761-3840
{563) 264-155¢ Voice/TT

. |
MUSCATINE Fax (563) 264-0750

FINANCE & RECORDS

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council
DATE: November 20, 2009

Towa law requires that all cities publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principies (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generalty accepted auditing standards by a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the
comprehensive annuat financial report of the City of Muscatine for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completcness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controt that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controt should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

McGtladrey & Pulten, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified (“clean™) opinion
on the City of Muscatine's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2009. The
independent auditor’s report is focated at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and anatysis (MD&A) immediately foliows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with
it.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but aiso on the City’s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are included in the
compliance scction of this report.

Profile of the Government

The City of Muscatine was incorporated in 1851 by a special act of the lowa State Legislature
and is located on the Mississippi River, which is the eastern boundary of the state of lowa. The
City is located 160 miles east of Des Moines, 200 miles west of Chicago, and is the county seat of
Muscatine County. The City occupies a fand area of approximately 17 square miles and serves a
population of 22,697 people. The City is empowered to levy a tax on alt property tocated within
its boundaries.

“I reinereber Muscatine (o its sunsets. [ have never seen any
on either side of the ocean that equaled them” — Mark Tiwain
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The City operates under the mayor-council form of government and has a City Administrator.
Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a mayor and seven councit members. The
city council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances and resolutions, adopting
the budget, appointing committees, and hiring both the City Administrator and the City Attomey.
The City Administrator is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the city
council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for appointing the heads
of various departments. The council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve
four-year staggered terms and the mayor is elected to serve a two-year term. Five of the council
members are elected by district. The mayor and the two remaining council members are elected at
large.

The City provides a full range of services including police and fire protection; roadway
maintenance; water potlution control; solid waste management; recreational and cultural activities
and facilities; and a general aviation airport.

The City Councit is required to hold a public hearing on and adopt a budget for each fiscal year
no later than March 15" of the preceding year. The annual budget serves as the foundation for
the City’s financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by function, fund and
department. The legal level of control is at the function level. The budget may be amended by
resolution of City Council following a required public hearing.

The City’s government-wide financial statements include two discretely presented component
units. These component units are those entities for which the City is considered to be financially
accountable. These entities are the Muscatine County Solid Waste Management Agency
(Agency) and Muscatine Power and Water (MP&W). The Agency is comprised of eight
governmental entities in Muscatine County and based on the City of Muscatine population, the
City accounts for 56% of the board’s voting authority. The City Council also approves the
Agency’s budget. sets its rate and approves any debt issuance. MP&W is a municipal utility
which provides water, electric and communications services within the City of Muscatine and in
other areas within Muscatine County. MP&W’s governing board is appeinted by the Mayor and
appreved by Council. MP&W provides a financial benefit to the City by providing electricity for
City buildings and all street and traffic lighting free of charge to the City. These entities are
reported in separate columms in the government-wide statements to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the City.

Local Economy

The City of Muscatine has a history of business and industrial development equal to cities of
much larger size, Muscatine is the corporate headquarters of HNI Corporation, makers of office
furniture. Other major employers located in the Muscatine area include H.J. Heinz LP, food
processing: Bandag, makers of pre-cured tire tread rubber, Monsanto Company, herbicides and
plastics; Raymond-Muscatine, front-end loaders, etc.; Muscatine Foods Corporation, com
distitlates and feed; Stanley Consultants Inc., consulting engineers and architects; and Musco
Sports Lighting LLC, sports lighting systems. The presence of many diverse companies has
provided the Muscatine economy with economic stability and employment security for many
years. Unemployment rates over the past ten years ranged from 2.7% to 4.5% with the rate for
2008 at 4.3%. The unemployment rate for the first six months of 2009, however, increased to
7.9% due to the local effect from the national economy. Muscatine Power and Water, the City of
Muscatine’s municipal light, water and communications utility, operates the largest municipal
power plant in the State of lowa. This plant provides for abundant supplies of low cost
electricity. The City’s Water Poltution Control Plant has undergone renovation over the years



and currently has the capacity to triple the volume of wastewater it treats with only marginal
increases in operating expenditures. The City operates a general aviation airport and has
exceltent railroad service provided by the Canadian Pacific Raitroad.

All of these elements provide an excellent atmosphere for continued economic stability and
growth.

Long-term Financial Planning

On May 10, 1994, the citizens of Muscatine first voted to impiement a 1% local option sales tax
for the purpose of funding storm and sanitary sewer renovation and extension projects. The tax
was imposed effective July 1, 1994, for a five-year period. On August 4, 1998, Muscatine voters
overwhelmingly approved the renewal of the 1% local optien sales tax for another five years to
continue funding sewer projects. In January 2003, voters approved using up to 10% of the local
option tax for the Pearl of the Mississippi Project effective Aprit 30, 2003, On January 27. 2004,
voters again approved extending the locat option sales tax for an additional five years with the
proceeds continued to be allocated 90% for sewer projects and the remaining 10% for the Pear! of
the Mississippi Project. The (% local opiion sales tax generated over $2.7 mitlion in the most
recent year.

In 2008 the City held an election for the continuation of this tax. The ballot question approved by
voters witl extend this tax for an additional ten years {though June 30, 2019) with up to 20% of
the proceeds to be used for the City’s Pavement Management Program with the remaining 80% to
be used for storm and sanitary sewer improvement projects. Future sewer projects have been
identified inctuding those required by an Order for Compliance on Censent issued by the United
States Environmental Protection Agency. Provisions of the Order require the City to complete
separation of the combined sewers in the Hershey Avenue area by December 31, 2011, and
sepazation for the remaining combined portions of the sewer system including the West Hill area
by December 31, 2024. The election to continue the locat option tax was held on August 12, 2008
and again it received strong support by voters.

The City began a comprehensive Pavement Management Program in 2007, Allocations of over $1
miltion in calendar year 2007 and $2 million each in 2008 and 2009 will complete the initial
upgrade of streets throughout the City. These initial costs will be funded with general obligation
bond proceeds. Annual allocations to maintain all streets at this higher level will begin in 2010
with funding from the 209% allocation of tocal option sales tax funds.

The City continues to complete improvements at the municipal airport as part of the long range
plan for this facility. Construction of a parallel taxiway for the crosswind runway was completed
in 2008/2009. Future projects in the plan include equipment purchases and construction of a
hangar access road.

In recent years the City of Muscatine was required to address funding reductions to the City’s
General Fund as a result of reductions in funding from the State of Iowa which began in
2003/2004 and continued in 2004/2005. The state etiminated approximately $360,000 in annuat
funding to the City of Muscatine beginning in 2003/2004 and an additional $70,000 annually was
etiminated in 2004/2005.



In response to these factors, the City made a number of significant budget changes which
included personnel reductions, funding transfers and consolidation of services. Full-time
equivalent employees of the City are fifteen (15) less than what was included in the original
2003/2004 budget. As directed by Council these reductions were done, when possible, by not
filling a number of positions as they became vacant either by retirement or attrition. Nine (9) of
these positions were eliminated when the City of Muscatine and Muscatine County combined
their emergency dispatch services effective in September, 2004. City dispatcher positions were
transferred to Muscatine County positions and the City paid 45% and the County paid 55% of the
operating costs of the combined system through the 2008/2009 year. This change resulted in an
annual savings of $140,000 in City General Fund expenditures. Beginning in 2009/2010 costs of
this combined system will be funded 100% from a County-wide tax levy. This will result in a
savings to the City of over $400,000 annually. Both entities have and will continue to benefit
both financially and operationally by combining their dispatch services.

Relevant Financial Policies

The City's budget policies provide that the City’s unreserved Generai Fund balance be at least
10% of budgeted General Fund expenditures. The unreserved General Fund balance at June 30,
2009 was $1,642,606 which was 11.2% of General Fund expenditures. This unreserved balance
was $91,204 less than the prior year unreserved balance; however, this ending balance was
$50,822 higher than the budget estimate. This increase is attributed to strong General Fund
revenues and most Generat Fund departments operating under their budget allocations.

For the 2009/2010 budget taxable property values increased by 3.8% which will provide
$215,203 more in tax funding from the general fund tax levy which has been at the maximum rate
of $8.10 per $1,000 of valuation in all recent years. There was growth in all categories of property
including residential, commercial and industrial property.

As noted in the previous section, beginning in 2009/2010 the total cost for the City-County joint
dispatch operation (MUSCOM) will be funded 100% from a County-wide tax levy. This will
replace the previous 45% City and 55% County funding arrangement and will result in a savings
to the City of over $400,000 annually. This change contributed to an overall 3.7% decrease to the
City tax rate for 2009/2010. The City’s Employee Benefit tax levy was reduced, the City’s
Emergency Management tax levy was eliminated and there was relief to the City’s General Fund.

The City continues to claim less than the full amount of incremental taxes available from the
Downtown and Southend Tax Increment Financing (TIF) areas. As growth in valuations in these
areas has exceeded original projections, balances have been accumulating in these funds in
advance of the debt schedules in effect. Not claiming the full amount allows a portion of the
increased values in each area to go back onto regular taxable valuations of all taxing entities
affected. Approximately $300,000 of incremental taxes were not claimed by the City for
2008/2009 and this amount increased to $497.600 for 2009/2010. This resuits in increased regular
taxable values and increased taxes generated by the $8.10 General Fund levy.

The effects of the changes implemented by City Council in previous years in reducing the
General Fund workforce, combining services with Muscatine County, and claiming less than the
full amount of incremental taxes will continue to be realized in future years. These changes have
placed the City in a more favorable position to address funding requirements for the provision of
General Fund services in future years.



Major Initiatives

The City continues to strive to make significant capital improvements to the City's infrastructure
and facilities. Major budget initiatives for 2009/2010 include (1} the completion of the initial
upgrade of the City’s streets as part of the comprehensive Pavement Management Program; (2)
construction on several major sewer projects to be funded from locat option sales tax revenues;
and (3) continued construction on the comprehensive facilities improvements at the Water
Pollution Control Plant (WPCP). The WPCP improvements are estimated at $18.5 million and are
scheduled to be completed by the fall of 2011. These improvements will address plant and
process requirements for the next 20-25 years,

In the spring and summer of 2008 there were two Mississippi River flood events which affected
the Muscatine riverfront and a portion of the downtown area. On July 21, 2008 a windstorm hit
the City downing numerous trees on City streets as well as those in various Park facilities and the
Greenwood Cemetery. The events required a significant amount of staff and equipment time. The
windstorm cleanup has been compieted and the final repairs from the flood are scheduled (o be
completed in 2009/2010. Assistance from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
is expected to fund most of the costs from both the flood and windstorm events.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Muscatine for its comprehensive annual financial
report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was the 15th consecutive year that
the City has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement,
the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both
GAAP and applicable egal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only, We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City has also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for
its annual budget document for fiscal year 2009/2010. In order to qualify for the Distinguished
Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget document was judged to be proficient in several
categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a
communications device. The award for the 2009/2010 budget was the 25th consecutive year that
the City of Muscatine has received the GFOA’s Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation.
The GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award is good for a period of one year. The
City of Muscatine plans (o submit its budget document for the 2010/2011 fiscal year to the GFOA
to again be considered for this award.



Int regard to the preparation of this report and the accounting activity throughout the year in the
Finance Department, we would like to express our appreciation to all members of this department
for their assistance and contributions for this endeavor. Also appreciated is the continued interest
and support by the members of the City Council in planning and conducting the financial
operations of the city in a responsibic and prudent manner in these times of limited resources and
ever-increasing demands, Lastly, we would extend our appreciation to McGladrey & Pullen,
Certified Public Accountants, for their assistance and suggestions in regard to the preparation of
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Respectfully submitted,
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Randall E. Hill Nancy A. Lueck
Interim City Administrator Finance Director
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Muscatine, lowa
Muscatine, lowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatian
of the City of Muscatine, lowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
City of Muscatine, lowa's management. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based
on our audit, We did not audit the financia! statements of the discretely presented component unit, Muscatine Power
& Water, which represents 98.6 percent, 100.3 percent and 98.9 percent, respectively, of the assets, net assets and
revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units, Those financia! statements were audited by other
auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included
for Muscatine Power & Water, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptralier Genera! of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financia! statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Gity of Muscatine, lowa, as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and
the cash flows where applicable thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As explained in Note 11 to the basic financial statements, the City changed its method of accounting for other post
employment benefits.

McGtadrey & Pullen, LLP is 2 member firm of RSM Intemational -
an affliation of separate and independent legal entities.
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in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 19, 2009, on
our consideration of the City of Muscatine, lowa's intemal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
cempliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reperting or an compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 15 through 28, budgetary comparison schedule of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance budget to GAAP reconciliation and schedule of funding progress for other
postemployment benefit plan on pages 67 through 69 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generatly accepted in the United States of America. We
and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpase of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Muscatine, lowa’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and other schedules, listed in the table of contents as supplementary information, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as raquired by U.S. Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations, and is
net a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our apinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
refation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as fisted in the table of contents, are presented for purposes
of additicnal anaiysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This information has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we

express no opinion on them.
/%M / /xé&..(_/ Lo~

Davenport, lowa
November 19, 2009

14



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Muscatine, we present this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This narrative is intended to supplement the
letter of transmittal and the financial statements and should provide the reader with contextual
information that will advance our goal of full disclosure.

Financial Highlights

¢ The assets of the City of Muscatine exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $125,204,889 (net assets). Of this amount, $14,435,883 (unrestricted net assets) may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

¢ The City’s total net assets increased by $1.402,447 during the year. This most significant
increase 18 in the Walter Pollution Control Fund where net assets increased by $2,846,522.

¢ At the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $10,151,770, a decrease of $4,341,213 in comparison with the prior year. Of the
ending balance, approximatety 76% ($7.682,992) was unreserved and is available for spending
within the statutory guidelines pertaining o each fund at the City’s discretion. The overall
decrease in governmental fund balances is primarily in the capital projects funds. Capital project
expenditures during the year included those for projects funded from prior year bond proceeds as
well as costs incurred for projects to be funded from bonds to be issued in 2009/2010.

¢ At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s unreserved fund balance for the general fund was
$1,641,489, or 11.29% of total general fund expenditures.

» The City’s total debt increased by $1,057,585 (6.1%) during the current fiscal year. This increase
was due to the issuance of $3,598,195 in revenue bonds for the Water Pollution Control Plant
comprehensive facilities improvement project.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysts are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The govermment-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may

serve as a useful mdicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
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rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of refated cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will onty result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
earned but unysed vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principatly
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (govermmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City inctude Public Safety, Public Works, Health and Social
Service, Culture and Recreation, Community and Economic Development, General Government, and
Interest and Fees on Long-term Debt. The business-type activities of the City include Water Pollution
Control, Refuse Collection, Transfer Station, Airport, Parking, Transit, Golf Course, Boat Harbor,
Marina, Ambulance, and Public Housing.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also two legally separate entities, Muscatine Power and Water and the Muscatine
County Solid Waste Agency for which the City of Muscatine is considered to be financially accountable.
Financial information for these two component units is reported separately from the financial information
presented for the primary government itself. Muscatine Power and Water issues separate {inancial
statements. The Solid Waste Agency does not issue separate financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 29-30 of this report.

Fund financial statements, A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and
tocal governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requiremnents. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are wsed to account for essentialty the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. This information is useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements and is
typically the basis that is used for developing the next annual budget.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govermmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

The City has five major governmental funds: the General Fund, the Employee Benefits Fund, the Local
Option Sales Tax Fund, the Debt Service Fund and the Street and Sidewalk Improvements Fund.
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for these major funds. Data from all
other non-major governmental {unds are combined inte a single aggregated presentation and are
referenced under a single column as Other Governmental Funds. Individual fund data for each of the non-
major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 31-33 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. They are the enterprise
funds and the internal service funds. While both types of proprietary funds are run in a business-like
manner, enterprise funds are included in business-type activities since they serve the entire community,
while internal service funds are included in govermmental activities since they predominantly benefit the
City’s governmental functions.

Enterprise funds are used to report the functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City has eleven (11) enterprise {unds. Two of the enterprise funds, the
Water Pollution Control Fund and the Transfer Station Fund, are considered major funds and are reported
individually throughout the report. The other nine (9) non-major enterprise funds are grouped together
for reporting purposes and listed under a single heading, Other Enterprise Funds. Detail information for
each of the nine (9) non-major enterprise funds is provided in combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

Internal service funds are an accounting tool used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
City’s various functions. The City has four internal service funds: Equipment Services, Central Supplies,
Health Insurance, and Dental Insurance. Individual fund data for the Internal Service Funds is provided in
the form of combining statements in the latter section of this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 34-36 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The City has three fiduciary funds, all of
which are maintained as agency funds, with no attempt to create ongoing fund balances.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statement can be found on page 37 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 38-66.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information. Required supplementary information includes (1) a
budgetary comparison schedwle on the aggregate basis for the City’s budgeted governmental and
proprietary funds, and (2) the schedule of funding progress for the City’s other post employment benefits
plan.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds, non-
major enterprise funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As stated earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.

In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $125,204,889 at the close of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009,
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By far the largest portion of the City's net assets (86%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

CITY OF MUSCATINE’S NET ASSETS

Gosernmental activitles Business-type activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2048 2009 2008
Current and other assets S 25,152,126 S 24.037.795 $ 9545079 § 0305224 5 3697205 3 37343019
Capilal assels 61,505 984 601,992 585 64,438,439 58449 811 126,034,423 119,442,396
Tulul assers 86,748,110 84,030,380 73083518 67,755,035 160,731,628 156,785,415
Long-tenn liabitities pufsianding 12,556 488 14,003 429 7,304,533 5500480 20061021 19,504,909
Other liahilities 13,567 936 12,277 (4} 1.897 782 1,201,024 15,465,718 13,478,064
Total liahilities 26,124,424 26,280 469 YR 35 6,702.504 35.526.739 32 Y82,973
Net assely:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 30,303,042 50,833,005 57,286,029 53,255,999 107,589 (k1 104,089,004
Res(ricted 2989872 5.644 659 190,003 - 3,179,965 5.644,65%
Uneestacted 7,330,802 6,272,247 7,105,081 7.79%,532 14,435,883 14,068,779
Total net asscts $ 60623686 F 62749911 F 64581200 § 61052531 $ 125204889 § 123,802,442

A portion of the City’s net assets (2.5%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($14,435.883) may be used to
meet the City’s ongeing obligation to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

Net assets invested in capital assets net of related debt increased by $3,500,037 during the year.
Restricted net assets decreased by $2,464,644 since the prior year amount included general obligation
bonds issued in the prior year for projects completed in the current year. Unrestricted net assets increased
by $367,104 during the year.
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CITY OF MUSCATINE CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Revenues:
Prograrnrevenues:
Charges for services
Operaling grants, contributions and
restricted nterest
Capital grants and coninbutions
Ceneral evenues:
Property taxes
Utrility taxes
Local option sales tax
Hotelimotel tax
Cable franchise tax
Intergovernmental. not restricted to
specific prograns
Unrestricted investmenl eamings
Other

Total revenues

Expenses:
Pubhc salety
Public works
Health and socisl service
Culiure and recreation
Conmuaity and cconomic development
General government
Interest and fees on long-lenndebt
Water pollution control
Transfer station
Refuse collectinn
xﬂLinl'!rf
Parking
Transit
Colf course
Boat harhor
Marina
Agpbulance
Publk housing

Total cxpenses

[ncrease (decreasc) m net assets
betore rang fers

Tranfers o fout)

Increasc {decrease) in net asscts

Nel assets, beginning of year

Net asscts, end of year

Governmental activities Business-lype aclivities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2003
5 2084554 S 1988344 $ HI255848 § 1H),IRH.859 512340402 % 12,377.203
4,736,388 4229561 L{MB. 488 1.017,826 5,744,870 5247787
108213 963,114 L3I17.819 353,324 FA26.032 1,316,438
12,040,376 12,141,875 - 2,040,376 12,141,875
64,358 67,703 - - 64,358 67,713
2,864,582 2,688,049 - 2864582 2,688,049
344,354 36261 - 344,354 366,261
239.039 239,812 - - 239,039 239,812
149.913 150,424 - - 149913 150,424
267,227 399 317 182,286 156,849 449513 656,166
1,620 7980 - - 6,620 7.980
22.905.624 23,242 840 12,764,441 12,016,858 35,670,065 35,259,698
7,130,808 6972493 - - T.136.808 6,972,493
5,262,061 3498689 - - 5,262,061 3.493.689
16,660 16,660 - - 16,660 6,660
3,970,285 3,773,895 - - 3970285 3773895
2,656,737 2,757.19%) - - 2,656,737 2,757,190
1,967,161 1,880,724 - - 1,967,161 LES0,724
473,916 391,759 - - 473516 39759
- 4992317 4,649,437 4992317 4,649,437
- 222848 2,486, 14 2228048 2,486,114
- - 1,519,940 £,390,113 £.319,980 1,340,113
- - 605,009 561,312 605,004 561,312
- - 204 409 244,774 201,400 244,774
- - 97,562 §72.252 €N7.562 72,252
- 825,757 TI8 125 825,757 778,125
- 34,648 33015 34,648 33,015
- - LIRS} 12461 10,961 12461
- 483,223 428,659 483,223 428,659
- - 97540076 924,183 w507 924,183
21,483,628 19,291.410 12,783,990 £2,3803,445 34267618 3E.671,855
1AZE99G 3,951,430 (19,540 (363.58N 1,402 447 3.587.843
(3.548.221) (2,911,195} 3,548,221 2.911,195 - -
(2.126,225) [.040,235 3528672 2547608 bAD2 447 3.587.843
62.749.911 61,709,676 61,052,531 58,504,923 123,802,442 120,214,599

$ 60623686 F 62749911

S 64581203 61,052,531

5 F25204.889 § 123400442

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assets by $2,126,225. This
overall decrease was in part due to the transfer of $3.11 1,17t of local option sales tax funds to the Water
Pollution Control enterprise fund for sewer extension and improvement projects. Key elements of the

overall decrease are as follows:

* Revenues for governmental activities decreased by $337,216 or 1.5% from the previous year due
primarily to a decrease in capital grants and contributions.
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Charges for services for governmental activities increased by $96,210 due to increased public
safety and public works fees.

Operating grants and contributions for governmental activities increased by $306,427 due
primarily to FEMA reimbursements for flood and windstorm repairs and cleanup.

Capital grants and contributions decreased by $854,901. The prior year amount included two
public works capital grants totaling $200,000 for bridge lighting and trail projects; $246,315 in
final pledge contributions for the Peart of the Mississippi Project; $379,589 in insurance
reimbursements to replace damaged park structures and lighting destroyed by the June I, 2007
tornado; and a $93,196 federal grant for fire equipment

Property taxes decreased in total by $101,499 during the year or .8%. This overall decrease was
due to claiming $319,206 less in incremental taxes from the tax increment districts. Regular
property taxes {excluding incremental taxes) increased by $217,707 which reflected a 2.3%
decrease in tax rate and an increase of 4.6% in taxable valuation.

Local option sales tax increased by $176,533 during the year.

Unrestricted investment earnings decreased by $132,090 during the year due to declining interest
rates.

Expenses for governmental activities increased by $2,192,218 or 11.4% from the previous year.

The most significant increases in governmental expenses were in the public works ($1,763,372),
public safety ($164,315), and culture and recreation ($196,390) functions, There were also
increases in the general government function ($86,437) and interest and fees on long-term debt
($82,157). Expenses for the community and economic development function decreased by
$100,453. The increase in the public works function included over $1,073,000 in expenses toward
the City’s share of the Mad Creek Flood Control Project. Expenses in the various functions also
included those for the repairs and cleanup resulting from the 2008 floods and windstorm.
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Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s total net assets by $3,528,672,
accounting for 100% of the total increase in the City of Muscatine’s net assets during the year. Increases
in net assets were reported in the Water Pollution Control, Transfer Station, Refuse Collection, Airport,
Parking, and Ambulance funds. Decreases in net assets were reported in the Transit, Golf Course, Boat
Harbor and Public Housing funds, Key elements of these changes are as follows:

Net assets of the Water Pollution Control fund increased by $2,846,522 during the year primarily
due to capital asset additions. Transfers from the Local Option Sales Tax fund funded $3,111,171
of sewer-refated capital project costs.

Net assets of the Transfer Station fund increased by $23,872 during the year. This overall
tncrease is the result of a $707.894 funding transfer from the debt service fund to fund the
Transfer Station debt requirements for the year,

Revenues for the business-type activities increased in total by $747,583 (6.2%).

Charges for services decreased in total by $133,011. Water Pollution Control Plant service
charges increased by $259,357 and refuse collection charges by $92,568 due (o rate increases.
Transfer Station service charges decreased by $592,091 due to decreased waste volumes and a
$285,000 allowance for uncollectable charges from a waste hauler. Golf fees and charges
increased by $45.398 due to increased play at the course and ambulance charges for service
increased by $80,565 due (o increased usage and a fee increase.

Operating grants and contributions decreased by $9,338. Increased FEMA reimbursements for
operating expenses were offset by a decrease in public housing operating grants,

Capital grants and contributions increased by $964.495 due primarily to the Federal Aviation
Admumnistration grant for the taxiway to the crosswind runway. Unrestricted interest earning

decreased by $74,563 due to declining interest rates.

Expenses for the business-type activities increased $403,545 (3.3%).
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In patticular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of 10,151,770, a decrease of $4,341,213 in comparison with the prior year. This decrease was
primarily due to capital project expenditures including those funded from prior year bond proceeds as
well as capital project expenditures which will be funded from bond proceeds in 2009/2010. There was
also a decrease of $451,478 in the balance in the Local Option Sales Tax fund due to funding transfers for
sewer extension and improvement projects accounted for in the Water Pollution Control fund.

Approximately 76% of the total combined ending fund balances ($7,684,109) constitutes unreserved fund
balance, which is available for spending within statutory guidelines pertaining to each fund at the City’s
discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Muscatine. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $1,641,489, while total fund balance was
$1,760,711. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The unreserved and total general fund
balances at the end of the fiscal year represent 11.2% and 12.0%, respectively, of total general fund
expenditures. The City’ of Muscatine’s general fund balance increased slightly by $15,068 during the
current fiscal year.

The Employee Benefits fund balance increased during the year by $117,219. Taxes are levied in this fund
for employee benefits for general fund employees. The increase in fund balance is primarily due to actual
health insurance rates being less than budgeted and savings in employee benefit costs from vacancies
during the year.

The Local Option Sales Tax fund balance decreased during the fiscal year by $451,478. Funds
accumulated in prior years were used to fund sewer improvement costs accounted for in the Water
Pollution Control fund.

The Debt Service Fund decreased $8,438 due to scheduled debt service payments.

The fund balance of the Street and Sidewalk Improvements Fund decreased by $2,218,614 due to street
improvement costs funded from prior year general obligation bond proceeds.

The fund balances in the Other Governmental Funds in total decreased by $1,794,970. This was primarily
due to the expenditure of prior year bond proceeds as well as capital project expenditures which will be
funded from bond proceeds m 2006/2010.

Proprietary funds. The City of Muscatine's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.
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Total net assets for the City’s enterprise funds as of June 30, 2009 was $64,581.203, an increase of
$3.528.672 from the previous fiscal year. Of the net assets of the enterprisc funds, $57,286.029 is
invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Restricted net assets totaled $190,093. Unrestricted net
assets totaled $7,105,081, a decrease of $646,451 compared to the previous year.

The City’s internal service funds include Equipment Services, Central Supplies, Health Insurance and
- Dental Insurance. Net assets for the internal service funds totaled $1,203,655 as of June 30, 2009, an
increase of $256,274 from the previous year. This increase was primarily in the Health Insurance Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year there was an $831,900 increase in General Fund appropriations between the original
General Fund budget and the final amended budget. Budgeted revenues and transfers in to the General
Fund increased by $689.423 from the original to the amended budget. A significant portion of the
increases in both appropriations and revenues was due to costs related to repairs and cleanup from the
spring 2008 floods and August 2008 windstorm. Flood and windstorm cleanup and repair costs accounted
for in the General Fund resulted in expenditure amendments totaling $7635,000 in the various General
Fund departments. Revenue amendments to the General Fund included $688.500 in FEMA
reimbursements for flood and windstorm-related costs. There were also amendments in various enterprise
funds as a result of these events. Following are the main components of the overall budget increases
during the year:

* The increase in the public safety function of $60,000 was primarily in the fire department budget.
Increases included $20,000 in overtime related to increased ambulance calls, $11,000 for the
return of grant funds received in the prior year, and $13,500 in disability-related medical costs for
retired firefighters. These medical costs were funded from a transfer from the Employee Benefits
fund.

e Increases in the parks and recreation budget totaled $479,800. This overall increase is primarily
related to flood and windstorm repair and cleanup costs with $428,300 reflected in the Park
Maintenance and $31,500 in the Cemetery amended budgets. Revenues were amended for the
FEMA reimbursements which funded these costs.

¢ Public works department expenditures were amended in total by $198,500. The Snow and Ice
Control budget was amended by $201,700 for increased personnel, salt, fuel, and equipment
repair and maintenance costs. The Engineering budget was amended by $128,400 with the filling
of the City Engineer position. These increases were offset in part with reductions totaling
$131,600 in the remaining public works budgets. The net overall budget increase in the public
works activities was funded from increased transfers from the Road Use Tax fund.

e The amended budget included a $100,200 increase in the general government function. This
included $42,900 in termination pay and benefits for the former City Administrator. $22,500 in
the Buildings and Grounds budget for building repair costs including $8,800 relating to flood
repairs, $9,700 in the Risk Management budget for increased insurance premiums, and $9,500 in
the Wellness budget to expand this program,
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Muscatine’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 2009, amounts to $126,034,423 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and systems, improvements, machinery and
equipment, park facilities, streets, and bridges. The City of Muscatine’s investment in capital assets for
the current fiscal year increased by $603,399 for governmental activities compared to the prior year and
increased by $5.988,628 for business-type activities.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
¢ Additions to capital assets (net of asset retirements) totaled $11,142,677.

* Major asset additions included $2,428,737 for street improvements; $1,166,821 for Airport
improvements and equipment; $3,561,265 for the Water Pollution Control Plant Comprehensive
Facilities Improvement project; $3,057.904 in sewer system improvements; $683,429 for a
geothermal heating, ventilation, and air conditioning system for the Public Safety Building, and
$245,350 for a new Golf Course maintenance building.

* Depreciation expense totaled $5,982,414 for the year with $2,860,915 in the governmental
activities and $3,121,499 in the business-type activities.

City of Muscatine Capital Assets
{Net of Depreciation)

Gowrnments) uctivities Business -type activilies Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Land, art work and comstruction in
progress, not being depreciated S O1A504003 S 14,483,257 FOB2P619 F 5400009 5 23713622 3 19883260
Other capital assets net of accunmsbyled
depreciation 46,001 981 46,509, 328 56,228,820 53,0440 802 102320801 Q0550130
Totalcapital assets S 615395984 5 60992585 64438430 F SR 440810 § 126034423 5 119442306

Additional information on the City of Muscatine’s capital assets can be found in note 6 on pages 52-54 of
this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of
$18,521,908. Of this amount, $12,808,713 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the city.
Of this amount $3,554,215 is debt that serves enterprise funds and therefore is reflected as debt of the
respective enterprise funds with the remainder of the general obligation bonds $9,254,498 reflected as
debt of the governmental activities. The remainder of the City of Muscatine’s debt represents revenue
bonds secured solely by specific revenue sources.
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City of Muscatine Qutstanding Debt

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Gowernmenial activities Business-type activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
General obligation honds 8 25498 3 10462.2% 5 35354215 % 4,587,029 3 12808713 § 15,049,323
Revenue bonds 2,1 15000 2,415,000 3.598,195 - 3,713,195 245,000

5 11369498 5 12877204 $ TA52410 & 4587029 M 18521508 % 17.464.323

The City’s total bonded debt increased by $1,057,585 during the year. The City issued $2,991,412 in new
sewer revenue debt and $2,300,000 in general obligation bonds and $300,000 of tax increment revenue
bonds were retired.

State statutes imit the amount of general obligation debt to 5% of the total actual valuation of property in
the City of Muscatine. The current debt limit of the City of Muscatine is $56,812,100. The amount of
debt applicable to the debt limit totals $15,170,000. The City’s debt is significantly less than the
maximum debt limit aliowed.

The City maintained its A-1 rating from Moody's for general obligation debt,

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 7 on pages 55-59 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The unemployment rate for Muscatine County was 4.3% for calendar year 2008 compared to
3.5% the previous year. The unemployment rate for the first six months of 2009, however,
mereased to 7.9%. Separate unemployment figures are not maintained for the City of Muscatine.

The City's taxable value increased by 4.6% for the 2008/2009 year and increased by 3.8% for the
upcoming 2009/2010 fiscal year.

The upcoming budget provides funding for capital improvement projects to continue in
2009/2010. Local option sales tax funds will continue to be used to fund sanitary and storm
sewer projects in the City (80%) and also ongoing costs of the City’s pavement management
program {209).

In 2009 the City will complete the third year of a three year Comprehensive Pavement
Management Program to upgrade the City’s overall street conditions. Funding allocations of over
$1 million for calendar year 2007 and $2 million each for calendar years 2008 and 2009 will
complete the mittal upgrade. Thereafter annual allocations to maintain streets at this higher level
will be funded from the 20% allocation of local option sales tax.

In 200972010 construction will continue on the comprehensive facilities improvements project at
the Water Pollution Controt Plant. These improvements are estimated at $18.5 million and are
scheduled to be completed by the fall of 2011.

The 2009/2010 budget provides for increases in sewer, refuse collection, and transfer station fees,
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Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Muscatine’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions conceming any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance
Director, 215 Sycamore Street, Muscatine, lowa, 52761.
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ASSETS

Cush and pooled investimens
Invesiments
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles):
Interest
Taxes
Acvounts
Oither
Tlergovernmental
Loan receivable from ¢omponent unit
Inventories
Prepaids
Dreferred charges
Ruestrictod gssets:
Femporarily ressricied:
Cash and prabed ivesiments
Accrued Interest
nvestments
Capal pssets:
Land, ant work and constmction
in progress, nof being deprecialed
Other capital assets mel of accumulated
depweciation
Utility plant izt service
Intangible ssets (net of aconmutbated
depreciation}
Joing veniure dghts

Folal asscs

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and nccrals
Retainages payahle
Breposits
Maturad bonds and interest payable
Accried interost payahle
nearnued revenea
Eaabilities payable from restricied asscts:
Current insealiment of loug-tenm debt
Accrued interest payable
Moncucrent liabilitios:
Eyue within one year
Eyue dnomore than one vear
Faoon due b primary government
Closure/post-closure obligalion

“Fodal ligbilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capilal nssers, net of
related dube
Ruestricted foe:
Debt service
Public works
Communily and ceonomic development
Public safety
Employee benetits
Cuapitzl prijjects
Perpemal care, nimespendible
Endowments:
Nasexpendable
Expundible
Other purposes
tnrestrictecl

Teotal net assets

Clty of Muscatine, Towa

Statement of Net Assety

Juane 30, 2009

Prim HIY Gover

Comp t Units

Muscatine Musratbne
Governmental Business-type County Sofid Power &
Activitles Activitics Tetal Waste Agency Water

3 4558750 % ENCLER 13,882,470 $ - b 7.247.007
1344631 4,653 2649284 - 2435000
30,516 20,451 79,997 - 1.131,073

12.331.778 - 12,331,778 - -
243054 1,742,347 1 985 441 8,783,597
- - - - 324868

1O16.673 314270 1.3300.343 - -

- 1,850,425 1.850.925 - -
122127 21,752 [EXT el - 12,452,109
1117 3.200 437 - 575173
54,071 187.606 241,677 - 113,204

- 18968 189,681 927,404 2.264.329

- 412 412 . -

- - - - 46,334,634
15,504,003 52619 2373622 2,164 825 4631114
46,041,981 56.228 520 102,320.801 Sl6,802 -

- - - - 157969315

- - - 3092 469

- - - - 191.369

R6 748, 110 J30R3.51%8 160,731,628 3,604,031 247,545,356
1196217 1.314.518 2.510,735 305 8468 9159210
152,546 468,284 620,830 34,211 -

- 39.245 39,245 - 2814600

419 - 414 .

35,242 21,852 57,094 - 623,522
12,183,512 53883 12,237,395 - 29.303,164
- M - - 11,305,000

- . - L5174

2202206 824,330 3026536 933 .
1,354,282 6,651,108 17,0065 390 - 38.727.725
- - - 1,850,925 -
- 29.095 29,095 1826503 -
26,124,424 9402315 35,526,739 4038440 93,284,035
A0.303.012 57.286,029 107.589.04 1 2.681.627 78351515
182,707 [, 908 343705 - -
383,577 - INIETT - -
220663 - 220.663 - .
3T HAS - 374835 - B
H¥T A0S - 207 408 - -
76,526 - 76.526 - -
823,543 - 823,543 - -
132,000 - 132040 - B
925,613 - 925613 - -

- 9095 20,095 - 47247619

7.330.802 7,105,081 14435883 i3.111.036) 2H.661.287

3 61.627,686 § ad 581,203 125 2004 850 b3 (429,409} % 154,260,421

The notes 0 the financinl stuements are an itegral part of this statement.
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0t

Primary Governoent:
Cioverniental activilies:
Public safety
Pubtic works
Heabth and social services
Caltre and recteation

Comanity ad ecoramic development

Generad government
Interest and fecs on long-leem delbt

Total governtitenlal sclivitics

Business-tvpe activities:
Water palhueicn conuol
Retuse collection
Trunsfer ststion

Almpart

Farkmg

Transil

Ciolf course

Bont hacbor

Mlasina

Ambulance

Public housing

Total business-type actieities
Total primary government
Comgonent Units:
Musearine Counly Solid Waste Agency
Muscatine Power & Water
Tutal component unrs

City of Muscallne, lawa

Staterant of Actbyitles
For the Year Ended June 3, 2009

Program Revenues

ek (Expense) Revenne aod

Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government Cumpunent Lnits
Ojperating Grants, Capital Muscutine County
Chuirges for Contributions and Grants amd Gover I Busi Type Solid Waste Muscutine
Expustses Services Restricted Intercst [Contribitiens Activities Activities Yotat Agepry Pawer & Water
% 7.136,808 13 434,932 ¥ 358,616 b 37,205 $ (6302055 13 {6.302.855)
526106k EILA Y] 30, 104 50,000} (2,343.735) - {2.843.753)
16,664 - . - [ L6660} 16,660
3070.285 444,131 T04,601 2108 (2. 7501,545} - §2,7150,545%)
2050,757 158812 Loll T - {685,158 - (685 L3 1)
1,067t 473567 11203 - {0.482.39n (1,482,351
473,46 - - {$73.91M (475.016)
21,483,623 20084554 4,736,388 108,213 i 14354.473) - 114,554 473)
ER V] ) 4.518,700 L5 - (408, 776) {448 7FE)
1519980 1,533,388 46,938 - - 82,346 82346
2228048 1,493,300 43720 . - (684.G22) (G84.022)
5 009 52 - 1109283 343,792 333,797
201 409 JESR. x| - FERRIA) - 176300 176,500
o7 362 185653 439734 - (182175 1282,175)
325,757 s X TG - 1 HE) 134 0 5)
34 648 QAR50 - - {L1.24%) 11,138
19,561 G504 - - (4.362) (4.362)
483.223 148,722 - - - 65 40 565400
WIS 07 A204 104 385,186 25445 (144,335 144,338}
12, 783.90) 10,255 848 108 488 1,217,819 - (201,835} VA0 E35)
¥ 34267 618 b 12340402 % 5,74 876 b 1426032 (1554473 [ ELY) t1:4,7560.308)
3 EEG0. 646 % 1033833 $ 1E7IT7 5 . b3 (OA36) b3 -
G804, 143 04,350 902 334,808 354,396 - 1964 077}
§ 9NIGMIBY F 85333TIS % H2HE 8 354,39 19,6369 {964.977)
General 1evenues:
Property tuxes 12040376 - 12.0400.376 -
Litiliey 1axes 64,358 4,358 -
Lecal oplion sales bax 3 BG4 582 - 2,561,582 -
Hotelmuote taxes 3ad. 354 - 344,354 -
Cabilz franchise anes 139039 230,034 - -
Lislet povernmentat, unresiricrad (BT AY - 144913 -
Unrestriceed investmeny ncomoe 27,227 182280 449513 - 3086751
Conteibutions o endowienls 6,60 - G620
‘Transters {548,200 3.348.221 - -
Totuk peneral revenues, coniiibulions W endownwnts angd transters 12,424,248 A,730.507 16,158,755 - 3,686,751
Change in net assels (2.126.225) 3525472 12447 (036} 27T
Met assets, Junc 3G, 2008 GL749971 65052551 123807442 {452.773) 15E538,647
Net assets, June 30, 2NH 0623686 5 64581203 125,204,889 $ (429,400 F 154260421

The e 12 the fnancial stalements are un imegrak pact of tis stalemenl.




Clty of Muscaiine, lowa

Bulance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 3, 2009
Street and Other Total
Employee Local Gptlon Sldewalk Gaver I Gaver tal
freneral Henefils Sules Tax Bebt Service  Impro ! Funds Funds
Agigts:
Cash and pooled investments 5 1482378 % 157222 & 3,70m.B06 142634 3 - % ZLE63564 % 8352664
Investments - . - - - 174631 ET44.631
Receivables (net of allowaoee for
uncollectibles):
Interest 3452 - 14.33] j2we o7 24,515 47,084
Taxes 6,3i6,219 2629516 - 2.205,36% - RDLGT £2.331,778
Arciomnts 212,745 - . - - 3468 216,213
Intergavernmental 397,667 - $44.059 - HOLEHKY 164,307 1016073
Acdvances to ather funds - - 650,508} - - 131,224 781,724
Prepaid insurance 1117 - - - - - 1,117
Towal sssets B.611,078 2.786,738 4.815,796 2,351,302 [0.987 3,912,383 24,491,284
Liabilities and fund balances
| iabilivies:
Accounts payable and accruals 32T5TR - - - 153463 52004 043,045
Reininages payable - - - - 121.320 312126 152,546
Acbsances from orher funds - - - - 4509 TILYIS 781,724
Muterel gener] obligation boned
interest yyable - - - 419 - - 414
Deferred mevenuw: 5,525 789 2379330 65. (60 2168176 10,0500 1.011),485 12,361,780
Foual liabilities HH53,367 2,579,330 65,000 2,168,595 294,592 2,375,630 14.339.514
Fund balances:
Reserved tor
Trermid irerns Ly - - - - - Ly
Encumbrances {18,105 - - - - 137,557 245.662
Advancey to other funds - - 6501, 5K} - - 131,224 TE1TM
Honirsing A84IS1a008 Payments - - - - - 167,549 + 67,349
Perpetuzl e - - - - - R0 2110
Endowmmienits - - - - - 194,421 194,421
Dielil service - - - 182,707 - - 1RI07
Capital projects - - - - - 73648 75688
Uneresorved, repored in:
GCeneral fund L6341 489 - - - - - 1,631 489
Special revenue [ands - 207,408 4047296 - . 3,301,524 7608,235
Capital projects funds - . - - 1283605 (1,281,120 11.564,725)
Total fund halances 1,780,711 27,408 4,747,796 152 (283.605) 3.556.753 10.A51,770
Toral labilities and fund balances § 8614078 f 2,786,738 5 481500 $ 2351302 5 10987 ¥ 3012383
Amounts reported for governmenral activithes in the siadement of nen assets ane difterent because:
Capitab ussets used in gavernmental activities ate ool ancial resourees and, therefore,
are nut reparred in the funds., 61,589,023
Chher long-term wisets are not available 1w pay For corrent period expenditures and, therefore
are deferred in the [ands. 178,268
Unamortized balance of determed chargs for bond iswoance costs not reporred in e lunds 54,071
Internal service funds are vsed by management w clarge the costs of equipment services, central sopplios
and hizaleh insurance 1o individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the interpal service [unds wre
included in govermmental activiries w (he statement of nee assers. 1,205,635
Long-term labiities are not due and payable in il cureens period amd theretire are not reported in the funds:
Rondy pavahle {11.269.498)
Acened interest payable (35.240)
Compensated absences (4,132,009
Chher post-emphoyment benefiss (16,3523

MNet asseis of govermmental activities

The nictes 1o the fivancial satements are an integral part of this statement,
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Revenags:

Taxes:

Proporly

Utility

Heredfnnrg|

Cable franchize

Larcal option sales
Licenses and permils
Fines sl foefcifures
inieTenvernmental
Charges lor services
Liar af muney and property
Other

Traal revenues

Fapendigres:
Current:
Public safury
Public works
Headth and sowcial wreives
Culture and recreation
Community and economic
developmint
Ciemeral government
Diebt service:
Primcipal
Interest
Paying agent
Capital ocutlay:
Public satuty
Publiy warks
Culture and recriation
Cammunity and economic
development
General govertment

Toral expenditures

Hevenues over (under) expenditurs

Other Muancing sources (usas):

Transfers in
Transfers it

Tutal other finaacing soserces {Uses)

Mot chapge in fund balances

Fund balances, Tone 30, 2008

Funit balances, fune 3, 2000

Ciy of Muscatles, Fowa

Stateatent of Revenues, Expenditares and Changes In Fernd Bilances
Gavernmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 3, 2069

Street and Other Total
Employee Local Option Debt Sidewalk Governmental Giovernmental
Gieneral Benefits Sales Tax Serviee Improvements Funds Funds
3 6,199,911 BOIA53401 § - § 21264928 3 - 13 E6i),078 12040376
35,256 16,241 . 11,783 - 1076 64,358
134354 - - - - - 4,354
239,034 - - - - - 139.09
- - 1.796,582 - 2796582
424,497 : - - - - 324,492
177,324 - - - . - 117,523
947,009 - - L7025 150,000 3,526,672 380,706
4RL659 - - - - - 480,659
177053 - 103382 18,630 11.960 | 32,0002 431,027
781,838 - . - E66.49.43 123,546 1174617
9.756,935 869,702 2599 963 1274366 378,833 4745674 22,035.514
5,882,139 - - - - 5654 6.857.993
2,071,234 - - - - - 2,021,234
16.660 - - . - - 16,660
2660119 - - - - 34,816 2,7NE 835
676826 - - - - 1,970,041 2,646,067
1. B6% 708 - - - - - 1.869.708
- - 1,220.837 - 360,000 1,530,837
- - . 352,473 - 122,614 FI5087
- - - 1,600 - - 16N
70,361 - - - - 1070359 177,426
73,4933 - - - 2,676,034 1214805 3870772
335,101 - - . - 35029 653,230
1,383 . . - - 35870 37253
57,445 - - - - ERRX LR T4
14,670,109 - - 1,574,910 2,676,414 +.856,572 23778525
4,913,174y 2869702 2,809,964 B9 456 12.208.041) £ 1 10LRUE) (852.991)
3326124 - . - 80500 312614 5819738
1307 982 (2.752.483) (3,351.440 (7417 894) (1.473) [20196,686) 9.3457.960)
34928,242 {2,752 483} 3,331,442} (707,504 79.427 {1.684.072) (3,488,222
13,068 172y 451,478 (8.438) 12,218,614 (1.794.970) 14,341.213)
1.743.633 0,189 5,149,274 191145 1,935,009 5,331,723 14,497,983
o 1L76TI $ 2007408 5 4747796 $ 182747 o (2BGe05) 5 3536753 $ o 1LSLTT0

The nates (o the linancial statements are an inlegrd part of this stakerment.
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Cily of Muscatine, [own

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are diiTerent because:
Net change in fund balances - total govetnmenta! funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activitics report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the
estimated useful lives of the assets:

Capital asset purchases caphtalized
Depreciation expense

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (ie. sales,
trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net assets.

Revenucs in the statement ol activities that do not provide cuirrent financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds.

Revenues in the governmental funds not reflected as revenue in the stalement of activities
since recognized in prior years

The issuance of Jong-torm debt (i.e. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources

to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on ned assets. Also, governmental funds repor the effect of issuance
costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is First issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in (the siatement of activities.

General obligation bond principal payments

Tax increment bond principal payments

Net effects of bond issnance costs. premiums and discounts

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the tse of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Change in compensated absenscs
Other post-empioyment benelits
Change in accrued interest payable
Internal service funds arc used by management to charge the costs of equipmer services,
central office supplies, health and dental insurance te individual funds. The net revenue {expense)
of internal service funds ts reported with governmental activities,

Change in net assels of governmental activities

Fhe notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ (4,341,213)

3,432,650
(2.858.937)

31664

168,268

(260,3049)

1,220,837
300,000
23,029)

{40,427)
(16,352)
4,349

256,274

$ (2.126,225)



Assels:
Current. assets'
Cash and pooled uvvesements
Jonvestments

Receivabites (net of allowance for uncollectibies);

Freerest
Accounts
Intergovernmental;
Federal
State
Counly
Mg feom other fundy
lnvetaries
Frepaad ems

Total currenr asgels

Noncurrent aszers
Restricted ensh and pooled investments
Restricted accrued inlesest
Defvrrod charges
Aufviinees to component unit
Advanees {o other funds
Capaal assels:
Land
Land improvenents
Buildgs andt buikding improvements
Eqjuipient
Vehicles
infrastractire
Construction in progress
Less uccumolated depreciation
Todal capital assers new of accumulated
deprecialion

Tortal poncuerent assets

Tutal assets

Liabilizies:
Current lishilities:

Accounts pavable and accruals
Retainapes payahbe
Conpetisated ubscnoes payable
e 10 other funds
[eposits
Averied niterest payublc
Unearned revetiue
Gienerat abligation bonds

Tonat curvend liubilitios

Noncurrent liabitities:
Advance from other funds
Cieneral obligation bonds
Stawe revnlving fund loan
Compensated ahsences
Cher postgmpbayment benefies
Tramesfer stupmm ¢losure obligation

Total noncurredt Jiahilives

Tual lighiliries

Net ussets:
Tavested in copital assets, et of relared delit
Restricted
Linroatricted

Townk net assets

Cily of Muscating, lows

Staternert of Net Assets
Proprielary Funds
June 30, 2009

Busi type Activities - Enterprice Funds

Governmental
Water {hher Activities -
Pailution Transler Enterprise Indernul
Control Statlon Fouds Total Service Fonds
b 1B52431 H - § 447 881 4,300,712 b3 236,098
- 1 053 004655 -
0,753 - 0218 24,481 3432
520,500 RE3 132 J08.0151 1fa2.587 M Rat
SLIER - 236,359 287,577
f. 384 1ia 15,274 21,862
. A 4 &0 4.801 .
10313 - 4,151 0464 12,481
. 21,752 21.7152 122,127
3,200 32040
4557473 813966 2135 450 TAZHHID | HKNTH
1903, 586 200095 - 138,681 -
a2 - - 412 -
112820 12,047 17RO FRT 606
13505925 - - 1 R30.523 -
LGRS RS - - 10ER.GR3
474 436 175000 2173659 1.433.145
62,346 [EULE. L) 10821245 12,603 488 -
RUASIORE b 1428336 11305637 46,178,522 -
3 Tukez7 258,588 A 4,750,655 122,880
940,074 0263 EAOE051 3,308,488 50,203
16,447.352 - - 3,447,382 -
5361020 - 25,448 5,386,474 -
30,286, 204) 13.955.253) (13,331,158} (49 568.615) 1166131
47.330, 136 5.4 851 11,608,222 61,4358 439 Rl
RIUGT RN 5,542,023 11611111 67.750,040 6,061
53,170,485 310,589 13,665,301 73,152,065 1407937
1051517 S2.403 204,508 1314588 153472
331536 - 136,735 465,204 -
Y623 &, 1 71788 167,302 17,343
- - 110464 110,464 12,451
- - 30,245 9245
11,952 8,702 LI9g 21,852
. 53,583 35,883 -
- 576,581 8,357 058,438 -
1,439,638 H14667 A08. 27 2.832.576 183 43
1048 083 - 1,088,983
- 2.543,241 354036 RENTITT -
250,195 - - 1508, 195 -
Y1714 1,23t 56,581 144,516 FUREE
161 452 337 6414} 457
- 240045 - 20695 -
1693170 3,663 N2 413,014 7705 186 20,786
5,132,808 4,307,664 1,111.285 103,60, 76R2 24252
43741091 1371009 11173929 57,296,020 B0
160,998 20045 - 190,693 .
6.1435,587% {360, B84 1,330,377 T 105,081 b6, 694
b A%3E7 677 b 2,034,220 ¥ 12554306 1,581,203 b 1,203,655

The notes to the fnancial sreements are an iregral pare of tis stlement.,
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Operating revenues:
Charges lor sales and services
Employer contributions
Employee cantributions
Other contributiong
Orher

‘Fistal operaling revenues

Operating expernses:

Cost of sales snd services:
Personal services
Comnrmmlinies
Clomnrictual services

Adminisiration

Bepreciation

‘Foral operating vapenses
Operating income (loss)
Nuon-operating revenues {expenses):
Intergovernmental
Interest revenue
Interest expetise
Boid issuance cosly
Craiin {loss) on sale of capital assets

Non-operating revenucs (Cxpenses, net

Fncome ¢|oss) before capital contributions
and transfors

Caplilal contributions - grants
Capital cortribntions - government
Translers in

Transters oot

Change In net assets

Net assets, June 30, 2008

Net assets, June 30, 2009

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Not Assets
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Rusiness-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Water Other Activities -
Pollutian Transler Entlerprise Enternat
Control Station Funds Tatal Service Funds
$ 4438794 b 1450924 b 4.121.177 3 10010905 g | 46648
- 2.267 604
- - 183,895
- - - - 157 744
79,001 47,371 1171671 144,843 16
4518700 | 498 300 4,238,848 10,255, 84% 3.055.912
i.829,867 233904 2107410 4,171.181 264081
228779 43.131 390,669 T6R.579 561.083
N3 602 LAYEIR 1.513.32% 3.0216,748 2521770
147,700 2 274 5800 424,400 1 6,600
1,740,996 287,774 1,082 7248 3,121,499 1,978
4,847 944 2.0%6.727 5487 736 12,402 47 3370517
{329.244) {368,427 (1.245.888) (2.146.559 285400
63,841 45726 R84 IRLU Y -
147.027 - 35,259 182286 IHLETS
{90.086) 158721 {20.863) 1279270
3,060 {2.600) {358) (6.018)
{41 .627) - {34.668) {96.293)
iy, 495 {115.595) 858,241 B9 30,573
{262.74%) {684,022 {390,597 (1.337.368) 116273
- 1134731 1. 134731 -
- - 183,088 183.08%
ENIREE] T 694 235456 4054521 -
(1.900) - (504.400) {506, 300) {59.999)
2.846.522 23872 6RE.278 3578672 256,274
47.141.155 20815348 11,896,028 al,052.531 947,381
b 49,987 677 b3 2.039.220 5 1255430k 5 64.581.203 1) |.203 655

The netes o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cagh fows from operating zetly Hies
Receipis from customers und users
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payerenils t supplicrs
Payrments b employees
Payments fir empboyes henefils
Paythents for imterfund services nsed
Met cash provided (wsal) by operating activities

Cash Naws from noncapital fisanciing activilies

Trimsfers to other funds

Trasfers from oter fusds

Advances from arher (unds

Advances to other funds

Advance tw wlid waste component unit

Repayment of advances fuom other Tunds

Repuyment of wdvances o other funds

Subsidies from federal, state and Jocat grants
Net cash provided {used) by noncipital

finuncing actvities

Cash fMlows lcom cepital and related Mrancing activities
Procegds trom capitd debt
Capigal contributions
Puschase uf capilal asschs
Principid puid o capital debt
Tueresi paid on capilsl debe
State revidying foat ivsuance codt
Insuranee reimbursemet far ks oF capital assels
MNet cash provided (ised) by capirad snd retared
financing aclivilies

Cash flows From investing activithes
Proweeds from sales and marrities of mvestments
Prarghase of mvestnenes
Interest recetved
Met cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increise {deciense) i cash and pooled mvestments
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2009
Agency
Funds
Assets:
Cash and pocied investmients 3 492309
Accounts receivabie 32,703
Advances to other funds 52,108
Total assets 597.180
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals 345,072
Advances from other funds 52,108
Total liabilities $ 507180

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this
statement.
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CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

The notes to the financial statements contain a summary of significant accounting policies and other information
considered necessary for an understanding of the financial statements of the City and are an integral part of this
report. The index to the notes is as follows:

e A e e

T
N b e B — O

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Budgets

Deposits and Investments

Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
Restricted Assets

Capital Assets

Long-Term Debt

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Cost
Retirement Systems

. Deficit Fund Equity

. Other Post Employment Health and Dental Care Benefits (OPEB}

. Industrial Revenue Bonds

. Risk Management

. Commitments and Contingencies

. New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards
. Subsequent Event
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NOTE 1.

CITY OF MUSCATINE, I0WA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity

The City of Muscatine, lowa, was chartered in [851 under the laws of the state of lowa, later
amended in July 1975 under the Home Rule City Act. The City operates under a
Mayor/Council/City Administrator form of government and provides a broad range of services to its
citizens, including general government, public safety, public works, community development,
cultural and park facilities. The City also operates an airport, parking facilities, public housing
facilities, transit system, sewer and sanitation utilities, a municipal golf course, public library and a
municipal museum and art center.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these
financial statements present the City of Muscatine and its component units, entities for which the
City is considered to be financially accountable. The City has no blended component units. Each
discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide
financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the City.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency (Agency). The Agency has been organized as a joint
venture under Chapter 28E of the Code of Towa between the City of Muscatine; Muscatine County;
and the municipalities of Fruitland, Stockton, West Liberty, Nichols, Conesville and Atalissa, Iowa.
The Agency is responsible for the disposal of all solid waste for member municipalities and
unincorporated portions of Muscatine County.

The City of Muscatine appoints a representative to the Agency's governing board whose vote (based
on the City's population) accounts for 56% of the board’s voting authority. A two-thirds vote is
required for board action; therefore, the City does not appoint a voting majority of the Agency's
governing board. Nonetheless, the Agency is considered a component unit of the City because of its
fiscal dependence on the City. The City Council approves the Agency's budget, sets its rates, and
approves any debt issuances.

The Agency has a June 30 year-end. Separate financial statements are not issued for the Agency,
and the Agency accounts for all of its financial transactions in a single fund.

Muscatine Power & Water (MP&W). MP&W is a municipal utility which provides water,
electric and communication service to users within the City of Muscatine and in other urban and
rural areas within Muscatine County. MP&W's governing board is appointed by the Mayor and
approved by the City Council. MP&W provides a financial benefit to the City by providing
electricity for City buildings and all street and traffic lighting free of charge to the City.

MP&W has a December 31 year-end. Complete financial statements for MP&W may be obtained at
its administrative offices at Muscatine Power & Water, 3205 Cedar Street, Muscatine, lowa 52761.
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Joint Venture

The City is a member organization along with Muscatine County and Muscatine Power and Water
in a joint venture organized under Chapter 28E of the lowa Code to develop and operate the
Muscatine Area Geographic Information Consortium (MAGIC). The purpose of MAGIC is to
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of its member organizations through the coordinated
development of geographic and land information systems technology and data. A six-member board
composed of two appointees from each member organization governs MAGIC. Each member
organization has cne vote on all matters. Each member organization is responsible for one-third of
the operating expenses incurred by MAGIC. In the event MAGIC is terminated, the material
benefits realized from the liquidation of any and all of its assets shalt be divided among the
participating organizations on a pro rata basis after any and all claims against MAGIC have been
satisfied. The intent of the organization is not to accumulate excess funds and based upon the
balance at year end the future contributions are adjusted accordingly. In accordance with the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Codification, a ¢laim to assets upon the joint
venture’s dissolution is not considered to be an equity interest. Therefore no investment in the joint
venture is reported on the face of the financial statements of the City. There are no separately
issued financial statements for this joint venture.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The City also participates in several jointly governed organizations that provide goods or services to
the citizenry of the City but do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since there is no ongoing
financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments. City officials are members of
the following boards and commissions: Muscatine County Joint Communications Commission;
Muscatine County/Municipal Disaster Services Board; Muscatine Community Nursing Services
Board, Crossroads Workshop Board; Muscatine Island Flood Control Commission; Muscatine
County Assessor’s Conference Board; and Muscatine County Drug Task Force.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the City’'s nonfiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference reported as net assets. Net assets are reported in three categories.

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt attributable to

the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets not meeting the definition of the two preceding
categories. Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources imposed by management
which can be removed or modified.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and 2) grants, contributions and interest that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements, other then agency funds. Agency funds use the full accrual basis of accounting but do
not have a measurement focus and therefore report only assets and liabilities. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the currens financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers property tax revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period and all other revenues to be available if they
are collected within 90 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. The City has determined that
there are various revenues, except for property tax revenues, including reimbursement of
expenditures that are received between 60 and 90 days and therefore have adopted a 90 day
availability period in order to keep the revenues and expenditures in the same cusrent period.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which taxes have been levied, provided they
are collected within 60 days after year-end. Sales taxes are considered measurable and available at
the time the underlying transaction occurs provided they are collected within 90 days after year-end.
Income and other taxes are considered measurable and available when they have been collected by
the state or other levying authority. Special assessments receivable are recognized at the time of
their levy. The related revenue is recognized at the time the assessment is due or collected.
Licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures and miscellaneous revenue are recognized as revenue
when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment
earnings are recognized as earned.
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The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financia
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The employee benefits fund accounts for property taxes levied for police and fire retirement
contributions, FICA and IPERS, and other employee benefits, as provided in Section 384.6 of the
Code of lowa.

The local option sales tax fund accounts for revenue from the 1% local option tax approved by the
voters of the City and designated for storm and sanitary sewer improvements. Effective May 1,
2003, voters approved using up to 10% of future local option tax for the Pearl of the Mississippi
Project.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal
and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The street and sidewalk improvements fund accounts for annual street resurfacing, curb
replacement, and sidewalk construction programs,

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water poliution control fund accounts for the operation of a municipally owned sewer
treatment plant which provides services to the City. All activities necessary for such services are
provided for in this fund as well as plant and various sewer system improvement projects.

The transfer station fund accounts for the operation of the refuse transfer station and recycling
center.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for equipment services, central supply distribution and employee
health and dental benefits provided to other departments of the government on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary fund types are used to account for assets held by a governmental unit in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or
other funds. Following is the City’s fiduciary fund type:

Agency funds function fo account for assets held by the City as an agent for payroll processing,
housing programs, and miscellaneous other entities.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the oprion of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
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As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges
between the government’s sewer and transfer station functions and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2} operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include alt taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the enterprise funds and of the goversment’s internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy
to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities and Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

State statute authorizes the City, the Agency, and MP&W to invest public funds in obligations
of the United States government and its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or
other evidences of deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the City
Council; prime eligible bankers acceptances; cerfain high-rated commercial paper; perfected
repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment companies; certain
joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage district.

The City is authorized by the City Council to invest in obligations of the United States
government and its agencies and instrumentalities; in certificates of deposit or other evidences
of deposit at federally insured depository institutions; and investrnents in joint investment trusts
authorized by resolution of the City Council.

Investments of the City, the Agency, and Muscatine Power & Water are stated at fair value with

the exception of the investment in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust which is stated at
amortized cost.
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2. Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "advances to/from other funds" to
indicate the non-current nature of the interfund loans. All other outstanding balances between
funds are reported as "due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate they are not available for
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

The County Treasurer bills and collects taxes for the City. Taxes for the year ended June 30,
2009, were certified with the County during the preceding fiscal year and were due in two equal
instaliments by September 30, 2008 and March 31, 2009. Any County collections on the 2008-
2009 tax levy remitted to the City within sixty days subsequent to June 30, 2009, are recorded
as property tax revenues in the governmental fund statements. Taxes not collected and remitted
to the City within sixty days subsequent to June 30, 2009, are delinquent and have been
recorded as receivables and deferred revenue in the governmental fund statements. By statute,
the city is required to certify its budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal year.
However, by statute, the tax askings and budget certification for the following fiscal year
becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax
receivable has been recorded. the related revenue is deferred and will not be recognized as
revenue until the year for which it is levied in both the governmental fund statements and the
government-wide statements.

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items
Inventories of proprietary funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased. The City's inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.

MP&W's inventories are valued at their weighted average cost.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4, Restricted Assets

Restricted assets of the Transfer Station fund represents amounts set aside under law to provide
for Transfer Station closure costs.

Restricted assets of the Water Pollution Control fund represents amounts set aside as required
under the State Revolving Fund loan to pay interest and principal of the bonds and any purity

obligations.

Restricted assets of the Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency represent amounts set aside
under law to provide for the cost of future landfill closure and post-closure costs.

Restricted assets of Muscatine Power & Water represent amounts set aside under the terms of
the bond resolutions relating to the utility’s revenue bonds or by the Board.
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5. Capital Assets

7.

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets {e.g., roads,
bridges, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide statement of net assets and in the proprietary funds
statement of net assets. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $3,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess
of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at
the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land improvements 10-50
Buildings 15-40
Building improvements 5-40
Equipment 4-20
Vehicles 4-15
Sewer system 50
Infrastructure 7-75

MP&W'’s utility plant is stated at original cost, which includes the cost of contracted services,

material, labor, overhead and, on significant projects, an allowance for borrowed funds used
during construction,

Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. Vacation pay is payable to employees upon retirement or termination. Sick pay is
payable upon retirement, in which event employees are paid for 40% of all eligible hours.
Beginning July 1, 2000, retirement sick pay for non-union employees is paid o a post-
employment health plan to be used for health care cost of the retirees. Beginning July 1, 2001,
retirement sick pay for Fire bargaining unit and Blue/White Collar bargaining unit employees is
also paid to the post employment health plan. A liability for those amounts is reported in the
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations
and retirements.

Intangible Asset

On January 3, 2003, MP&W acquired a cable television system and the related assets serving
subscribers in and around the cities of Muscatine and Fruitland, lowa at a price of $9 miltion.
Of this amount, $7.7 million was considered an intangible asset and is being amoritized over 10
years, ending in 2012,
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NOTE 2.

8.

9.

}0‘

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest rate method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmentat fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued 18 reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for

use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans
that are subject to change.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of rekated debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced
by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net assets invested in capitat assets, net of related debt excludes
unspent bond proceeds. As of June 30, 2009, there were unspent bond proceeds of $76,526 in
the Other Capital Projects Fund. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use through enabling legislation or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

Net assets restricted through enabling legislation consists of $383,577 for public works,
$207,408 for employee benefits and $37,835 for public safety.

The City first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

BUDGETS

The City prepares and adopts an annual budget on a function basis for the City as a whole, rather
than af the fund level, as prescribed by lowa statutes. The State of Towa requires the annual budgets
for the year beginning July 1 be certified to the County Auditor no later than March 15 preceding the
beginning of the fiscal year. Preliminary budget review of all operating department requests is
conducted by the City Administrator. The budget proposal as presented to the City Council by the
City Administrator i1s a complete financiat plan for the upcoming fiscat year. The proposal is
submitted on or before the first Monday of February. The City Council holds various budget
meetings with the City Administrator, Finance Director, department heads, and boards and
commissions, as well as holding a public hearing prior to adopting the budget. The Councit adopts
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the budget by resolution and certifies it to the County Auditor by the 15th of March preceding the
beginning of the fiscat year. This budget becomes the appropriation for the operations of the City.

After the initial annual budget is adopted, it may be amended for specified purposes. Budget
amendments must be prepared and adopted in the same manner as the original budget. Management
is not authorized to amend the budget or to make budgetary transfers between functions without the
approvat of the City Council. For the year ended June 30, 2009, the budget was amended twice
which increased expenditures in total by $3,708,583. The increase includes costs resulting from the
2008 flood as well as increased costs due to changes in capital project construction schedules.

The City Council also approves a five-year capital improvement program. This capital improvement
program 1s reviewed and revised annually by the City Council; a public hearing also is held in regard
to proposed capital improvements for the City.

Annual budgets are adopted tor all funds, with the exception of certain internal service and
permanent funds, on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, except that encumbrances are also recognized as a valid and proper charge against
the budget appropriations in the year in which the commitment was issued. These budgets are
presented in a function format. The budget must include the amount to be raised by property
taxation, income from sources other than property taxation, and expenditures for each function -
Public Safety, Public Works, Health and Social Services, Culture and Recreation, Community and
Economic Development, General Government, Debt Service, Capital Projects, business-type
activities and non-program. The legal level of centrol (the tevel on which expenditures may not
legally exceed appropriations) is the function level.

Revenue is credited to the individual fund types while expenditures/expenses are classified according
to function areas within the specific funds for budgetary control purposes. Encumbrances and
expenditures/expenses are compared to budget appropriations according to the ten general function
designations.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrances include purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditures of
resources, which reserve a portion of the appropriation. For financial reporting purposes,
encumbrances outstanding at year-end are recognized and reflected as a reserved portion of the fund
balance. Actual expenditures are recognized only when the goods or services are actually received.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against the
budget appropriations in the year in which the commitment was issued. Encumbrances do not lapse
at year-end and provide authorization for expenditure the following year. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at year-end.

For budgetary purposes, all general obligation bond payments, including those which for financial
reporting purposes are accounted for through the enterprise funds, are budgeted through the debt

service fund.

Actual expenditures for the year did not exceed the budgeted amounts in any of the functional areas.
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The deposits and investments of the Solid Waste Agency are pooled with those of the City.
Disclosures referring to deposits and investments of the City include the pooled amounts belonging

to the Agency.

As of June 30, 2009, the deposits and investments of the City consist of the following:

Petty cash and undeposited cash $ 72,903
Cash in bank 285,877
Savings accounts 38,911
Money market accoumnts §,118,299
lowa Public Agency Investment Trust 647,219
Certificates of deposit 8,985,000

As of June 30, 2009 the carrying amount of the City's deposits with financial institutions totaled
%$17.428,087 and the bank balances were $17,473,148. These bank balances were entirely covered
by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of Towa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

The City invests in the Diversified portfolio of the Jowa Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT).
[PAIT was created pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 28E in 1987 to enable eligible lowa public
agencies to safely and effectively invest their available operating and reserve funds. The
Diversified portfolio has followed established money market mutual fund investment parameters
designed to maintain a $1 per unit net asset value since inception and was registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) in accordance with 17 C.F.R. Section 270.2a-7 in May
1993. The Diversified Fund was among the first local government investment pools in the country
to do so and has been formally regulated by the SEC since that time. The fair value of the City's
position in the IPATT pool is the same as the value of the pool.

Interest rate risk — The City’s investment policy limits the investment of operating funds (funds
expected to be expended in the current budget year or within 15 months of receipt) in instruments
that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in investments
with maturities longer than 397 days but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and use of
the City.

Credit risk — The City's investment policy provides that City funds may be invested in interest
bearing money market accounts, interest bearing checking accounts and certificates of deposit at any
approved bank in the City of Muscatine. Approved banks must be on the list of banks approved for
public investments by the Treasurer of the State of lowa and investments must be entirely covered
by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of lowa. City funds may also be invested in obligations of the United States government, its
agencies and instrumentalities and in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT). The City’s
investment in IPAIT is unrated.

Concentration of credit risk — The City’s investment policy is to diversify its investment portfolio.
Assets shall be diversified, where possible, to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over
concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or a specific class of securities.
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Custodial credit risk — deposits — In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City's deposits are entirely covered
by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no toss of public funds.

Custodial_credit risk — investments — For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City had no custodially-held
investments during the year.

As of December 31, 2008 MP&W's deposits and investments consist primarily of U.S. Treasury
obligations and Federal agency obligations as follows:

Fair
Value
Cash $ 9,511,336
U.5. government securities 48.769.634
$ 58,280,970

As of December 31, 2008 the carrying amount of MP&W's deposits with financial institutions
totaled $8,990.323, and the bank balances were $9,165,384. These bank balances were entirely
covered by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter
12C of the Code of Towa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories
to insure there wilt be no loss of public funds.

It is the policy of Muscatine Power & Water to maintain all deposits and investments within
category one in accordance with GASB No. 3 which includes authorized investment vehicles that are
insured or registered or which are collateralized by or evidenced by securities held by the utility or
its agent in the utility’s name.

Credit Risk

As of December 31, 2008, Muscatine Power & Water’s investments were rated as follows:

Investment Type Standard & Poor’s Moody’s

US agencies AAA Aaa

It is the poticy of Muscatine Power & Water to have securities held by the utility or a third
party custodian and rated within the highest or second highest rating category of a nationally
recognized rating agency.
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NOTE 4.

Concentration of Credit Risk

At December 31, 2008, Muscatine Power & Water investments held with issuers, each totaling
more than 5 percent of the total portfolio, were concentrated as follows:

Issuer % of Portfolio
Federal Home Loan Bank B92%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp, 7%

It is the policy of Muscatine Power & Water to diversify its investment portfolio, Assets are
diversified 1o eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over-concentration of agsets in a specific
maturity, a specific issuer, or a specific ciass of securities.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. At December 31, 2008, Muscatine Power & Water’s investments were as follows:

Investment Tvpe

Muturity In Years

Fair Value

Less than | Year 1-5 Years

Greater than 5 Years

U.S. agencies $ 22,299,034

$ 10,848,594 $ 9260919

$ 2,190,121

Muscatine Power & Water’s investment policy addresses maturity limitations by requiring
operating funds to be invested in instruments that mature within 397 days. Non-operating
funds may be invested in instruments with maturities fonger than 397 days as long as the
maturities are consistent with the needs and use of the utility. One of the investment policy’s
primary objectives is to maintain the necessary liquidity to match expected liabilities.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Interfund balances at June 30, 2009 consist of the following:

Due from/ Advance to
Street and
Sidewalk Nonmajor Transfer Nonmajor Riternal
Improvements Governmental  Station Enterprise Service Fiduciary Totals
§| Nonmujorgovemmenial S 9800 5 121415 § - s - s - % 131224
‘g Localoption szles tax - 650,500 - . . - 650,500
51 Water pollution control - - §ORE.9R3 106,313 - - £,195,290
."; Nonnxjor enterprise - - 4,151 - - 4,151
:g: Inlermnal service - - - - 12,481 - 12,481
w] Fiduciary - - - - - 52,108 52,108
&
Total $ U800 % TIL9IS 3 LORRORY § 110464 § 12 481 52,108 § 2045760
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NOTE 5.

The $1,088,983 balance due from the Transfer Station is the result of a loan for working capital
needs resulting from amounts in accounts receivable at year end and reduced waste volumes being
received at this facility. It is not expected that this amount will be eliminated in the subsequent year.
The Street and Sidewalks Improvements and non-major governmental funds balance due from other
funds of $9.809 and $771,915, respectively, are primarily due to capital project costs which will be
funded from bond proceeds or grants in 2009/2010.

The remaining balances result from () working capital for inventory in the enterprise and internal
service funds, and (2) the time lag of receipts into the various funds.

In addition, the City has a loan to Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency, a discretely presented
component unit of $1,850,925 as of June 30, 2009. The loan is for capital costs including costs for
the development of new cells for disposal of waste at the landfill. The new celis are expected to
have a capacity of 300,000 tons of waste or 7.5 years of use based on recent annual waste volumes.

Interfund transfers for the year are as follows:

Transfers from

Sireet and Water
Tmployee  Local Optlon  Debe Sidewalk Monmsjor Pollution Noonmjor Internal
General Beoeflis  Sates Tan  Servee Inywovements Cover tal  Uentrol  Enicrprise  Service Totals
Getieral 5 . L2982 % - & - b3 1473 % 2007860 § . BoadA00 5 SO0000 % 533620

Street and sidewalk

2 UNPROVENENTS - - - - 80,900 - - HO.50)
73 Monumpr govenimental 162526 - 2T - - 7917 Lo . - 4E2614
% Water pollution contrel - . ENER N | - - - - . 341,17
@i Transter station - - FltER o - - - - - TR
=1 Nonmajor enterprise 235456 - - 235456

Tortal B ORORY % 1752483 % 3351442 % TRAM R 1473 5 A0G6EE % 1900 % 504400 3990 wiiasg

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that State statutes or the budget requires them to
be collected in to the fund that State statutes or the budget requires them to be expended.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Transfer Station assets of $29,095 at June 30, 2009 are classified as restricted because their use is
restricted to provide for Transfer Station closure costs.

Water Pollution Control assets of $160,998 at June 30, 2009 are classified as restricted because their
use is restricted under the State Revolving Fund loan.

Soltd Waste Agency assets of $927,404, at June 30, 2009 are classified as restricted because their
use is restricted to provide for the cost of future landfill closure and post-closure costs.

MP&W's restricted assets represent amoumts set aside under the terms of the bond resolutions
relating to the utility’s revenue bonds or by the Board. In accordance with the covenants of the
bond resolutions, the amounts have been segregated into various funds or accounts. The rate
stabilization fund may be used for capital or other funding requirements, and the extraordinary
operation and maintenance account may be used for extraordinary operating expenses and debt
service at the discretion of the Board. In accordance with the communications loan agreement, the
construction fund may be used for the purpose of paying or reimbursing costs of improvements to
the communications utility in accordance with the provisions and requirements of the tax agreement,
and the communications system loan repayment sinking fund is used solely for the purpose of
paying the interest on the principal of the bank loans.
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NOTE 6.

The composition of the restricted funds as of December 31, 2008 was as follows:

Current accounts:
Bond sinking fund

Rate stabilization fund
Extraordinary operation and

maintenance account

Construction fund

Total restricted assets

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Primary government

{iovermnental activities:

Capital assets. not heing depreciated:
Landl

A work

Consiuelion it progress

Tzl capital assels. nor being deprecined

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land wiproyemenis

Buildinps

Building improvewents
Figuiprocat

Yehicks

Infastructure

Total capital 1ssets, heing depreciared

Less accwmmiaied depreciation fon
Land improvements

Hreldings

Building improvenents

Hyuipnent

Vehickes

Infastructure

Tatataccumalated depreciarion
Total capitzl assees, being depreciated, net

Govermrental activities capital asxets. net

5 12,654,975
5,977,828

29.964,791

1,369

Beginning Fading
Ralance Incregses Decreases Transfers Ralance
5 8814037 3 129,55} 3 - - 5 B%dlSRT
5287776 22,500 . - 5,308,776
81,4 1, 2306400 (381,94 - 1,250,640
F4.483,257 1.402.69) (381,944 - 15,504,003
15,215,464 171,462 - - 15,386,093}
TIHLO - - - 7,730,030
1,125,227 11,964 - - 1,131
47T18,648 83718 (146.125) - 4,656,241
4,338,142 140,475 (1146149 16,268 4,350,266
51,007,208 2057516 - - 53964814
85,034,813 2,463,135 (260748 16,268 87235472
(3,862881) (667 342) - 16,530,223}
(4,326,796) (179, 7063 (4,506,592)
{463.112) (74,4223 - {53753
(2,855964) (282,991 136,533 - (2802420
(2.997.459) (268,552) 102,044 [16,268) 13, 179,675)
(22,219.273) (L3877 - - (2A607,045)
133,525 485) (2.860.915) 239,17 {16,268) (41.163,491)
46,509,328 {383, 780) {21,567} 46,001,981
% 60,992,585 b 1006510 o dinsiy F 61595984
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Beginning Fhding
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Ralance

Business-type Aclivities:
Capital assets, nor being depreciated:
Land T 2823143 £ - 3 - 5 §  LEI3145
Construction i progress 1576864 6,644,617 13.835.007) 5,386,474
Total capital assets, not being depreciated S 00009 6,644.617 (3835007} - 7,200,619
Cupital assets, beig depreciated:
Tand rmprovements 10,573,495 1,429,993 - - [PAE FEEEL
Buildings 46,887,084 ¥LO23 {1557 - 46, 1045
Building inprovements 3086386 114,544 (1164625 3084478
Fquipment 4,638,489 126,676 {35100 - 4,759,655
Vehicles 270670 762,527 {138,541) (16,268) 3,308,388
Sewer syswem 32,815,730 3,624,652 - - 36,447,382
Total capital assels, being depreciated 100,105,774 6,424,415 (1,316,485} [16,268; 103,797,436
less accurmulated depreciation o
Lured irmprgvetnents (7,865,358} {GY1.94T) - - {R.A473,345)
Buiklings (24922727} {1.085.206) a7 nd - (25.055,919)
Building improvements {1.627,935) (148.149) 81,523 - 11,694,501}
Faguipment (2,013,238} (321,678 5510 . (2.329,406)
Yehicles (1,575,345) (255,819} 138,540 16,268 {1,676,355)
Sewer system (9,646, 39) (72 66 1) - [ 143,338,036)
Total accwmulated depreciaion (47655 572) (3121499 119587 16,268 {40, 568,616)
Total capital assets, being deprecicted, net A3.049.802 32518 (123.898) 56,2282
Bisiness type activities capital assets, net T aB444.811 b G.947.533 (39530905 5 % 64 438,439

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

Public safety b 279,642
Public works 1,539,555
Culture and recreation 995.668
Community and economic development 4,873
General government 39,199
Capitat assets held by the government’s

internal service funds are charged to the

various functions based on their usage of

the assets 1.974

Total depreciation expense —
govermnmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water pollution control plant
Retuse collection
Transfer station
Airport
Parking
Transit
Golf course
Boat harbor
Ambulance
Public housing

Total depreciation expense
business-type activities

b .. 2.860,915

$ 1740996
93.460
287,774
493,804
36,920

753449

87,221

9,807

25,840

270,228

3 3.121.499
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Discretely presented component units

Activity for the Solid Waste Agency for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as foliows:

Beginning Ending
Ralance hecreases Deeresses Balance

Capital assets, not hemg depreciaed:
Land % 1,080,604 - - i 110600008
Cinstruction in progess - L2117 - LogdN7
Total capital assets. nof being depreciated 1LOSLA 1.084,217 2,164,825
Capital ansets, being depreciated:
Land mproveirents 41,975 54468 6,343
Baildings 37.314 - krAiE)
Equipment S1317 - 3317
Eeachate collecton sysiem 16,835 616835
Total capital assers. being depreciated A 54,368 731808
Less neowmiated depreciation for:
Land inprovements 24,118 (3339 - (27657}
Buidings (T2.5%4) 1933 - (13,527}
Fuiprent (RARGY {2,396 - {10,085y
Leachaie colction system (192,970 1%.806) - [ 212,535)
Total sccunmlued depreciation i28.273) (2,734 - {265.007)
Taral capial assets, hemy depreciared. net 489, 168 27634 516,302
Solid Waste Agency capital assels, nel b3 1,569,776 1.111.831 3 2627

Activity for Muscatine Power & Water for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows.

Beginning LEnding
Halance Increases Dueoreases Transfers Balance

Capita] assets, not being depreciated:
Land and land rights 3 202921 % - % - 3 - 5 2920921
Construction work in progress 2,268,002 13,101,190 {258,181y (13,400.818) 1,704,193
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 5.194,923 13,101,190 (258.181) (11,406,818 4,631,114
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Gencralion plant 316,170.172 31085 (444 ,906) B.810.638 324,560,999
Transmission and distritckon plan 52.831.855 581.003 (44.453) 1.0354,490 54,422,985
Geieral plan 20,708,321 149,174 (914,034) 1,443,823 21,392.284
Source of supply 1,651,345 - - 223,528 1,874,873
Fumping eqipment 1.358.619 638 (44,325} 221,898 1,536,828
Puwrification cquipmant 1.052,164 - - 1.052,164
Distriion system 14377164 30N .N9K (136,033} 593,116 15,135,545
Metwork operatinns plane 24,223,387 1,535,573 (53,366} | (54,127 26.757.721
‘' otal capital assets heing depreciated 432373027 2598671 11.63%,117) 13,406,818 446,739,309
Less accumulared depreciation fut
Cenerution plant (204,024,301} 103 10.808) 444 906 - (213,890,2003)
T eansmission and distribution plant {34,541,688) 12,028,944} 51,339 (36,519,297
{ieneral plant (14.172,776) 11.539,60566) 573,843 (14,838,599,
Unallocated contribution in aid of construction (6604887 - - (a0 484
Source of supply 1940,271) {55.044) - {1,045.315)
Prmping equipment {478.146) (44 10H0 44,320 - (477,920
Purification system (664,134 (25,0807 - - (692,214
Drscribution system {5,127.238) A7, 160 136.033 - 15.308,363)
Network operations plant and general plant (13,823,430} {1,550,952) 36.69G - (15,337.683)
Total accumiated depreciation (274.482,472) (15,874,758 1547146 - [2BRIT0.ONA)
Total capital assels. being depreciated, net 157 840,555 (13,276,087 (31,971} 13,406,818 157969 315
Muscatine Power & Water capital assets, net $ 163085478 % (174.897) § (310,152} § $ 162,600,429
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NOTE 7,

LONG-TERM DEBT

General Obligation Bonds. The general obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2009 total
$12,808.,713. These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 2.25% 1o 4.00%. Portions of the
general obligation bond issues have been used to acquire or expand the enterprise fund facilities. In
some instances, revenue generated by the enterprise funds is used to pay the general obligation debt
principal and interest. The liability for those bonds, which are expected to be paid by the enterprise
funds, is included in those funds.

General obligation bonds as of June 30, 2009 consist of the following individual issues:

ksue Andount Interest Balance Goner I Busi Type
Ehaete E d Rates 6/30/2009 Activities Activities
Ceneral oblig®ion bands
Ceoerl corporate &2 S 1, 78000010 2.25.3.00 3 RANIR%6 (1) % A886 § -
Cicneryl curporale & 112008 2,990,000 375406 2359117 (%) 2359.117 -
Cenen corpurnate & 17008 5,120,060 300350 49712389 () 4.4972.389 -
Genentl efunding 112008 6,360,100 303,25 4656321 (4 1102106 3554113

b 12,808,713 M 0154498 % 3,554,215

. Netofunamortzed discount of 34.114

. Nt of unamoniisd discount of 310,883

L Metof unamoritzed premim of $2.359

Net of unamonlzed premiumddeferrad charges of $233,679

Aot —

Amnual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Fnding CGovernmental Business-Type
June 30 Principal terest Principal Interest
2010 5 1,297,575 % 339714 3 656,938 & 118,807
2011 1,389,803 273,18 699.621 07,825
2012 L.[62,682 229,130 F07,553 75,563
2013 1.207.682 191,418 732,552 51,188
2014 923,716 150.506 757,551 26,000
2015-2018 3.272.956 270,043 - -

5 9234498 $ 1428257 § 3554215 § 369,383

Tax Increment Revenue Bonds. The City issued $1,795,000 of ax increment revenue bonds in
June 1997. The proceeds of these bonds were used to pay a portion of the cost of carrying out
projects in the Downtown Urban Renewal Area. Repayment of these bonds is to come from the
incremental taxes from the Downtown Tax Increment Fund. In April 2004 the City issued an
additional $420,000 of tax increment revenue bonds for property acquisition in the Downtown
Urban Renewal Area and in June 2004 $1,885,000 of tax increment bonds were issued to fund
public improvements in the Southend Urban Renewal Area.

TIF Revenues Pledged. The City has pledged a portion of future urban renewal tax increment
revenues to repay the Tax Increment Revenue Bonds noted above. The urban renewal tax increment
revenues were projected to produce 100% of the debt service requirements over the life of the bonds.
Total principal and interest remaining on the bonds are $2,731,182 payable through 2021. For the
current year, principai and interest paid and total incremental tax revenues were $422.615 and
$671,051, respectively.

55



Tax increment revenue bonds as of June 30, 2009 consist of the foilowing issues:

Issne Amount Interest Balance
Date Essued Rates June 30, 2009
Tax Increment Revenue Bonds:
Urban Renewal Tax Increment
Revenue Bonds 6/26/1997 $ 1,795.000 5.55-5.75% $ 450,000
Urban Renewal Tax Increment
Revenue Bonds 412372004 420,600 3.35.4.25 225,000
Urban Renewal Tax Increment
Revenue Bonds &6/24/2004 1.885,000 3.70-5.80 1,440 000
$ 2,115,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for tax increment revenue bonds are as follows:

Year Fnding Governmental
June 30 Principal Interest
2010 3 30000 % 108,933
2011 325000 94,173
2032 340,000 78,323
2013 105,000 61,308
2014 110,000 56,320
2015-2019 630,000 191,460
2020-2021 265,000 25,665
3 2115000 % 616,182

Annual debt service requirements for the state revolving fund revenue loan are as follows:

Year Ending Business-Type
June 30 Principal Interest Fees
2010 b - 3 167946 % 41,250
2011 325000 107,946 41,250
2012 342006 92,156 39.938
2013 560,000 75,936 38,583
2014 578.000 59,136 37183
2015 597,000 41.796 35,738
M6 616.000 23,886 34,245
20017 180,195 5406 32,705
$ 3,508,195 § 514248 % 300,892

56



Changes in Long-Term Debt. Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as
follows:

Primary government

Beginning fnding e Within
Balunce Additions Redoctions RBalunce One Yeur
Governmenial activities:
Bonds payahie:
Genetal obligation bonds § 10509384 3 - % (1220837 % 9,288,547 3 1310615
Tax increment revenue bonds 2415000 - £300,000) 211500 JI0,000
Less tssuance discounts (47 0% - 13,041 (34,040 (130400
Total bonds payable 12,877,294 - {1,507.,796) 1,369,498 1,607,575
Conpensated absences 1126135 663,196 (619,7435) 1,170,186 394,631
CGovemmental activity
long-temt Habilities 5 003429 % 663,796 5 {2.127.541) & 12,539,684 b 2,200 206
Business-type activilies:
Bomdds payable:
Ceneral obligation bonds % 4845616 3 -3 (LRetes s 3,766,453 g 599,385
State revolving fund loan 00,783 2,991,412 - 3.598.195 -
Less issuvance discounts-general
obhigation bonds {258,587 - 46,349 (212,235 (42 447}
Total bonds payablke 5,193,812 2.991,412 {1,B32.814) 7,152,410 656,938
Compensated absences 278573 231691 {193,340) EI1LR:1- 167,392
Clos ure/pos t-closure obligation 29,005 - - 29,005 -
Business-type activity
kong-term liabilitics 3 5501480 % 3,223,103 % (1,226.160) % 7498423 3 $24,330

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term
liabilities for these funds are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At
year-end $38,177, of internal service funds compensated absences are included in the above
amounts. Also, for the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liguidated by
the general fund.

Discretely presented component units

Activity for the Solid Waste Agency for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:

Beginning Fnding Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Compensated absences b 952§ 8310 % {’2%) $ 933 b 933
Closure/posi-closure obligation 1,773,718 52.7%7 - 1,826,505 -
Total liabilitics b 1,774,670 § 53547 % (R29) % 1,827 438 933
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Activity for Muscatine Power & Water Electric Utility for the year ended December 31, 2008, was
as follows:

Beginning Fnding

Balance Additions Reductions Batance
Series 2001 revenue honds b 49060000 § - $ - b3 49,090,000
Series 2002 revenue bonds 12,595,000 - {12,595,000) .
61,685,000 - (12,505,000} 49,090,000
Unamostized portion of deferred boss on refundings (O87,175) B 267726 (419,449)
Unamortized portion ef revenue bond preimons Bloa0a - (236430 474,174
Note payable to bank - RES, 000 - BHE,000
Tuotal long-termdebt SLBORAN § BEE000 % {12,663,75) 0,032,725
[ess cument instalkments 12,595,000 14,305,000
Long-termdebt, net of currcnt portion $ 49,213,430 i 38721725

The revenue bonds, which rank on a parity with each other, are secured by future net revenues of the
electric utility as defined in the bond resolutions. At December 31, 2008, they mature and bear
interest as fotlows:

Series 2001 Bank Loan

Matuerity Principal Principal

Dute Amount Interest Amonnt Interest
Janvary 1,

20659 5 11,305,000 $ 2,389,063 b - s 22607

2040 11,930,000 F750,100 - 41,736

2011 12,585,060 £,075,938 - 44,736

12 13,270,000 364,925 163,725 37 888

2013 - - 169,275 30,063

2014-201 8 - - 555 000 39,780

In prior years, the Utility provided for the advance refunding of certain revenue bonds. In connection
with these advance refundings, the Utility deposited certain amounts in irrevocable trust funds for the
repayment of all principal and interest on the advance refunded bonds. The Utility is contingently
liable for repayment of these bonds which in the aggregate amounted to $60,190,000 at December
31, 2008. The bonds and corresponding trust funds are not included on the balance sheet at
December 31, 2008 as the outstanding bonds are considered defeased.

All electric utility revenues, net of specified operating expenses, are pledged as security of the
electric debt until fully paid. Principal and interest paid in 2008 and electric utility net revenues are
as follows:

Principal and interest paid $15,544,331
Net revenues 19,167,458

Annual future principal and interest payments are expected to require 7% of electric utifity
operating revenues.

The bond resolutions contain certain covenants which among others, require the collection,
segregation and distribution of utility piant revenue into various segregated funds, place certain
restrictions on future borrowing and leasing or disposition of assets, require the maintenance of a
minimum debt service coverage ratio and require that minimum insurance coverage be maintained.
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NOTES8.

NOTE 9.

In December 2008, the communications utility acquired loans from three local banks to cover the
digitai transition project and other capital costs. The loan agreement allows the communications
utility to draw down a total amount of up to $4,800,000 through December 31, 2010, at an annual
interest rate of 4.7%. Interest will be paid semi-annually beginning July 1, 2009; principal repayment
will be paid annually beginning January 1, 2012, As of December 31, 2008, the communications
atility has borrowed $888,000.

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST

State and federal laws and regulations require the Muscatine County Solid Waste Management
Agency 1o place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure.

Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill
stops accepting waste, the Agency reports a portion of these closure and post closure care costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The
%1,826,505 reported as landfill closure and post closure care liability at June 30, 2009, represents the
cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 64.15% of the estimated capacity of the
current landfill property. The Agency will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and
post closure care of $942,539 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled over the 19 remaining
years.

These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post closure care in 2009.
The Agency expects the currently-permitted fandfill property to reach its capacity in 2028. Actual
costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations. The Agency
has begun to accumulate resources to fund these costs in accordance with state and federal
requirements.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
Iowa Public Employees Retirement System

The City contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of lowa. IPERS
provides retirement and death benefits which are established by State statute to plan members and
beneficiaries. TPERS issues a publicly available financial report that inciudes financial statements
and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box
9117, Des Moines, lowa, 50306-9117.

In the current year plan members were required to contribute 4.10% of their annual covered salary
and the City was required to contribute 6.35% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements
are established by State statute. The City’s contributions to IPERS for the years ended June 30,
2009, 2008 and 2007 were $424,711, $390,058 and $356,337 respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa

The City contributes to the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Towa, which is a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a Board of Trustees. The
Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits which are established by State statute to plan
members and beneficiaries. The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes
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NOTE 10.

NOTE 11.

financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing
to Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa, 7155 Lake Drive, Suite 201, West Des
Moines, lowa 50266.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.35% of earnable compensation and the City’s contribution
rate for the year ended June 30, 2009 was 18.75% of earnable compensation. Contribution
requirements are established by State statute. The City's contributions to the Plan for the years
ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $689,566, $864,972 and $917,640, respectively, which
met the required minimum contribution for each year.

International City Management Association

According to specific provisions of the State Code of lowa, a police chief or a fire chief of a local
participating government may request from the Police Retirement Board or Fire Retirement Board
exemption from the retirement system. This exemption allows that such contributions of the City for
their retirement may be made to the International City Management Association's (ICMA) retirement
program. The amount is not to exceed an amount which would have been made under the provisions
of Section 411 of the State Code of Iowa. The police chietf of the City has taken this option.
Therefore, during the year the City has contributed a total of $10,092 to this retirement program for
the police chief. The City's contribution rate was comparable to the FICA and TPERS rates for other
City employees.

Also, the Jowa Public Employees Retirement System regulations exempt the City Administrator from
participating in the state retirement system. Therefore, the City has made a retirement contribution to
the ICMA retirement system for the City Administrator in leu of IPERS. For the year ended June
30, 2009, this contribution totaled $10,709, which represents a contribution tevel of 6% plus a lump
sum contribution of $3,500.

DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

Several funds of the City have a fund balance deficit or have a deficit net assets as of June 30, 2009.
These funds and the amount of the deficit are as follows:

Deficit
Fund Amount
Capital projects:

Street and sidewalk improvements $ 283,605
Community development improvements 41,802
Other street improvements 118,280
Riverfront improvements 677,858
Other public improvements 247,630

None of these deficits are considered a violation of any law, and are expected to be eliminated
through future operations.

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH AND DENTAL CARE BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan description: The City sponsors a single-employer health care plan for its active and retired
employees. Upon normal retirement, employees have the option of continuing health and dental
insurance coverage at their cost until the age of 65,
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The City, additionally, has an employee benefit program for employees laid off as a result of budget
reductions. The employee must be at least 35 years of age but no more than 65 years of age except
for the case of a police officer or a firefighter who must be at least 50 years of age but no more than
55 years of age. Employees must also have had at least |5 years of continuous service with the City.
The City will provide 100% paid single medical insurance for the employee until the employee
reaches the age of 65 or until the employee is re-employed in a position where medical insurance is
available or obtains medical insurance from another source. The City will pay 90% of the family
coverage if such individual had family coverage during the time of employment for a period of one
year after termination after which the City will pay 75% the second year, 50% the third year and 25%
after the fourth year. Participation by the City will cease in the fifth year. For police officers and
firefighters, this provision is effective until the age of 55

In 1986, Congress approved the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 which
includes the provision for the continuation of group insurance coverage to either the employee or
dependents depending upon the circumstances. For the City, this coverage includes health insurance
and dental insurance. The death of a covered employee, a divorce or legal separation of the covered
employee from the employee’s spouse, the covered employee's commencement of Medicare
coverage, the cessation of a dependent child’s coverage under the terms of the plan, the termination
of employment other than by reason of gross misconduct of the covered employee or the reduction of
hours of the employee are events which would atlow for such continuvation. The continuation period
18 thirty-six months except for the termination of employment or reduction of hours, which allows for
only an eighteen-month period. The premium for coverage during the continuation period is to be
paid by the employee or the employee's dependent to the City on a monthly basis. It is the
employee's responsibility to notify the employer of any change in status, which might involve the
continuation of coverage.

Funding policy: The City establishes and amends contribution requirements. The current funding
policy of the City is to pay health claims as they occur. This arrangement does not qualify as OPEB
plan assets under GASB reporting.

The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing. For the year ended June
30, 2009, the City contributed $137,68 1, which was net of retirees premiums received of $157,749,

Apnual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The City's annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No.
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial labilities (or funding excess) over a
period not-to-exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the City’s annuat
OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes on the City’s
net OPEB obligation to the postemployment health plan:

Annual Required contribution $ 160,595
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 160,595

Contributions and payments made 137,681
Increase in net OPEB obligation 22,914

Net OPEB obligation — July 1, 2008 -
Net OPEB obligation — June 30, 2009 3 22914
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NOTE 12.

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2009 (transition year) arc as follows:

Annuat Percentage of

OPEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2009 $ 160,595 85.7% $ 22914

Funded status and funding progress: As of July 1, 2008 the most recent valuation date, the plan
was 0 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,437,500 and the actuarial
value of assets is zero resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $1,437,500.
The covered payroll {annual payrolt of active employees covered by the plan) was $9,070,314 and
the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 15.8 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumption about future employment, mortality and the health care cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabitities for benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the emplover and the plan members) and
included the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations,

In the actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 5 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) which is based on the
expected long-term investment return of the employer’s own investments used to pay plan benefits,
and an annual health care cost trend rate of 8 percent reduced by decrements of 1 percent annually to
an ultimate rate of 5 percent. The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar of projected payroll on
an open basis. The amortization of UAAL is done over a period of 30 years.

INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS

The City has, during recent years, participated in several issues of industrial revenue bonds, issued
for the purpose of constructing privately owned manufacturing and other related facilities within the
City. These bonds are neither direct nor contingent liabilities of the City. The revenue from property
purchased with the bond proceeds is pledged for the full payment of principal and interest on the
bonds, and the bondholders can look only to these sources for repayment. The total bonds
outstanding for all issues 1s approximately $3,820,000 as of June 30, 2009.
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NOTE 13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the government
carries commercial insurance.

The City has established a Health Insurance Fund for insuring benefits provided to City employees
and covered dependents which is included in the Tnternal Service Funds. Health benefits were self-
insured up to a specific stop loss amount of $75,000, and an aggregate stop loss of approximately
$2,796,000 for 2009. Coverage from a private insurance company is maimtained for losses in excess
of the aggregate stop loss amount. All claims handling procedures are performed by a third party
claims administrator. Incurred but not reperted claims have been accrued as a liability based upon
the claims administrator's estimate. The estimated lability does not include any allocated or
unallocated claims adjustment expense. Settied claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in
any of the last three fiscal years.

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Health nsurance Fund
based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. The claims
Hability of $120,061 in the Health Insurance Fund is based on the requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a lability for claims be reported
if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated.

Changes in reported Habilities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 are summarized as

follows:

Liabilities at July 1, 2007 $ 134,662
Claims and changes in estimates

during fiscal year 2008 1,825,902
Claim payments (1.744.336)
Liabilities at June 30, 2008 $ 216,228
Claims and changes in estimates

during fiscal year 2009 1,922 627
Claim payments (2,018,794)
Liabilities at June 30, 2009 $ 120,001

NOTE 14, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City Attorney has reported that as of June 30, 2009, there were claims and losses that are on file
against the City. The City has the authority to levy additional taxes outside the regular limit to fund
any uninsured judgment against the City. However, it is estimated that the potential settlement of
these claims not covered by insurance would not materialty affect future financial statements of the
City.

The City has various outstanding contracts, which are accounted for in the Capital Projects, Water
Pollution Control and Public Housing funds. The remaining commitment on these contracts as of
June 30, 2009, is $19,232,500.

As a member of the Muscatine Area Geographic Information Consortium (MAGIC), the City is
responsible for one-third of the operating expenses incurred by MAGIC. The City’s contribution for
fiscal year 2010 is set at $91,690.
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The City has signed an Order for Compliance On Consent issued by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency. Provisions of the Order require the City to complete separation
of the combined sewers in the Hershey Avenue combined sewer area by December 31, 2011, and
separation of the remaining combined portions of the sewer system including the West Hill area by
December 31, 2024. Preliminary cost estimates for the projects could reach or exceed $40 mitlion.
Estimatey will be re-evaluated as planning progresses. It is anticipated that the majority of the cost
of these projects will be funded by the proceeds from the 1% local option sales tax.

The Solid Waste Agency has two outstanding contracts as of June 30, 2009 with a remaining
commitment of $649,4(X).

The Utility has a coal supply contract for a total contract minimum of 500,000 tons of coal through
the year 2009 with a fixed annuat price.

The Utility has an energy supply agreement to sell 7 megawatts of annual capacity with an 85%
minimum load factor through May 31, 2009, to an unaffiliated utility with a one year extension if
mutualtly agreed to. The contract requires the delivery of energy only if utility capacity is available
or energy can otherwise be acquired by Muscatine Power & Water from other sources if requested
by the purchaser. Such requests require the purchaser to pay for the cost of the other source plus an
administrative adder.

The Utility has contracted to sell steam to a local customer. The ten-year agreement began July 1,
2000. The customer is obligated to take a minimum annual quantity of steam each year (2,338,920
kilopounds). As part of the contract, the Utility made capital improvements of approximately $12
miliion, which are expected to be recovered in revenues from the customer under the terms of the
agreement. If the custemer elects to terminate the agreement before the end of the contract, the
customer has agreed te reimburse the Utility for any unrecovered capital improvements. The
contract was amended in 2007 to add an additional ten years to the agreement. The amendment
obligates the customer to certain environmental capital costs (approximately $2 million) and
ongoing SO2, NOX and mercury emission allowance costs. [f the contract is cancelled during the
amendment period, the customer has agreed to reimburse the Utility for any of the unrecovered
environmental capital costs.

The Utility has a rail transportation agreement with two separate companies for the delivery of coal
through December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2012, The Utility's first agreement is for coal
shipped from Powder River Basin (PRB), Wyoming to an interchange with the local delivery
carrier. There are two contracts involved in this movement between now and 20i4. The first
expires on December 31, 2009. The rate in this agreement is subject to monthly fuel surcharges and
quarterly adjustments. The second contract term is from 2010 through 2014 where the rate is firm
for the first three vears and adjusted quarterty for years 2013 and 2014 plus monthly fuel charges.

The Utility’s minimum requirement in both contracts is {00% of the tons shipped, up to the annual
tonnage nomination, from the PRB. In the event the Utility does not meet their minimum
requirement, the Utility has agreed to pay a per ton penalty for the shortfall. The other rail
agreement covers the shipment of coal from the interchange to the Utility’s electric generating
station by the local delivery carrier. The contract rate is determined by the interchange that the train
travels through, and is adjusted quarterly. There is no annual minimum tonnage requirement.
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NOTE 15. NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARDS (GASB) STATEMENTS
The City adopted the following statements during the year ended June 30, 2009:

GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Emplovers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement establishes standards for the measurement,
recognition, and display of other postemployment benefits (OPEB) expense and related liabilities or
assets, note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary information in the financial
reports. The effect of the adoption of this Statement to the City was to record a liability of $22.914
for the net other postemployment benefit obligation. The actuarial accrued liability is estimated by
an actuary to be $1,437,500 of June 30, 2009,

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations. This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting standards for pollution
(including contamination) remediation obligations, which are obligations to address the current or
potential detrimental effects of existing potlution by participating in pollution remediation activities,
such as site assessments and cleanups. This standard requires the City to estimate the components of
expected pollution remediation outlays and determine whether the outlays for those components
should be accrued as a liability or, if appropriate, capitalized when goods and services are acquired.
The adoption of this Statement had no effect on the City in the current year.

GASB Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held us Investments by Endowments. This
statement establishes consistent standards for the reporting of land and other real estate held as
investments. Endowments were previously required to report their tand and other real estate held for
investment purposes at historical cost. However, such investments are reported at fair value by
similar entities, such as pension plans. The Statement required endowments to report land and other
real estate investments at fair value. The adoption of this Statement had no effect on the City in the
current year.

As of June 30, 2009, the GASB had issued several statements not yet implemented by the City. The
statements which might impact the City are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, issued July
2007, will be effective for the City beginning with its year ending June 30, 2010, This statement
provides guidance regarding how to identify, account for, and report intangible assets. The new
standard characterizes an intangible asset as an asset that tacks physical substance, is nonfinancial in
nature, and has an initial useful life extending beyond a single reporting period. Examples of
intangible assets include easements, computer software, water rights, timber rights, patents and
trademarks. This standard provides that intangible assets be classified as capital assets (except for
those explicitly excluded from the scope of the new standard, such as capital leases). Relevant
authoritative guidance for capital assets should be applied to these intangible assets.

GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, issued
June 2008, will be effective for the City beginning with its year ending June 30, 2010. This
statement will improve how state and local governments report information about derivative
instruments in their financial statements. The Statement specifically requires governments to
measure most derivative instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The guidance
in this Statement also addresses hedge accounting requirements.
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NOTE 16.

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, issued
March 2009, will be effective for the City beginning with its year ending June 30, 2011. This
Statement is intended to improve the usefulness of information provided to financial report users
about fund balances by providing clearer, more structured fund balance classifications, and by
clarifying the definitions of existing governmental fund types. Fund balance information is among
the most widely and frequently used information in state and local government financial reports.
The GASB developed this standard to address the diversity of practice and the resulting lack of
consistency that had evolved in fund balance reporting. To reduce confusion, the new standard
establishes a hierarchy of fund balance classification based primarily on the extent to which a
government is bound to observe spending constraints.

The City's management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the City’s
financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to June 30, 2009, the City drew a total of $3,835,730 from the State Revolving Fund
loan program to be used for the wastewater treatment facility project. The interest rate is 3% and 13
paid semi-annuatly with principal being paid annually. The City’s intent is to repay the principal
and interest using revenues from wastewater customer charges.

On September 1, 2009, Muscatine Power and Water (MP&W) entered into an agreement with
Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc. to sell all the energy preduced by
MP&W, and then purchase the energy needs of MP&W back.

The Towa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) has issued a Notice of Vielation (NOV) to
MP&W for not obtaining a Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) air quality permit for
equipment that was installed in 1999/2000. The equipment was needed in order to sell steam to one
of the Utitity's customers. MP&W staff is currently addressing the issue with the IDNR.
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INFORMATION



Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Tax increment financing
Cther city tax
Licenses and permits
[Tse of maney and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Toral revenues

Expenditures:
Public safery
Public works
Health and social service
Culture and recreation

Cornunity and economic development

CGreneral govermument
Dehi. service
Capital projects
Business type activities
Total expenditures
Revenues aver {under) cxpenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of long term debt
Transters m
Transfers out
Total other fmancing sources {uses}
Ner change in fund balances

Fund halances, Juse 30, 2008

Fund balances. June 30, 2049

City of Museatine, lowa

Budgetary Comparison Schedule of

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fuid Balances -
Budget and Actuat - Budgetary Basis
Budgeted Governmentat and Proprietary Funds

Required Supplementary Informatlon

For the Year Ended June M), 209

Governmentsl Proprietary Final Budget
Funds I'unds Total Budgeted Amounts to Actoal
Actual Achaal Actual Originat Final Yariance

5 11,350,093 b - § 11350003 § 11,348,060 5 11,348,069 ) 20124
671,051 - 671.051 690,000 671,086 (35)
3,463,565 - 3,463,505 3,136,726 3521661 {58,006
324,491 21,776 346,267 344,600 325,300 20967
433,028 922,212 1,375,840 1,502,070 1310200 65,640
4,713,681 2,248,506 6,962, tR7 6,089,120 7,967,980 (1,033,793
480,654 10,363,924 10,344,583 10,948,850 10,956,600 (112,017
1,351,942 2,801,827 4,153,769 4,243 308 4,719,650 {565.881)
22,808,510 16,358,845 19,167,355 38,302,735 40,850),546 {653,191}
7,138,261 - 7.1538.261 TATTI00 FATR 700 {117,439
2,178,179 - 2178179 1,983.700 2,182.2{K) {4,021)
16,660 - 16,660 16,700 16,700 (4
3234585 - 3,234,585 2408, 1 3.648.080 (414 4K
2,648,250 2.648,250 2,482,228 2,740,674 (92.424)
1,972,063 - 1,972,093 1957016 2,057,285 {85,192)
3,227,870 - 3,227,870 3305806 3220272 {1.402)
4,800,802 - 4,806,802 3,679,000 6,161,800 (1,354,998}
- 23,118,117 23,118,117 25,373,030 25,274,843 {2.156.726}
25,242 700 23 T8.1ET 48,360,817 48,878,880 52,387.463 (4,226,646}
(2,434, 190) 6,739,272) {5, 193,462) (10,576,145} (11,736 917} 2,543,455
- 2826412 2826412 7000000 4,334,700 {1.508,288)
6459215 4,330.724 10,798,944 11,239,541 10,552,254 246,650
{8.600.067) (2,198,877} (10,798,944 ) (11,239.541) {10,552,254) {246,691}
{2, 140,852 4,967,264 2,8260412 7,000,000 4,334,700 (1,508,288}
(45750423 {1,792.,008) (6,367,050 {3.576,145) (7,402.217) 1,035,167
14,481,15t 8,175,128 22,656,279 20,422,035 22,650,633 5.646
$ 9,906,109 $ 6,383,120 b5 16,289,220 5 16,845 890 5 15248416 § 040,813

See noles to Required Supplementary Information,
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City of Muscatine, lowa
Budpet to GAAF Reconciliation
Required Supplementary Infarniation

Fuor the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Governmental Funds Proprictary Fundy

Enterprise and finterprise and
Budgeted Internal Internat Service

Service Fonds Funds

Budget GAAP Rudget GAAP

Basis Adjustments Basis Rasis Adjustments Basin
Revenues § 22808510 b LL7.024 $ 22025534 % 16,358,845 % 92381 $ 16,451,226
Expenditures/expenses 25,242 700) (1,464,175} 23,778,525 23118117 (6,960.887) 16,154 502
Met (2,434, 13y 1.581,199 iB32,94G1) (6,759.272) 7.033.268 206,724
Other firancing sources (uses), net 2,140,852y t1.347 3700 (3,488,222 4,967,264 [ 1470.042) 3488232
Bepinning fund balaocesinet assels 14,481,151 11,832 14,492,983 8,175,128 53,824,784 51,994,912
Ending fund balances/net assets $ 9,904, 1119 % 243,061 $ 10151770 b3 6,383,120 % 50,399.010 $ 65,784 B5%

Sec notes to Reguired Suppletnentary Informatiovn,
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City of Muscatine, [owa
Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial Unfunded UAALasa
Fiscal Actuarial Accrued {Over-funded) Percentuge
Year Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Ended Vahiation Net Assets {AAL) (UALL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30 Date (u) ih) (b-a) {a/h) () {{h-a)¢)
2000 7-1-2008 $ - 3 1,437,500 1,437 5003 0% £ 9,070,314 15.8%

Note - Fiscal year 2009 is the transition year for GASB Statement No. 45.

See notes to Required Supplementary Infarmation.
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2009

Basis of Budgeting

Annual budgets are adopted following required public notice and hearings for all funds with the
exception of certain internal service and permanent funds, on a basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), except that encumbrances are
also recognized as a valid and proper charge against the budget appropriations in the year in which
the commitment was issued. Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts
for goods or services and include purchase orders, contracts or other commitments for expenditures
of resources, which reserve a portion of the appropriation. For budgetary purposes, encumbrances
are recognized as a valid and proper charge against the budget appropriation in the year in which the
commitment was issued. Encumbrances do not lapse at year-end and provide authorization for
expenditure the following year. In the preceding budget schedules, expenditures include current
fiscal year encumbrances and exclude the payment of prior year encumbrances. Additionally, all
general obligation bond payments including those which for accounting purposes are accounted for
through enterprise funds are budgeted in the debt service fund. The annual budget may be amended
during the year following statutorily prescribed procedures.

Budget Functions

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of expenditures known as
functions, not by fund or fund type. These nine functions are: public safety, public works, health
and social services, culture and recreation, community and ecomomic development, general
government, debt service, capital projects and business type activities. Function disbursements
required to be budgeted include disbursements for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt
Service Fund, Capital Projects Funds, Enterprise Funds and certain Permanent and Internal Service
Funds. Although the budget document presents expenditures by fund, the legal level of control is at
the aggregated function level, not by fund. During the year, two budget amendments increased
budgeted disbursements in total by $3,708,583. This increase is primarily related to (1) flood and
windstorm damage recovery from these emergency events in 2008, and (2) increased capital project
appropriations due to changes in construction schedules. These budget amendments are reflected in
the final budgeted amounts.

During the year ended June 30, 2009 expenditures in each of the nine functions did not exceed their
budgeted amounts.

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

The information in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2008. Additional information is as follows:

L. The cost method used to determine the ARC is the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost method.

2. There are no plan assets,

3. Economic assumptions are as follows: health care cost trend rate of 8% to an ultimate rate of
5%, discount rate of 8.0% and investment return rate of 5.0%.

4. The amortization method is open period, level percentage.

70



NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are utilized to account for revenues derived from specific sources which are accounted for as
separate tunds. These funds are as follows:

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND - Accounts for block grants received to rehabilitate
and improve designated declining areas within the City.,

ROAD USE TAX FUND - Accounts for road use tax allocated to the City to be used to maintain and improve the
City's street systermn.

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND - Accounts for appropriations for and replacement of capital equipment
for general operations of the City.

COMPUTER REPLACEMENT FUND - Accounts for appropriations for and replacement of computer hardware
and software for the general operations of the City.

SECTION 8 HOUSING PROGRAM FUND - Accounts for the operations of the City's Section 8 Housing
Program which provides rental assistance to low income individuvals and families in the City.

EMERGENCY TAX FUND — Accounts for proceeds from the $.27 per $1,000 emergency tax levy.

POLICE FORFEITURES FUND - Accounts for funds received by the police department from seized and forfeited
properties under guidelines established by the U.S. Department of Justice and the State of Iowa.

DOWNTOWN TAX INCREMENT FUND - Accounts for the incremental taxes from the expunded Downtown
Urban Renewal Area and the debt service requirements on the tax increment revenue bonds which financed
improvements in the downtown area.

SOUTHEND TAX INCREMENT FUND - Accounts for the incremental taxes from the Southend Urban Renewal
Area which funded economic development incentives for expanding businesses in this area, other improvements in
the southend area, and the debt requirements on the tax increment revenue bonds which financed improvements in
the southend area.

NORTHEAST TAX INCREMENT FUND - Accounts for the incremental taxes from the Northeast Urban
Renewal Area.

CEDAR DEVELOPMENT TAX INCREMENT FUND - Accounts for incremental taxes from the Cedar
Development Urban Renewal Area.

MUSCATINE MALL TAX INCREMENT FUND — Accounts for incremental taxes from the Muscatine Mall
Urban Renewal Area.

ART CENTER SPECIAL FUNDS - Accounts for the Alice Dodge Schaeffer Trust, the principal and interest of
which is used for the conservation of furnishings, which accompanied this trust. Also accounts for the General
Ponations Trust which is used for cash donations to the Art Center either for specific purchases or general donations
to be used to fund acquisitions designated by the Board of Trustees of the Art Center. Also accounts for funds
received trom the estate of Brad Burns.



LIBRARY SPECTAL FUNDS - Accounts for the Library Gift and Memorial Trust used for general donations to the
Musser Public Library and the Homebound Delivery Trust used for donations 1o further the home delivery program.

PARKS DONATIONS FUND - Accounts for funds from the estate of Frank C. Bishop to be used for park
improvements,

INSURANCE FUND - Accounts for funds returned to the City for favorable claims experience under the City's
general liability and automobile liability policies.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Cupital Projects Funds are utilized to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other major fixed assets, with the exception of those that are financed by
Lnterprise and Internal Service Funds. The project funds reflect the nature of the capital projects and are as follows:

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENTS FUND - Accounts for urban renewal improvements,
housing rehabilitation, and building demolition projects in designated areas of the City.

OTHER STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND - Accounts for other street projects throughout the City.

RIVERFRONT IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUND - Accounts for riverfront development and levee
improvement projects.

PEARL OF THE MISSISSIPPI PROJECT FUND - Accounts for major improvement projects in the City's parks
and on the riverfront,

OTHER PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FUND - Accounts for construction and improvements to City buildings,
improvements of City park facilities and equipment and technology acquisitions..

PERMANENT FUNDS

Permanent Funds are used to account for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings and not
principal may be used for purposes that benefit the City's programs and services.

McWhirter-Gilinore Trust - Accounts for funds received which accompanied the gift of the Musser Mansion
museum facility. Interest earnings on this trust are used for the maintenance of the museum building.

Perpetual Care Trust - Accounts for the portion of cemetery lot sales designated for perpetual care.

Perpetual Care Interest Trust — Accounts lor interest earned on cemetery perpetual care funds which is required to
be used for the operation and maintenance of the cemetery facility.

Cemetery Special Trusts - Accounts for funds received, the interest earnings of which are designated to be used to
maintain specific cemetery lots or to provide floral arrangements for these lots.






Assets:
Cash and peooled investments
Investments
Receivables {nel of allowance for
uncollectibles):
Intcrest
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Accounts
Advances to other funds

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Eiabilities:
Accounls payable and accruals
Retainages payable
Advances from other funds
Deterred revenne

Total Habilities

Fund halances:

Reserved lor:
Advances to other funds
Encumbrances
Housing assistance payments
Perpetual care
Endowments
Capital projecls

Unreserved

Total fund balances

Total liablities and {und balances

City of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Comibining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2009
Special Capital
Revenue Projects Permanent Totals
$ 2,740,485 5 114.766 4 8.313 2,863,504
739,631 - 1,005,004 1,744,631
13,417 1.743 4,355 24.515
980,674 - - Y%0.674
158,794 5513 - 164,307
94 2,417 110 3,468
3325 119,862 8.037 131,224
4.637267 244,301 1.030.815 5,912,383
62.637 499 157 210 562,004
- 31,226 - 31,226
3323 760,553 8.037 TT1L815
971,550 38,935 - 1.O10,485
1,037,512 1.329.871 8.247 2.375,630
3,325 119,862 8,037 131.224
127,557 . - 127.557
167,349 - - 167.349
- - 820,110 820.110
- - 194,421 194,421
- 75,688 - 75,688
3.301.524 (1.281,126) - 2,020,404
3,599 755 (1,085,570} 1,022,568 3.536,753
$ 4.637,267 $ 0 244301 £ 1.030.815 5.912.383
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Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Litility
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safiety
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay:
Public safety
Public works
Culture anf recreation
Community and economiv development
General government

Total expenditures
Revenues over funder) expenditures
Other fnancing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources {(uses)
Net change in fund balaices
Fund balances, June 30, 2008

Fund balances, June 30, 2009

City of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement ol Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Baknces

Year Ended June 3, 2009

Special Capital
Revenue Projecty Permanent Totals

b RO0,078 $ b - 80,078
1,076 - - 1,076
3463,182 63,490 - 3526672
79,628 18,083 34,291 132,002
207,517 11709 0,620 225 846
4.611,481 3,282 40,911 4,745 674
5,654 - - 5,654
38,764 - 10,022 48,816
1,970,041 - - 1,970,041
300,030 - - JO0000
122,614 - 122614
76,111 30948 - 107,059

- 1,214,905 - 1,214,905

165,719 152410 318129

- 35,870 - 35,870

37,749 695,735 - 733484
2716682 2,179,868 10,022 4,856,572
1,894,799 (2,036,586} 30,889 £110.898)
119,663 2920951 - 412,614
{2.050,858} {17,835} {27,993) (2.0906,686)
(1,931,105) 275,116 {27.993) {1,684,0072)
{36.356) (1,761,470 2,896 (1,794,970
3,636,151 675,500} 1,019,672 5,331,723

5 3,599.755 5 (1085570 $ 1,022,368 3,536,753
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Assely,
Cashoand prioled invesrments
tavestments
Receivables (et of alkwance Ror
uncolkectiblesh:
Interest
Taxes
Accounts
Iniergovermmental
Advances to other funds

Total assets

Liahilities and fond balances

Liatlitics:
Accounts payable and accruals
Advances from other funds
Prelermed mvenue

Total liahililkes

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbranees
Rusgerved tor advances o ather funds
Reserved for howsing assistinge
ravinenis
Unreserved, unduesigransl

Total fund balances

Tutal habilities and fund bolances

City of Muscatlne, bowa

Non-Major Speclal Revenue Funds
Comblalng Balance $heet

June 30, 2009
Community Sectlon ¥

Development HRoad Use Eqquly t Cemp Houslng Emergency Police
Black Grunt Tax Replacement Replucement Frogram Tax Forfelturey
$ 603,444 § 220027 171,386 5 18,167 ) 676 b - b 3TRAS

- - - - 233,631 . -

- 501 - S0 - -

. - . - - 194,210 -

- . - . 041 . N

. 155,650 - - Sl - -

- - 3325 - - - -
611444 343,577 175,212 18,167 236,442 169,210 37835

- - 26,099 173,944 22,255 - -

- - - - . 3325 -

- - . - 3,524 145, 58S -

- 260949 13,944 25,779 199.210 -

- 127,557 - - - -

- - 3,325 - - -

- - - - 167.34% - -
i), debd 33577 18,231 4,223 33,314 - 17835
60144 SRS 149,113 4,223 220663 - 37835
3 60444 § 3577 R A $ |45.167 $ 2dndd2 199,240 $ ITHIS
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Dowatows Southend Northeast Cedar Muscatlae
Tax Tax Tax Development Mall Tax Art Center Library Parks
Increment Tncremeal Inerement Tux Increment Increerent Speciul Funds  Speclal Funds Thonations Insurance Total

B F29A10 LI NERES T 1414 % - b - B 182924 239,365 Bo6d54 5 23842 2,740,485
- - - - - 300,000 EIRELY) - - 739,631
2044 3.434 37 - - 2,983 3655 157 66 15,417
200,000 A0S LB THHG [CL1d1 - - - - 980,674
. - - - . . - - . 941
; . - - . - . - 158,794
. - - - - - - 3,325
T3] 554 |, 389911 175,941 162,000 16,141 4159407 443,020 RRRE] 23,908 4637267
- - - - - 5 134 - 62,637
_ _ - - - . - . - 1525
200,000 SEHAENNY - 162 (KK} [IENEY] - - - - 071,550
260,000 A0KH KN - 162.000 10,141 5 334 - - 107,512
- - - - - - - - - 127.557
- - - . - - - . 31325
- - - - - - - - - 167,340
S31.854 18959 L 175,941 - 4150012 H42.086 B31.69% 13,5908 5,500,524
531,854 LSRN 175,941 - - 415902 412,686 61,698 23,904 3.590.755
$ 0 T8 F 145000 175,541 5 162,00 b 10,141 5 415907 S 43020 5 61698 § 23.508 4,637,267

74



City of Muscatine, Iowa

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Combining Statement of He Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Favled June 30, 2009

Comeunity Section §
Develuproent Road Use Equi t LW ter Housing

Lkl

Block Grunt Tax Replacement Replacetaent Propram

Emergency

Tax

Police
Forfritures

Revenues:
Tunes:
Propenty 3 - b - 3 - % - 3 -
Liriliey - - - - -
Infergovernnestul:
HULD grants - - - - |,565.9352
Road use tax - | 881,131 - - -
Federal grants 1.037 . - - -
Srate grants - - - - .
142 &7 4.62%

Tl

lerteresd - -
(ther:

Dosntions - - . -

Miscellaneons 33,000} - 12,725 - £.539

%

| 89,028
LG76

"3

42464

Total revenues 34037 1. 581,131 | 5,867 87 1377119

190, 104

42,547

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safiety . - . - -
Culiure and recreacion - - - . -
Commuanity and coonomic
development Jal - - - 1735024
Cupital outlay:
Public safety - - 69.547 -
Culwre zod pecreation - - - .
General government - - - 37,749 -
Dzhr service:
Frincipal - - . . -
Interest - . - -

Total expenditares 360 - Bu.347 37.749 §735.028

12,218

Revenues over (undeer
cxpendilures 33677 ERYLL I3 [53.680) (37.662) (137.90%)

190104

3,329

Other financing sources {uses
Trunslers in

- - 79.663 40,000 -
‘Fransfers out (10375 (1,829,567 -

(1911 )

Tertal other financing sources {Uses) t103TY (1.829.567) 79,663 40,000 -

(190 104)

Mot chanee in fund balances 32,640 51,564 25,983 2,338 (157,900

Fundd balatces, June 30, 2008 27804 332013 123,130 1 485 378,572

30,320

7.506

Fund balunces, June 30. 208 ) 6,444 $ LENER B 149,113 B 4273 $ 2200663

3 37833
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Downtown Sonthend Northeast
Tax Tax Tax Art Center Library Parla
bncrement Increment Increment Special Fonds  Special Funds Donali Insurance Total

5 267303 5 403347 $ - § b $ - 3 - $ ROOLTH
- - 1,076

- - 1565952

- - Lag 1,131

- - . - 1,037

- - - - 15462 - - 15,062

14,119 24 484 LR 13,298 13765 1,355 766 79.628

- - 38329 61,026 - 99,555

- - 140 3,233 9861 107,962

281422 428,231 3861 51,9607 93,0086 1.395 10,627 4,611,451

- - - - 3654

- 12,252 25342 1,200 - 38,7

56.668 176,125 1.860 - - 1.970.041

- - - - - 76,111

- 137,451 IR B 165,719

- - - - - - 37749

205,000 95,000 - - - 300,000
44567 17,347 - - 122614
306,535 J4H.8T2 1.860 143,743 33,570 |20 27 16,682
25,00 79,350 2.001 (977763 34516 1935 10,627 1.894.70%

- - - - - 119,663
- - {30,130) (2.150,858)
- - - (30,150) FLA3T, 185
(25113 T35 2,001 (97.776) Fale 195 1 1%.523) (36.396)
556.967 1.010,552 173,940 513678 403,170 63,503 43431 3,636,151

$ 531,354 5 LOgeLI1I S 175841 $ 415000 § 442686 $ 63,608 3 23.908 b 3,599,755

76



Assets:
Cash and pooled investments
Receivables:
Interest
Intergovernmentit
Accounts
Advances to other funds

Total assets

Liabitities and fund balances

Liabitities:
Accounts payable
Retainages payable
Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for advances to other funds
Reserved for capital projects
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

City of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Major Capitat Projects Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2009
Community Other Riverfront Pearl of the
Development Street Improvement Mississippi
Improvements  Improvements Projects Project
$ 2.056 3 - $ 11,358 3 -
- - 761 .
- 4,513 - L.000
2417 - - .
4,473 4,513 12,119 1,000
50,854 39476
- 162 -
46,275 62.777 650,501 1,000
46,275 122,793 689,977 1,000
(41,802) (118.280) (677.858) .
(41.802) (118,280) (677,858) -
3 4,473 $ 4513 3 12419 3 1,000
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Other

Public
Improvements Total

¥ 101,352 $ 114768
982 1,743

- 5513

- 2417

119,862 119,862

222,196 244.301
399.827 499,157
31.064 31,226
38,935 38.935

- 760.553

469,826 £.329,871
119,862 119.862
75,688 75,688
(443,180) (1.281.120)
(247,630) (1,085.570)

$ 222,196 $ 0 244,301
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Revenues;

Intergovernmental:
Federal grants
State grants

Interest

Other:
Contributions
Reimbursement of costs

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfters in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficits), June 30, 2008

Fund batances {deficits). June 30, 2009

City of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2009
Community Other Riverfront Pearl of the
Development Street Tmprovement Mississippi
Improvements Improvements Projects Project
3 - $ 23,491 ¥ - h -
- - 15,225
07 7,93% -
- - 5.000 1,058
2417 - - -
2417 24,198 28,136 [,058
- 141,260 1.073,645 -
- - 102,174 -
35.870 - - _
35,870 141,260 1.175.819
(33.453) (117.062) (1.147.663) 1.058
366 4,788 47.526 240.27%
- (15,072) - -
366 (10.284) 47,526 240,271
(33,087 (127.346) (1,100,137) 241,329
(8,715) 9,066 422,279 {241,329
5 (41,802) by (118,280) $ (677.858) 8 -
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Other

Publi¢
Improvements Total
$ - $ 23,491
24774 39,999
9,445 18,083
3234 9292
- 2417
37.453 93,282
30,948 30,948
- 1,214,905
50,236 152,410
- 35,870
693,735 695,735
776,919 2,129.868
(739.466) (2.036,586)
- 292951
2.763) (17,833)
(2.763) 275,116
(742,229) (1.761.470)
494,599 675,900
£ (247.630) $  (1.085,570)




Asgers;
Cash and pooled investments
Investments
Receivables:
Interest
Accounts
Advances to other funds

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Advances from other funds
Tatal Habilities
Fund halances:
Reserved for advances to other funds
Reserved for perpetual care
Reserved for endowments

Total fund balances

Total labilities and fund balances

City of Muscaline, lowa

Non-Major Permanent Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2009
McWhirter- Perpetual Perpetual Cemelery
Gilmore Care Care Interest Special
Trust Trast Trust Trusts Total
$ 6,337 $ - ¥ - b 1.976 $ 8313
100,000 820,000 - 85.0060 1,005, (00
911 - 8.037 407 9355
- 116} - - 1o
- 3433 - 4,604 8,037
107,248 823,543 8,037 1,987 1.030.815
- - - 210 210
- - 8.037 - 8,037
- - 8.037 210 8,247
- 3433 - 4,604 8.037
- B20.110 - - R20.110
107,248 - - 87,173 194.421
107.248 823.543 - 91,777 1,022,568
$ 107,248 % 823,543 5 8.037 S 01,987 3 1030815
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Revenues:
Cemetery perpetual care
Intcrest
Total revenues
lixpenditures:
Current:
Culture and recreation

Revenues over (under} expenditures

Other financing uses:
Transfers out

Net change in fund bhalances
Fund balances, June 30, 2008

Fund balances, June 30, 2009

City of Muscatine, [ows

Non-Major Permanent Funds
Combining Statemient of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended June 39, 2009

McWhirter- Perpetual Perpetual Cemetery
Gilmore Care Care Interest Special
Trust Trust Trust Trusts Total

% - % 6,620 5 - - 3 6.620

3.629 - 27,993 2,664 34,291

3.629 6.620 27,993 2,669 4003911

6,230 - - 3,792 10,022

{2,601} 6,620 27.963 (1,123) 300,889
- - (27.993) - {27.993)

(2,6013 6.620 - (1.123) 2,89
109,849 316923 - 92,900 1.019,672

3 107,248 $  823.543 5 - 91777 $ 10225068
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City of Muscailne, lowa

Non-Major Entecprise Funds
Combining Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2008
Refuse Airport Parking Transit
Ceodlection Operations (perations Operations G ol Course
Agsels:
Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments ¥ - b 96§ 103,225 % 180240 § -
Tavesiments - - - - -
Receivibles (net of allowance for uncollectiblzs):
Intgrest 381 - 253 485 57
Acoouns 221,833 a7l 1,508 11,317 3705
Inergevernmental:
Federal - 210,941 - - -
Stare 4.694 - - 10,380 -
Couaty . - - -
Advances ta other funds . - 4,151 - .
Lirventories . - - - 16,610
Prepaid items - - - - 32K
‘Total current assets 226910 20, 564 104,137 203,622 23772
Muncirment assets:
Beferred charges 1,789 - - - -
Capital assets:
Lard - 1,408 973 579686 - ROKK
Land improvenents - RB78. 166 647 0106 - 1102678
Buildings and building improvenents 1,312,083 1 60602 - 14231 785,533
Fauiprmen 160,319 2,694 32,370 6,154 368 620
WVihicles 573,548 117,342 - 598,734 14.734
Construelion in progress - - - - -
Less accnmulsed depreciation (339 188 (6,850, K8y {116,515 {305, 356) (1,154,501}
Talal capital assers met of accumulatad
depreciation 1,206, 766 5,141,192 542,337 33673 1197113
Total nonciETent assets ’ 1,208 555 5.141,192 842337 3673 1,197,123
Torkal arsets 1,435,465 5,361,752 931,474 517,295 1,220,595
Liabilities:
Crrrenr liabilities:
Accounts payahle and accruals 26,464 8506 w2 1,305 IR,670)
Retainageys payable - 134,193 - - -
Cuompensated absences payable 17.261 - 10,376 214581 7223
Acbvanees froo other funds RERIE 75192 - - 2,057
Dheprsits - . . . .
Accrud inlerest payable 1.198 - - . -
Unearned revema: 365 2563 27.543 1,064 6,284
Cereral obligarinn bomdy 80,357 - - - -
Total current liakilitizs 148,709 T2 454 38,821 23,350 f).234
Momeurment Libilides:
Generul obligation bonds 334,036 - - - -
Compennated absences 21917 - 3816 4,230 3123
Chher post-cmpliyment benetits 1,074 - 151 136 339
Toial notcereent Tiabtlities 3777 - 5,997 4,350 3462
Tetal lishilitics 525,736 220,454 43813 28.206 63,606
Nt assees:
Tovested in capital assels, net of relared debd FT2ATY 51411492 RA2337 313673 1,197,123
Unresticted 137,356 LU £, 3149 175416 (39,9243
Temal el assets 3 TG 5 5,141,298 3 Wi aae % 489,089 $ 1,157,199
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Marina Ambulance Public
Roat Harbor Operations Dpe rations Housing “T'odai

a2 % - 3 147,764 % 6004 % 447 #R 1
- - . WHH33 9 653
. - T4 7028 9,228
1,989 431 157,118 9,478 4065151
- . 15,448 236,389
- . - 15274
- - 4,801 - 4,801
- - . 4151
- 5,142 - . 21,752
- - - - 3,200
2,391 5,573 310,404 933,111 255,480
. N . - 1,759
N - 105,000 2,173 650
196,161 . - 97,144 10,521,245
- - - 7.585,765 11,303,637
- - 16.269 103,105 FOT, A4}
- - 445,479 58,154 1,808,051
B - - 25448 25 448
(149, 200y - 1359,902) (5.216,154) (15,331,158
16,953 - 1001 845 2758,432 11,608,322
46,953 - 104,546 2758432 11,610,111
49,344 5573 412 250 3711,543 13 665591
4 (80 1,422 13,242 108,598 204,598
- - - 2,545 136,738
455 - 1,676 13.316 71,788
- 4,151 . - 11id64
- - - 39,245 39,245
. - . - 1,198
- - 10,359 5165 53883
- - - £6),357
4,544 5,573 25817 170,269 6Y5, 271
- - - - 154,036
21 - 1,094 20,390 56,581
- - 113 554 2,397
21 - 1.207 1944 413,014
4565 5,573 27.024 191,213 1111285
46,953 - 101.846 2,758,432 11,173,929
(2.174) . 283,380 761,598 1,380,377
44779 % - S 83226 % 332033 0§ 12,554,306




Operating revenues:

Charges for sales and services:
Charges for services
Parking lees
Trunsit {ecs
Gult course fees
Boat harbor fees
Managemen; lees
Renis

Other

Total operating revenes

Qperating expenses;

Cogt of sales and gorvices:
Personal services
Commodities
Contractual services

Administration

Bepreciation

Total operaling expenses
Operating tneome (loss}
NON-nNperating revenues [expenses):
Federal, state and local grams
IECrest revenue
Teterest oxpense
Bond issuince costs
Girim {Towg) on vale of capital assets

MNon-operating revermies [expenses), net

Income {loss} before capital contributions
and transters

Capital contributions - granrs
Capital contributinns - government
Transfers in

Transfers out

Change in ned assets

Met assets, June 30, 2008

Mt assets, June 30, 2009

Cily of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Major Eoterprise Funds
Comblulag Statement of Revenaes, Fxpenses and Changes in Net Assets

Year KEnded June 30, 208%

Refuse Atrport Parking Transit
Collection (nerations Operations Operations Golf Course
% 1,551,434 B - $ - % .
. - 193,173 . -
- - - 185,645 -
- - - - T15.444
. 8,700 - - ;
- 26,255 - - -
3,505 4,568 1,048 ] 49,235
1,535,389 39,523 194,821 185,653 TEd, 679
600,311 - 137173 582,322 294,114
R3.461 4,131 2,240 W)L HE6 180,770}
f60 927 99,574 T 144,305 173,31
54,600 7,200 18,000 14.600 42,900
93,460 453,304 36.920 75.449 87,221
1,498,750 605,000 A0 WY, 562 T78.426
56,60 (565.486) (3,558} {72161 (1.3.747)
46,938 - - 439.734 27063
2,152 94 1876 3429 2,929
{20.863) - - - -
(358) - - - -
- - - - (47,3313
27.869 94 1.876 443,163 17.339)
B, 495 (363.392) (4,712} (2787460 31.0886)
- 1,100,283 - - -
- - 183.088 - -
v T0.906 - 160,188 -
B4.499 614,797 178,376 (118.558) (31.086)
825,230 4.526.501 T28.280 607,647 1,188.285
¥ W72 5,141,298 5656 3 459,089 b 1.157.169
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Marlna Ambulance Puhlic
Boat Harbor (perations Operations Housing Total

- 3 3 1,013,627 % 2.565.111

- 193,173

- - 155,645

- - T15.444
23,274 - 23204
- - BTG

- - - 403,575 429,830

54 6599 35,045 16,329 117,671
23338 6,599 1048722 420, 104 4,238,848
12,424 1.077 100,980 AT 509 2007410
3496 8176 59603 G, 2 499,669
4021 1.708 164,000 252,096 1.513,32%
4.500 132,800 . 274.600
9,807 23840 270228 1,042,729
34,644 [UR) 453,223 S67,739 5487736
(11.2%0 {4.362) 565,499 (547,635} 41,248,888
- - 385.186 RO8021

- - 4008 2077 35,259
- - - - (20,863
- - - - {358)
- (7337} {54,668)

- 4,008 398.620 458,201

(11,20} {4.362) 564,507 (149015} (390,597
- 25448 1134331

- - 183.088

4,362 - - 235,456
- {504,400} - (50 KD
{11,290} - 65,107 L123.567) f3R.278
56.069 3,119 3.643.807 11,596.028
44,779 £ 3 385,226 3,520,330 3 12,554,300

86



Cavsh Mows [rom eperating activitics
Receipts from customers and users
Paymenes (o supytiers
Fayinents & employees
Payitenes {for employee benefits
Paymenes for interfund services vied
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Mows lrom norcapilal Rnancing activities

Transfers to other funds

Transfers from ather funds

Advances from oter funds

Advances 1o other funds

Regaymaent of advances from ather funds

Repuyment of advances to nthar funds

Subsidies from federal, siate and local grants
Ned cash provided (vsed) By nonchpital

financing activitics

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Cupnral contriburinns
Purchnse of copital assers
Principal paid on capital debt
Tneerest paid e capilal debt
Tnsueance recoverics for loss of capiid assers
MNet cash provided {used) by caparal and relared
Fnuncing activitigs

Cash Aows from lavesting activities
Proceeds from sakes and malerlics of investments
Paechase of investments
Interest peveived
Net cush provided (used ) by investing activilies

Net bwrease (devrense) in cash and pooled invesimuents
Cash and pooled investments, June 3 2008

Cush and pooled tnvestments, Tune 37, 2004

Reconciliation of operuling income {loss | to et cash
provided (used} by operating activities:

Cash Qows Mol operaling activides:
Operating income (lossh
Adjusiments ko rcconcile operating income floss)
L net cash provided {used ) by aprecating activities:
Dwpreciation
Changes m assers and fiabitities:
[Inoreine ) dectewse m:
Accounts reeeivable
Iniergavernmental receivahle
Inventories
Prepaid ems
Increase (decrease)
Accounts payuble and accnaats
Compensated absences payable
Chher past-employment benefirs
Deferred revenie
Trpasies
Toial adjustinenta
Mgt ¢ash provided (used) by Operaling ctivities

Non-¢ash capital and related (inascing activities:
Conrribulion of capilal assct from government,
Change in aceounts payabie wsed fo pirchase capilal assels
Totut non cash capital and refated financing activities

City of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Ma)ur Enlerprize Funds
{Comblning Statement of Cash Flowy
Year Ended Jum M), LKW

Hefnse Alrpurt Parking Transit
Collection Operations Operations Operations Goll Course
s 1,530,1012 s 19,967 3 191003 $ LIRS 504 b3 Tolo46
(G, HKDD (B3, 1My {9526 (34,883) (343,688)
1407 111) - (110.463) (486,047) (221.340)
{158 590 - {26,044y (93,653 1T 1L248)
1i8 1,789y (21.R63) 150003 {213.932) (M. ETE)
157512 (64,125} 16.970 (66301 1) 80,554
- 0,960 - 160,188 -
23064 75,192 - - 8,058
. - {3151 -
16,220 - . . _
- b : -
42,245 - 448, 1104 27063
59,086 146,008 (2001 08,292 35,121
- 968 415 - - -
12L114) t1.077.8Hn - 12453500
(80651 - -
t16.7940) - - -
(2185613 (109,502) - [ 2453500
1,4} 94 1.9%7 36T REL
1,[HH) ki F.O037 3,767 37
(2435 26.906 (50,452) {126,668
- 35081 76,319 232192 E26,068
& - B 9.216 b 103,225 b 18}.240 3 -
$ 36,630 5 {305,486) b (6,788 b {721.908) 3 (13,747
Y3 A60 493 804 36,4920 T34 7221
(15,572 188 Lin4 [(:2)) {1.65T)
- - - (2477
18,398 EN R 1210y (19.024) 9,614
436 - 485 2485 1,247
Lo 151 136 ERCH
&t 256 {4830 {34) 24
100,382 440, 3 33,558 55,498 4,301
b 157512 % {66,125y 3 26,970 b3 (663,011} H 80,554
§ - b - 3 183,088 3 - % -
- 38,541 - -
- 88,501 183,088 -
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Murimt Arthulance Pulilic
Hoat Harbor {}perations Operatlons Huuslng Total

5 2137 5 6,168 3 EARCLS 16 b3 LTI 4,224,796
{4 233} (11,454 {200,550) {235670) CLA08, 133
(8.453) (44983 (80,758 1267603} {EL5R3Ba0)
13,230 {9 {17,340 (143 (491,416}
(4500 {154.615) 164,302} (7LE 177}
35 (6,363) T 253 {146,328} {16%.793)

- {504,400 - 13044007

- 4,362 - 235,456

415t - §HLAAS
- - 4,151}
- (2150 - 18,376}

- - - 2,150

- - 485,186 202 598

6.363 1 SU4 400 385,186 733,748

- - - 968418

- - 1162.649) (L7033

- - {80,651

- - - (16, 7946)

. - 27602 T2
- £135.047) {08 460)

- - 1,540,125 1,540,128
- t1,566,5383 (1.366.538)

- - 3,284 23,611 32658

- 3,284 {1803} 12,246
L35} - 0,137 .10 (132,259}

457 - 101,627 4,106 580,140

¥ 42 § - 5 147,764 $ 6,004 HTEEL
¥ {L1.290) b 4,362) b3 565,199 $ 1547,635) 1. 248,888}
W.Ea7 25,540 00228 1,092,724

1,689 431 4,693 (2E12y {16,630)
- - (3,79%) - {2,759}

- (2,950 - - t5.457)

- 1692 - 1062

3,285 1410 {39,854) 27815 {13,403)

132 - 270 5,203 3848

- 13 354 2,397

- 10,850 1,123} 5226

- - - 1,152 1,152

11,235 12,0001} (18.246) 304,467 1070048
$ (55§ (6363 & 547253 % (246,578) (169,793)
s 13 - $ - 5 183,083
- - - 58,901

- - - 271,939
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Internal Service Funds
Comibining Statement of Net Assets

June 3¢, 2009
Equipment Central Heslth Dental
Services Supplies Insurance Insurance Total
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ - B - $ 1,198,958 $ 37137 $ 1,236,095
Receivabhles:
Interest - - 3317 115 3432
Accounts 3.457 - 23.384 - 26,841
Advances 10 other funds - - 12,481 - 12,481
Inventories 119,820 2,307 - - 122,127
Total current assets 123,277 2.307 1,238,144 37,252 1.400,976
Capital asscts:
Equipment 122,885 - - - 122,889
Vebhicles 50,203 - - - 50,203
F.ess accumulated depreciation (166,131} - - - (166.131)
Total capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation 6,961 - - - 6,961
Toral assets 130,238 2.307 1,238,140} 37.252 1,407,937
Liabilities:
Current liahilities:
Accounts payable and accruals 29,762 - 120.061 3,349 153,172
Compensated absences payable 17.843 - - - 17843
Advances from other funds 13,748 1,733 - - 12 481
Total current liabilities 58,353 1,733 120.061 3,349 183,496
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences payable 20.334 - - - 20,334
Other post employment bencefits 452 - - - 452
Total noncurrent liabilities 20),786 - - - 20,786
Total liabilities 79,139 1,733 120,061 3,349 204,282
Net asscts:
Net assets invested in capital assets 6,961 - - - 6.961
Unrestricted 44,138 574 1,118,079 33,903 1,196,694
Total net assets $ 51,009 3 574 $ 1,118,079 $ 33903 $ 1,203,653
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Internat Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Operating revenues:

Charges for sales and services:
Services
Fuel
Supply charges

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Other contributions

Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:

Cost of sales and services:
Personal services
Commodities
Contractual services

Administration

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (koss)

Non-operating revenues:
Interest revenue

Income (loss) before ransfers
Transfers out

Change in nct assets

Net assets, June 30, 2008

Net assets, June 30, 2009

Year Ended June 30, 2009
Equipment Central Health Dental
Services Supplies Insurance Insurance Taotal
$ 619,001 - i $ - 3619001
425.514 - - - 425514
. 2,134 - - 2,134
- - 221210 55.503 2,267,604
- 131,644 52,250 183,854
- - 154,296 3,454 1577750
16 - - - 16
1,044,531 2,134 2498041 111,207 3,655,913
269.082 - - 269,082
558.987 2.096 - - 561.083
192,863 - 2.229.716 99,191 252,770
13,600 - 3,000 - 16,600
1,978 - - - 1,978
1,036,510 2.096 2,232,716 99.191 3,370,513
8.021 38 265,325 12016 285400
- - 30,074 759 30,873
5021 38 295,399 12,815 316.273
- - {59,999) (59,999)
8,021 38 235,400 12.813 256,274
43,078 536 882,679 21,088 947381
3 51.099 574 $ LLLIEOT7Y $ 33.903 % 1,203,655
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City of Muscaline. lows

Internat Service Funds
Combining Statemeut of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Eguipment Central Health Dental
Services Supplies Insurance insurance Total
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from interfund services provided $ 1,047,143 5 2,134 § 2,540,757 $ 0 HL207 $ 3,701,241
Payrents to suppliers {(753,715) (2,259} (2,325,883) (99, 117) {3, 180,974)
Paymeits to employees {182.169) - - - (182,169)
Payments (or emiployes benefits {82,863) - - - {42,863)
Payments tor interfund services ased (13,6060 - {30000 - {16,600)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 14,796 {125} 211,874 12,(180 238,635
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Tramsters to other funds - - (59,999) - {59,999}
Advances from other funds 10,748 1,733 - - 12,481
Advances to other tfunds - - (12,481} - {12,481
Repayment of advances from other funds {25.544) {1,608) - - (27.182)
Repayment of advances 1o other funds - - 27,152 - 27,152
Net cash provided (used} by noncapital
financing aclivities {14,756} 125 145,32%) - 159,004)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received - - 30,984 759 31,773
Net increase in cash and pooled investments - - 197,330 12,579 o400
Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2008 - - 1001428 24,258 1,025 686
C'ash and pooled investments, June 30, 20019 5 - b - $ 1198 958 b 37,137 $ 236,008

Reconcilialion of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Cash flows trom operating activities:
Operaling income (loss) % 3,021 3 38 $ 265325 b3 12,016 5 285,400
Adjustments o reconcile operating income (loss)
o net cash provided (used) by operating activitivs:
[Xepreciation 1,978 - - - 1,978
Changes in assels and Habilities:
{Increase) decrease i

Accownts receivable 2,612 . 12716 - 45,328
[ovemtomies 420971 (163 - - 42,808
Increase (decrease) i
Accounts payabie and aceruals (44, B62) - (96,167 74 {141,955)
Compensated absences payable 3624 - - - 3.624
Other post cmployment benelits payable 452 452
Total adjustrnenis 6,775 (163} (53451) 74 (46,765)
Net cash provided {used) by operating activities 3 14,796 5 (125} $ 211874 § 12,080 3 238635
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are those used to account for assets held by a government as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, or other governments or funds.

PAYROLL CLEARING FUND - Accounts for the collection and payment of employee payroll
withholdings and City contributions for payroll taxes.

MISCELLANEOUS CLEARING FUND - Accounts for general City expenditures to be allocated to

other funds and miscellaneous funds received by the City as an agent for individuals, organizations or
other funds.

HOUSING REVOLVING FUND - Accounts for general City expenditures allocated to the City's
Housing Programs, which are reimbursed by the Housing Programs.



City of Muscatine, lowa

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Lishilities

Assets:
Cash and puoled investments
Accounts receivable
Advances to other funds

Total assets
Liabifities:
Accounts payable and accruals

Advances from cther funds

Total liabilities

Agency Funds

June 30, 2004
Payroll Miscellancous Housing
Clearing Clearing Revolving Totals
$ 490,304 $ 2.065 b - % 492,369
- 349 52,354 52.703
52,108 - - 52,108
542,412 2414 52,354 597,180
542,412 2414 246 545,072
- - 52,108 52,108
$ 542412 $ 2,414 $ 52,354 $ 597,130
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City of Muscatine, Lowa

Combining Statenient of Changes in Assefs and Linbilities
All Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2000

Payroll Clearing Fund
Assets:
Cash and pooled investinents
Advances to other funds

Total assets

Liablities:
Accounts payable and aceruals

Agsets:
Cash and pooled investments
Acvounts receivable

Total asscls

Liabilmies:
Accounts payable and accryals

Housing Revolving Fund
Assets:
Accounts receivable

Liabilities:
Accotmis payable and accruals
Advimees from other funds

Tl Habilities

Totul
Assets:
Cash and pooled investments
Aceounts receivable
Advances (o other funds

Total assets
Liahilitics:
Accounts payable and aceruals

Advances fron other funds

Total liabilitics

Balance Bulance
June 30, 2008 Increases Decreases June M, 2
b 418,300 $ 13484 363 $ 13412359 ¥ 490,304

47,583 4.525 - 52,108

b 465 883 F 13,488 888 $ 13,412,339 b 542412
b 4635, 553 3 3,853,082 S 3776553 b 542 412
% 1,194 k3 27 $ - $ 2,065
762 - 413 349

S 956 ¥ 471 3 413 S 2,414
% 1,956 $ 438 3 - b 2414
$ 47,764 3 4,590 £ - $ 52354
S 181 ] 63 $ i3 246
47,583 4,525 52,108

& 47,764 b 4,590 3 - b 52,354
$ 419,494 313485234 S 13,412,359 3 492,369
4¥,526 4,590 413 52,703
47,583 4,525 - 52,108

¥ 515,603 S 13,494,349 5 13,412,772 3 597,180
% 468,020 § 3,833,605 $  3.,776.553 ks 545072
47,583 4,525 - 52,108

3 515,603 $ 3,858,130 $ 3,776,553 b 597,180
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MUSCATINE COUNTY SOLID WASTE AGENCY

COMPONENT UNIT



Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency
Component Unit

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009

Assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled investments

Capital assets:
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

Liabilisies and net assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Retainages payable
Compensated absences payable
Total curtent liabilities
Noncurrent ligbilities:
Loan due to primary government
Closure/post-closure obligation
Total noncurrent Labilities
Tozal liabilities
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total net assets

G4

$ 927404

1,080,608
713,178
37314
31317
1,084,217

(265.007)

3,609,031

305,866
34211
933

361,010

1,850,925

1,826,505
3,677,430

4.038 440

2.681.627

(3,111,036}

3 (429.409)



Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency
Component Unit

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2009
Operating revenues:

Charges for services $ 1,033,000

(xher operating revenues 833
Total operating revenues 1,033,833
Operating expenses:

Cost of services:

Personal services 28.706
Commadities 46,392
Contraclual services 1,016,214

Administration 42 600

Depreciation 26,734
Total operating expenses 1,160,646
Operating income (1oss) (126813}
Non-operating revenue:

Intergovernmental revenue 117,177
Net income (loss) (9.636)
Net assets. June 30, 2008 (419.773)
Net assets, June 30, 2009 5 (429,409)
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Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency

Compenent Unit

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and uscrs
Payments o suppliers
Payments to employees
Paymenis [or cmployee benetfits
Payments for interfund services used
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Loan from primary government
Subsidies from federal, state and local governments
Net cash provided {used) by nancapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assels
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities

Net increase in cash and pooled investments
Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2008
Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2009

Reconciliation of operating income ¢foss) to net cash
provided (used} by operating activities:

Cash flows from operating activities:
Opcrating income (loss}
Adjustments (o reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
[ncrease (decrease in:
Accounts payable and accruals
Compensated absences payable
Closure/post-closure liability
Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Non-cash capital and refated financing activities:
Change in accounts payable used to purchase capital assets

96

b 1.033.832
(786,470
(20,970)

(7.754)

{42.60()

176,037

908,080
116,712

1,024,792

{1,084,375)

(1.084,375)
116,454
810,950

b 027,404

% {126,813

26,734

223.348
(19)
52,787
302,850
F 176037

$ 54.210




STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Muscatine’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the govermment’s overall financial
health,

Contents Page
Financial Trends {Schedutes | ~ 5) 08-104

These schedules contain trend information fo help the reader
understand how the governmemt's financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity (Schedules 6 — 9) 105-108

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
government’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity (Schedules 10 - 13) 109-112
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and
the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information {Schedules 14 — 15) 1£3-114

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the government’s
financial activities take place.

Operating Information (Schedules 16 - 18) 115-117
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the government’s financial

report relates to the services the government provides and the activities
it performs.
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Schedule 1
City of Muscatine, lowa
Net Assets by Component
Last Seven Fiscal Years
{Accrnal Basis of Accounting)

86

{Unaudited)
Fical Year
200272003 200372004 2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2001772008 200%/21HP

Governmental activitics

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 46,200,004 S5 48.933,154 % 51.221,230 ¥ 50,011,138 F 51.381,004 ¥ 50833005 530303012

Restricted 4,262,984 3044136 2,948,958 3,424,397 3,305,450 5,644,659 2,989,872

Unrestricted 5974714 7.329.316 5,250,409 5,466,892 6,823,222 6,272,247 7,330,802
Total povertanental activities net assets 5 56,446,702 $ 59328606 59,420,037 5 58.898.427 $  61,709.676 § 62749911 3 60.623.686
Business-type aclivities

invested in capital assets. net of related debt ¥ 47,317,599 ¥ 47,010,083 S 47,350,543 5 31.101,160 3 52481362 5 53255999 ¥ 57.286,029

Rastricted - - - - - - 190,093

Unrestricted 6,395 421 6,547.924 6,529,619 6.582,503 6,023,561 7,796,532 7.105,081
Total business-Lype activities net assets $ 53,713,020 5 33,558,607 5 54,080,162 $ 57,683,753 $ 58,504,923 5 61,052,531 5 64,381,203
Priumary government

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5 93,526,603 F 95,965,837 F 98771,773 S 11,112,258 5 104,002.366 3 164,089,004 F 107,589,041

Restricted 4,262,934 3.044,136 2,948,598 3420397 3,305,450 5,644,659 3,179.963

Unwestrictes 12,370,135 13,877,240 11,780,028 12049485 12,846,783 14068770 14,435 883
Total primary government nel assets FO110,159.722 % 112,887,213 S 113,500,159 F 116582180 § 120,214,509 5 123,802,442 5 123,204 889

Note - The Cily began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2002/2003.



O
WO

Expenses

Governmental activities:

Public safety

Public works

Heulth and social services

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development
General government

Interest and fees on long-term debt
Total governmental activities expense

Business-type activities:
Water pollution conirol
Retuse collection
Transfer stauon
Airport
Parking
Transit
Golf course
Boat harbor
Marina
Cable Television
Ambulance
Public housing

Total business-type activities expense

Total primary government expense

City of Muscatine, Iowa
Changes in Nel Assets
Last Seven Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Schedule 2

{Unaudited)
Fical Year

2002/2003 200372604 2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/ 2007 200772008 20082009
$ 5309173 $  5.361.580 $ 6081788 3 6,164,169 £ 6476982 £ 6,972,493 $  7.136.808
3,400,044 2.970.927 3,220,325 3802168 3,299,503 3,498,689 5,262.061
18.400 16,560 15,700 16.660 26,700 16.66{) 16.660
3,146,370 2,957,891 3,466,568 3.967.702 3,774,353 3,773,805 3,970,285
2,659.516 3,849,722 3.217.531 2,234,880 2.446,232 2757190 2,656,737
1,639,035 1,659.438 1.725.955 1.844.803 1,866,359 1,8R0G.724 1.967,161
424222 397,429 422,410 379,349 432,626 391,759 473916
16,605,760 17,413.547 18.150,477 18.409,93] 18,322,755 19.201 410 21,483 628
3.900,792 4,094,791 4,134,898 4,320,934 4,581.077 4,649,437 4,992 317
1,177,342 1,221,882 1.243,306 1,283,743 1,423,922 1,390,113 2,228,048
2,000,482 2.002.761 2.181,508 2,130,005 2,363,530 2,486,114 1,519,980
550,558 621.520 551,070 570.586 545,259 561,312 605 009
191,746 204,879 205,31 220,508 210,405 244774 201.409
636,108 618,308 678,757 763,123 TRI1,763 872,252 907,562
449905 451,551 468,149 439,438 386,908 718,125 825757
432,253 4] 486 33,273 33.630 37,325 33,015 34,648
15,662 8,430 8,004 27.176 24,203 12,461 10,961

37,340 31137 - - - - -
660,808 749,644 Q14,100 008,058 Q12403 428,650 483,223
792 855 831,545 035.354 882,502 G11.298 924,183 975,076
10.545,851 10,877,934 11,353,720 11,597,703 12,378,093 12.380.445 12,783,990
$ 27.151.611 $ 28,20] 48] $ 29,504,197 $ 30007634 $ 30,700,848 $ 31,671,855 5 34.267.618

{Continued)



Q0T

{Continued)
Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues

Business-type activities:

Charges for services:

Water pollution control

Refuse collection

Transfer station

Alrport

Parking

Transit

Golf conrse

Boat harbor

Marina

Cable Television

Ambulance

Public housing

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions
Total business-type activities program revenues

Total primary government program revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government net expense

Fical Year

2002/2003 2003/20604 2004/2005 20052006 2006/2007 200772008 2008/2009
b 203,522 $ 310,762 b 356,703 $ 306,954 b 383.518 ¥ 421.978 5 438,932
157,213 143,089 179,104 141.803 140,649 151,785 318,112
421,507 537,726 595,761 577.257 616.982 598,707 494,131
244,164 349,230 372,703 407,977 398.479 405,832 358812
324,125 307,054 324,733 432880 382.812 410.042 473.567
3.940,767 4.271,667 4,617.475 4,805,002 4,263,038 4,229.961 4,736,388
644,303 2,544,051 BO4.158 1,733,592 2,018,077 963,114 108.213
6.025,701 8,403,599 7,344,637 8,403,465 8.203.535 7,181,419 6,929,155
2,948,850 3,537,974 3,612,206 3,745,884 3.854,728 4,259,343 4,518,700
1,254,825 1,257,199 1,261,040 1,312,208 1,364,809 1.462 820 1,555,388
1,944,351 1,750,444 1,898,293 1,767,744 1,893,083 2,090,391 1,448,300
43,446 43,639 46,086 43,564 47,351 41,023 39,523
183.525 171,614 161,344 188,146 178,128 204,733 104,821
16.497 86,731 90,457 106. 1444 129,429 183.586 185,653
408.070 412,069 402,214 402,832 532,104 719,281 764,679
32389 19,552 18,745 21,782 26,022 23,860 23.359
14,069 7.129 5,200 26,616 22,494 10,721 6,599

194,049 236,479 - - - - -
742,151 702432 850.406 735295 817,532 Q68,157 1.048,722
389,880 373202 362,487 367,010 382,556 424,905 420,104
600,280 594,674 351,160 619,692 674,031 1,017.826 1.008,488
143.759 364.601 296,941 642.818 324,539 353,324 1.317.819
8,976,141 9.647.739 9,556.579 9,979,735 10,246,806 11.760,009 12,582,155
$ 15,601,842 $ 18.111.338 ¥ 16.901,216 3 18385200 $ 18450361 3 18.541.428 5 19,511,310

$ ¢10.580,059)
(1,569,710

$ (8,949.948)
(1,230,195)

$ (10,805.840)
{1.797.141)

3 (10,604,466)
(1,617,968}

5 (10,119.200)
(2,131,287)

$ (12,109.991)
(620,436)

$ (14,554.473)

{201.833)

3 (12,149.769)

$ (10.180.143)

$ (12,602.981)

$ (11,622,434}

$ ¢12.250,487)

$€12,730,427)

$ (14.756,308)

{Continized)
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(Continued)

General Revenues and Other Changes in

Net Assets
Governmental activities:
Taxes
Property taxes
Utility taxes
Local option sales tax
Hotel/motel taxes
Cable franchise taxes
Intergovernmental, unrestricted
Unrestricted investment income
Gain on sale of capital assets
Contributions to endowrments
Transfers
Tutal govemmental activities
Business-type activities:
Unrestricted investment incorme
Guain on sale of capital assets
Transfers
Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government

Fical Year

2002/2003 2003/2004 2004/2005 2003/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009
$ 9726834 $ 0983521 $ 10242610 $ 10916665 % 11.763,138  $ 12141875  § 12,040.376
79,468 67.339 63,638 59,209 63,986 67,703 64,358
2,103.843 2.210,111 1.938,370 2,290,018 2,589.592 2,688,049 2,864,582
274.654 310,798 327,575 306,075 338,818 366,261 344,354

- - 238,788 245,132 242,164 239,812 239,039

472,310 129,974 64.870 61,834 95,002 150,424 149,913
113,151 111,595 203.275 337.227 455,562 399,317 267,227

22,231 4,187 - 248 667 - - -

6,660 8,100 4,500 8.820 8.735 7,980 6,620
(225183} (993,773) (2.185,755) (4.991.391) (2,630.548) (2,911.195) (3,548,221)
12,573,068 11.831,852 10.897 871 0.982.256 12,930.449 13.150.226 12,428,248
103,668 78,901 130,688 230,168 317,561 256.849 182,286

- 3,108 2,253 - 4,343 - -

225,183 993,773 2,185,755 4.991,391 2.630,548 2.911.195 3,548.221
328.851 1.075.782 2.318,696 5,221,559 2.952.457 3,168,044 3,730,507

$ 12902819 S 12907.634 $ 13216567  $ 14703815 $ 15882906 % 16318270  § 16,158,755
$ 1993909 0§ 2881904 § 92031 $ (5222100 $ 2811249 § 1040235  § (2.126,225)
(1,240.859) {154,413} 521,555 3,603,591 821,170 2,547,608 3,528,672

$ 753050 $ 272749t § 613586 $ 3081381 $ 3632419 5 3587843 3 1402447

Note - The City bagan to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2002/2003,
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City of Mupscatine, lowa

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

{(Modified Accrual Basis of Accountiog)

Schedule 3

(Unandited)
199972000 2000401 201102 200203 (1) 2003/04 2004405 2005/06 2006007 2708 200809
Cieneral Fund
Reserved § 37728 3 3347 S I1BE46 $ 8,252 3 36.674 $ 27580 g 27156 S 65640 $ 11.833 $ 119,222
Unreserved 1,911,902 2,080,719 1,821,534 1.926.667 1,877 669 1697, 668 1,715,921 1.67(.285 1.733.810 1,641,489
Tzl Ceneral Fund 3 1,949 630 5§ 2.086,066 $ 1 840,380 3 oLo5010 $ 1.914.343 $ 1735257 $ 1,743,077 $ 1735925 § 1745043 b L7071
All other governmental funds
Reserved § 257,563 S 135194 5 1453899 $ 3.227.576 S 1,847.902 S 35344M S 201,183 F 2675724 $ 4,162.323 T 234955
Unreserved, reported in:
Special tevenue lunds 4255003 2467417 2,749,497 5.178.670 0,872,499 3.202,064 6.297.089 6,965,479 8,589,873 7.606,228
Capital projects funds {499, 348) 1,431,083 1,728,241 665,12 510,981 LB4 G272 14604203 [GHE.250) (4,856) (1,564,725
Total all other governmental funds S 4.014,100 § 1,033,694 $ 4,623.637 L 9.071,474 $ 49,231,382 $ 6921450 § 7,942 852 § 89527251 8 12,747,340 § 8,391,059

L. Beginning in 2002/2003 the governmental funds include the former expendable trusis and non-expendable usts. These (rusts were

re-classificd as special revenue and permane funds, respectively, at the time the City implemented GASB Statement 34,
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Revcnues
Taxes
Ligumses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of mwoey and property
Special assessmenls
Orher
Total revenues

Expenditores (1)
Fublic satety
Public works
Healih and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and eeonomic development
{mneral government
Capiwsl outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Tatzrest
Paying agest
Refunding bond issuance cosis
Total expenditures

Excess of revepues over (under}
expenditures

Other nancing sources (Uses)
Geperal obligation bonds ssued
General obligaiion bood premivm (discounl
Refunding bonds issued
Refunding bond preminm
Payizent of refunded bonds
Tax ipcrement revems boads issued
Proceeds from caphal lease
Sale of capital assets
Tnsuranee reeovenies
Transfers in
Translers oul

Total other fimancing sources (uses)

Mot chinge to fund balances

Dbt service s 4 percenlage of
noi-capital expendipares

City of Muscatine, Towa

Changes of Fund Balarnces of Governmental Funds

Last Seven Fiscal Years

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Schedule 4

{Unaudited}

2002/03 200341 2004/05 200506 2006407 2007/08 1008AFY
12184769 $ 12571769 5 12810981 $ 13817099 5 1499769 15503700 § 15,484,709
237,283 112573 301322 132,378 124913 119,931 324,492
156,130 143730 149.785 126,720 144,427 203,136 177,324
4,585,820 4,391,299 4613715 5,695,585 5.170,180 4,247,598 4,330.706
306.335 3,384 478,454 416,045 418119 437,472 180,659
238,720 270,222 354,965 532,674 654,064 620,396 453,027

20,201 8.751 6.882 596 3,764 - -
1080417 2,800,469 1.695.15% 1,472,920 1.488.012 1201473 1,174.617
14,509,714 20.979.297 0.411,322 22,399,347 23,201,177 22,533,706 22,975,534
4,949,302 5.237.847 5,307,682 5,743,778 6.122.631 6,704.267 6,887,993
1,585,422 1,399,487 1487 544 1,553,652 1,640,026 1,821,550 2,021,234
18400 16,560 15,700 16,660 28,700 16,660 16,660
2237717 2.233.786 2,366,457 2,445,399 2,513,499 2632617 2,708,935
2435788 2,800,999 2,388,844 2,076,963 2.271.322 2,548,056 2,646,867
1,575,566 1.564.697 1.594,378 1,754,878 1.754.0%9 1,803,850 1,869,708
2801 805 6,881,185 5700323 4,300,157 3611445 4,127,296 3,629,604
1,587,384 1,681,018 1,377,790 1,397,975 1,343,176 1,361,385 1,520,837
350,412 395 467 418977 370,960 431,653 7R304 475057
2,100 2.582 2,400 25 2,800 2,800 1,600

- - - . - 6,962 -
17.664,206 22214028 20,759,095 19,662,922 19,717,291 21,403,756 23778525
1,145,418 (1,234,733 (MY 2,736,425 3,483,886 1,129,950 (852,091

1780000 - - 2,990,000 - 5,120,000 -

{10,288) . . 115.543) . 2,655 -

1,714,384

2,220 -

- - - - - L1.680,0001 -

- 2,305,000 - - - . -

14,863 - - - - - -

- - . 275,840 - . -

. - - - 103,514 379,559 -
4,781.693 5,284,115 5.074.263 4.905,672 5783805 6,431,380 5.819,738
{4,963.653) (6,235 (152} (7.225.499) {9.853,176) (8,368.958) (9,295.371) 9,307,961

1,602,615 1,354,063 (2,151.236) (1.697.213) (2,481,639} 2674857 \3A88.202)
274800 5 11902 5 Q400000)  $ L0213 4 1002247 304807 % 44.341.213)
o RSN Iy oo
1238 12.4% 10.8% 10.5% 10,6 9.6% 0.4%

1. The ity began to classify expenditures in these functional areas when it implemented GASB Starement 34 in 20022003,



701

City of Muscatine, lowa
Governmentat Activities Tax Revenue by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{Modifed Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Schedule 5

(Unandited)

General Incremental Utility Mohile Cable

Property Property Tax Excise Home Hotel/Motel Franchise i.ocal Opton
Fiscal Year Tax {FIF Districts} Tax {1} Tax Tax Fax {2) Sales Tax Toial
§999/2(04) $ 770,160 § 469.764 3 - $17.118 $ 294318 b - 2,207,507 10,689,867
200042001 7,974,925 544,471 68,144 18.010 330,850 - 2451 888 11,388,288
200072002 8,544,437 637,922 72,767 19,366 276,200 - 1985400 11,536,059
20022003 8,459,144 749,270 79468 18,420 274,654 - 2,103,843 12,144,794
200372004 9,176,000 789,101 67,339 18,420 310,798 - 2210111 12,571,769
20042005 9,233,886 090,224 63,638 18,500 327.575 238788 1,838,370 12,810,981
20052006 9.841,238 1,056,387 58,209 19,040 306,075 245,132 2,290,018 13,817,099
2006/2007 10,737,977 1,004,423 63,986 20,738 338,818 242,164 2,589,592 14,997,698
2007/2008 11,131,690 GH},255 67,703 19.930 366,261 239,812 2,688,049 15,503,700
2008/2009 11,350093 671,050 64,358 19,233 344,354 239,034 2,796,582 15,484,700
Change 19992000 (0 2008/2005 47 4% 428G 12.4% 17.0% 267% 44 9%

1. Gas and electric utilities were assessed general property taxes based on assessed valuations through 1999/2000; beginning tn 2000/2001
these utihties are subject to an excise wax based ob the amount of energy delivered in a one year period.

2. Cable franchise tax revenuc was accounted for in an enterprise fund through 2003/2004; beginning in 200442005 this revenue is
accounted for In the General Fund
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Taxable Value snd Estimated Actual Vatue of Property

City of Muscatine, lows

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 6

iUnandited)
Total LHrect Taxable ¥alue
Tax Less: Total Tax Rate Estimuted a5 & Percentage
Collection Residential Commercial Industrial Machinery & Railroads and Military Taxake (per $1.000 of Actual of Estimated
Year Property Property Properts Equipment t1) Uiilities Exemption Value ¥ahuation) Yalue Actual Value
1999/2000 $ 274,267 804 3 131001356 L 86900503 S 81202775 3 1LAB00N S 06980 S 591,982,642 g 13.03131 $ 806.737.396 73.4%
200042001 270,191,149 161,617,639 Of,244,267 S8.812.852 6143188 (2 2.949.646 592,059 464 1346500 819,977,512 T22%
20012002 282,884,339 183,724,111 053 872 36,245 853 6085471 2457.078 £15.146.588 1393626 #38,436.018 73.4%
20022003 312,053,447 179.321,943 111,824,874 14,739,532 6.739.905 2772444 621,907,257 14.35639 921.894.818 67.5%
20052004 314511010 179,334,859 114,983,487 - 7.163.614 2.679.844 613,333,126 1484915 914.556.777 67.1%
20042003 304,751,605 181,561,051 114149216 6.456.440 2,547,347 604,400,974 15.14349 915,583.731 64, 5%
20052006 309,041,311 196,029,944 116,742,479 7311377 2455752 A27.619,359 1551344 60,948 931 04, 7%
20062007 332674470 203,766,173 122,163,719 7712376 2,382,508 563,534,140 1603891 11363,565.913 62.4%
200712008 336,495,971 211,504,406 115,794,968 G.652,746 2,376,768 668,075,323 1652993 LO76,411.945 G2.1%
ZO0ES 2000 3394854784 233,055,584 121,374.018 - 6,926,263 2278038 698,932,613 Ta 15083 1,136,242.003 61.3%

L. The State of lowa eliminated taxes on all new machinery and equipment beginning in the 1993/ vear and began phasing out
taxes on existing machinery and equipment. This tax was fully eliminated as of the 2003/2004 year.
2. Beginning in 2000/2001 gas and electric utilities have been excluded ftom the values shown as the axation of these wiilities
15 o lomgrer based on assessed values. These wiilities now pay an excise 1ax based on the amoune of energy deliverad
in d e year periosd.

Source: Muscatine County Auditor's Office
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Fiscal Year

9962000
2000/2001
20052002
200272003
200372004
20042005
20052006
20062007
200772008
200872009

City of Muscatine, Fowa
Dvirect and Overdapping Property Tax Rates
{Rates per $1.008 of Valwstion)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 7

(Unundiled)
City Direct Rates Overiapping Rates
Schoat Districts Totals by School District

Generd Employee Debt Tort Emergeney Tota County Muscdine  Louisa-Muscatine  Muscatine  Lonisa-Muscatine

Fund Henefit Service Transit Liability Levee Emergency Manag t Direst Rite C lidatedd € ity C ity Community C Ly
58, 10000 5212725 $2.10208 333785 $0.29663 S0.06750 $ - 5 - $13.03131 3 773462 S15.06575 b 12 2862 51583108 b 3376455

B 10000 265631 XL AN 0.33494 0240032 Q06750 - - 13.46552 7.74389 14, 3446 1387656 35.53587 35.08637

8, 1000} 234072 256903 0.15463 0.23438 0.06750 027000 - 13.83626 761234 14.41514 14.40012 35.96374 3594872

B 000} 265255 26RT0 031875 0,260 0.06750 0.27000 14.35640 7.66380 1456445 1573821 3650663 37 TR
8. 10000 30167 2.82657 0.24223 0.30017 0067350 0.27000 14 84914 758716 1555355 13.86347 3795185 36.29977
510000 322143 251627 0.3519) 0.31838 0.06750 0.27000 - 15.1454% 741669 16.28523 15.76815 3884741 13.33033
8. 10000 326353 3.09837 0.35615 0.35789 0.06750 0.27600 - 1551344 173543 1555390 1589643 1880277 30.14530
51000 407275 2.83250 0.21753 037863 0.06750 0.27000 - 16.03891 8.4403] 14760320 i4.85256 39185 393378

8. 1000X) 4.46655 278130 3.49418 035008 0.06750 027000 - 16572967 BT §5.83328 1495807 047362 27841

B, OO0 407576 295759 0.2275) 03100 0.0675(0 027000 14219 1615045 B.64189 14.86071 1503328 39.65935 LR

Notes - Per State statutes maximum tax wkes apply to the General Fund, Fransit, Eevee and Emergency levies. The Clity has been 3t the arsimum

rale of S8 10 for the General Fund. $,.0675 for the Levee, and $.27 for the Fmergency levy as shown sbove. A maximum eite of $.95 applies 1o the

Transit rax: the City's Fransit levy is less than the maximmn showed.

Sowrce: Muoscatine Coungy Auditor’s Otfice



Taxpaver
Grain Processing/Kent Feeds

BNT Corporation (1N
Incdustries/HON Financial)

Bandayg, Inc,

Heinzx, 11.5.A.

Waul-Mart Stores, Inc,
Riverbend Leasing, LLC

Paveaport Farm & Fleet, Inc.
{Blain's Farm & Fleet)

Warchouse Distributing, LLC

Central State Bank

Firsr National Bank of Muscatine

GRIXCO, 11.C
Hy-Vee lne.
WI1D, Inc.

BT Prime Mover

SECO fovestment Co. (Stanley
Engincering Co.)

Cottonwond Apartments 1L1LC

Tri State Joint Ventures
{Muscatine Mally

Muscatine Flara
Pretiwn Packaging

Curver Pump Company

City of Muscatine, lowa

Principal Property Tax Ifavers
Cuerent Year and Nine Years Ago

January 1, 2007 Valoation (For 2008/2009 Tax Levy)

Schedule 8

January 1, 1998 Valuation (for 19992000 Tax Levy)

Percent of Percent of
Assessed Total Assessed Assessed Total Assessed
Valuation Rank Vulugtion (1} Rank Value

5 40624000 I 58% §  B04TH583 I 14.1%

38,139,570 2 5.5% 31688434 2 5.6%

15,382,860 3 22% 15,873,371 4 2. 84%

1 1.055,680 4 1.6% 16,946,444 3 0%

09720690 3 | 4% 8,470,190 5 1.5%
908,280 6 1.3%
7,794,670 7 1L1%:
7380460 8 L1%

6,734,200 G 105 3471141 13 0.6%

6,392,530 1) 0.9% 4,692,297 9 O.8%
3.964.500 I 0.9%

5,940.610 12 0.8% 4,565,7H) V] 3.5+
5,880,310 13 01.8%

5.883,280 14 0.8% 6,649,006 6 1.2%

3,415,450 15 .85 4,703,830 8 0.8%
5,008,350 16 0.7

4,117,980 13 0.7%

5,270,960 7 0.9%

3.785.637 12 0.7%

3,222,552 14 0.6%

§ 186,405,530 26.7% 3 193,934,215 MA%

b January 1, 1998 assessod valwnions included machinery and equipment walues. The State of lowa eliminated taxes on new machinery and equiprent
beginning in 1995/96 and began phasing out taxes on existing machinery and equipment. This twe was fully eliminated as of the 2003/2004 year.

This was a significant factor in the decrease in assessed vatuations for Grain Processing/Kent Feeds,

Source: Muscatine County Auditor's Office



Schedule 9

City of Muscatine, lowa
Property Tux Levics and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Yenrs
{Unandited)

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy

Taxes Levied Percent of Delinquent Tax Total Tax Ratio of Total Tax
for the Levy Collections Collections Collections to Total
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Amount {1} Collected {2) (2) Tax Levy
1999/ 21X $7.752,936 § 76993537 4031% b 1,623 §  7.70L160 99 33%
200020601 R.026,525 THT4.736 93 35% 189 7,974,925 99.36%
20012002 2631013 8543226 98.08%, 1,241 8,544,437 99 00%
200252003 R.997.150 8.957,497 99.56% 1,647 8,959,144 9% 58%:
20037204 9,180,577 9,170,392 99 894% 5,608 2,176,000 04 055,
2000442005 9230418 9,220,567 99 9% 4,319 9,233 886 99 04%
2005/2006 Y.837,794 9,836,626 O QO 4,612 9,841,233 100.04%
2006420607 141,736,626 114,733,950 99.98% 4,027 10,737,977 {00.0%
20072008 11,122,293 11§22, 888 L0001 % K02 11,131,649 100.08%
200872004 11,348,069 11,345,388 44, 984%, 4,705 11,350,063 1EN).025

1. Current tax collectinons reflect payments received by the Muscatine County Treasurer's office from July | through fune 30 of each year. Taxes
levied For the current year are classified as delinguent if not paid by June 30 each year.

2. Delinquent tax collections reflect the amounis of delinguent taxes the City received during the year. Informalion is nol avaitable from the
County Treasurer’s OrFice as 4o the year(s) for which the delinquent tax collections apply.
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Schedule 10
City of Muscatine, Iowu
Ratios of Orutstanding Debt by Type
l.ast Ten Fiscal Years

(Unandited)
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activitles
General Tax Cenersl State Total Percentage
Obligation Increment Capital Obligation Revolving Primary of Persunul Per
Fiscal Year Bonds Bonds Lense Bonds Fund [Loan Government Income (1) Capita (1)
19982000 $5,908.538 31,670,000 b - F 11,541,643 5 - $19.120,181 34% $ 83
200072001 9,155,212 £,580,000 - 0,773,739 - 21,508,951 6% 948
200172002 7.916,807 {,470,000 - 9,040,914 - 19,377,701 31% 854
20022003 8273, 115 1,340,000 14,653 3,163,088 - 18.790.856 2% 828
20032004 6,735,741 3,505,000 12,039 8,315,054 - 18,567 834 2.8% 818
2004/2005 5,621,710 3,245,000 9,249 7.443.616 - 16,319,635 2.3% TIQ
200572006 7.467.253 2,980,000 6,273 6,547,178 - 17,000,704 2.3% 749
2006/2007 6,400,835 2,700,000 397 5,605,740 - 14,718,672 1.9% 648
20072008 10,462,294 2,415,000 - 4,587.029 606,783 18,071,106 2.2% 796
200872009 9,254,498 2,115,000 - 3,554,215 3,598,195 18,521,908 N/A 8216

Note - Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to (he financial statements,

{. See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics {Table [4) for personal income and population data,
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Fiscal Year

1949672000
200042001
2002002
200272003
2003/2004
200442005
2005/2006
20062007
2007/2008
2008/200%

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

City of Muscatine, Jowa

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 11

{Unandited)
Estimated
General Actual Percentage
Obtigation Value of of Actusl Per
Bonds Property (1) ¥ aluation Population {2) Cupita
17,450,181 $ 806,737,396 2.2% 22 881 763
19,928 951 819,977.512 2.4% 22,697 878
17,907,721 838,436,018 2.1%: 22,697 789
17,436,203 921,894 838 1.9% 22,697 768
15,050,795 914,556,777 1.6% 22,697 663
13,065,386 935,583,731 |.4% 22,697 576
14014431 969,948 931 1.4% 22,697 617
12,015,575 1,063.5363,913 . 5% 22,697 529
15,049,323 1.076.41 1,985 L.4% 22,697 663
12.808,713 1,136,242 (03 L. F50 22,697 564

Note - Delails regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financiat statements,

Sources:

1. Muscatine County Auditor's Office

2. United States Census Bureau
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Schedule 12
City of Muscatine, lowa

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2009
{Unaudited)
Estimated Estimated Share
Percent of Direct and
Debt Applicable Overlapping
Governmental Unit QOutstanding to City (1) Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
Louisa-Muscatine
School District % 805,000 11.96% $ 96,278
Muscatine County 2,989,000 48.34% 1,444,883
Eastern lowa Community College (EICC) 1,205,000 6.77% 81,579
Other debt
Eastern Jowa Community College (EICC} 43,685,000 6.77% 2,957,475
Subtotal, overlapping debt $ 4,580,215
City direct debt (2) 100.00% 11,369,498
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 15949713

1. The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using tuxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the other governmental unit's taxable
assessed value that is within the City of Muscatine's boundaries and dividing it by each governmental
unit's total taxable value. These estimates were used for both debt to be repaid with property taxes as
well as debt for the EICC to be repaid from sources other than property tax,

2. Excludes general obligation bonds reported in business-type activities.

Sources:
Louisa-Muscatine School District
Muscatine County Auditor's Office
Eastern Iowa Community College

Note - Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of
the City of Muscatine. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping
governments that is borne hy the residents and businesses of Muscatine. This process recognizes that,

when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the
residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer

is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.
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Dbt limit ¢ 1)
Total debt applicable w limit
Legal debt margin

Total debt applicable to the lini
as a percentage of debt lirmit

City of Muscatine. lowa
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 13

{Unaudited)
19949/ 200 200041 2001402 2012/03 20034k 2084405 2045/86 2006407 2007108 2008709
$ 40,336,870 £ 40,0998 876 34192180 $ 46,084,742 S 45,727,839 $ 46,775,187 $ 48,497,447 53317829 5 533820589 $ 56,812,100
14,713,000 22.060,000 19.885.000 19,264,653 18,997,039 16,704,249 17,356,273 15.028.097 17,770,000 15,170,000
5 20621870 5 18938876 $ 22.036,801 5 26,831,089 $ 26,730,500 $ 30,074,938 531141174 § 38150199 § 360505399 § 41,642,100
48 BR%: 381 47 43% 41.79% 41.54% 3371% 35.79% 28.26% 33.02% 26,74

Legat Debt Margin Caleulation for Fiscal Year 20082009
Total assessed valuation as of January 1, 2007
Dbt limit - 5% of assessed valuation
Amount of debt applicable to debt limit:
General obligation bonds
Tax increment revenue bonds

Total debt applicable to debu tirnit

fepal debl margin

1. Under state law the City's debt may not excead 5% of the tofal actual valuation of property.

$1.136.242.003

3 56812100

13,055,000

2115060
15, 170,000

§  4led2,10



Schedule 14
City of Muscatine, Jowa
Demographic and Economic Statistics
1,ast Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Personal Percent High
Popula- Personal Per Capita Median School Graduates School Unemploy-
tion Incoine Income Age or Higher Enrollment ment Rate
Fiscal Year (1) {2) 2y (1) (1) (K] (4

19992000 22,881 $ 567,746,253 F 24813 353 74.2% 5,259 28%
20002001 22,697 SEH1621,334 26,022 358 80.3% 5,393 2.7%
200172002 22,6497 616,200,853 27,149 358 80.3% 3,457 3.7%
200242003 22,697 646,228,984 28472 358 8O.3% 5,385 4. 1%
200372004 22,697 658,167,606 28,908 358 B0.3% 5,375 4.2%
2004/2005 22,697 715,857,986 31,538 358 80.3% 5.280 4.5%
20052006 22,697 730,820,703 32,199 35.8 80.3% 5,305 4.2%
200672067 22,697 757,589,012 33,396 358 80.3% 5,387 3.2%
200772008 22,697 821,790,279 36,207 358 20.3% 5,403 35%
20082000 22,697 N/A N/A 358 80.3% 5.247 4,34

Sources:

i. United States Census Bureau

2. Bureau of Economic Analysis. Per capita income for the City of Muscatine is not available. The amounts shown are for
Muscatine Counly and reflect average per capita income for the calendar years which end midway through the fiscal
years shown. Personat income [or the City has been estimated using the per capita income for Muscatine County multiphied
by the City's population. Personal income information is nol yet available for 2008,

3. Muscatine Comtmunity School District

4, lowa Workforce Development. Unemployment rates for the City of Muscaline are not available, The rates shewn ate rates for
Muscating County and reflect average annual unemployment for the calendar years which end midway through the fiscal
years shown.



Emplover

HNI Corporation// The HON Company,
Allsteel

Grain Processing/Kent Feeds

Muscatine Community School
District

Unity #Health Care
(Formerly Muscatine General Hospital}

Monsante Company
Musee Sports Lighting
Wal-Muart Superstore

SECO Investrment Co. ¢ Stantey
Engineering Co.)

Bridgestone Buandag L1.C
tFormerly Bandag, Inc.)

Heinz, 1154,

Muscatine Power & Witier
Hy-Vee Food Store

City of Muscatine
Muscating County

Raymomd-Muscarine, [nc.
{Previpusty BT Prime Muver)

Sonrces:

!. Muscatine Chamber of Commeree & Jndustry provided the 2009 employment figures. The 2000 figures were from City of Muscatine
historical records and may be on a basis which differs from the data provided by the Muscatine Chamber of Commerce & Industry.
2. lowa Workferce Development. Employment data for the City of Muscatine is not available. Enployers listed are the largest in the

City of Muscatine, Iowa
Principal Employers

Carrent Year and Nine Years Ago

Schedute 15

(tinaudited)
2009 2000
Percentage of Percentage of
Approximate Estimated Approximate Estirnated
Number of Total County Numlbver of Totnd County

Employees (1) Rank Employment (2) Limployees {1) Rank Employment {2)
3,200 1 13.5% 3,500 i 15.1%
{011 2 4.3% 1,800 2 7.8%
900 i 38% (025 4 4.4%
515 4 2.2 520 7 2.3
400 5 17% alo 5 22%
A(¥) 6 L% 13 14 05%

350 7 |.5%: N/A
335 8 1.4% 250 13! L%
3K 9 1.3% 700 3 3.0
319 10 b3% 515 6 22%
300 11 1.3% 260 1) L%
289 12 1.2% 280 8 }.2%
223 13 0.9% 230 12 1.0
195 14 0.8% 240 13 L%
151 15 0.6% 270 9 1.2%
8 848 37.5% 10,215 44 1%

imimediate area of the City of Muscatine. Percentages shown are based on totd employment in Muscatine County. The average
menthly employment in Muscatine County was 23,712 in 2009 and 23,106 in 199G,
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City of Muscatine, Iows
Full-Time Equivalent Employees by Function
{Exclndes Seasonal Employees)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 16

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
Function 1998/99 199972000 2001702 2002403 2003/04 2004105 2005/06 2006407 2007/08 2068/09
General government. 17.46 18.69 18.94 18.54 17.12 16.80 17.50 17.85 17.35 17.35
Public Safery:
Police
Officers (1) 40.00 46.00 .00 38.00 37.00 3775 38.00 3800 38.00 39.00
Civilians (2} 4.50 11.00 13,30 13.50 13.50 4.87 3.60 375 3.8% 3.88
Fire
Firefighters and officers (3) 32.00 32.00 31.50 30.50 29.50 28.50 29.00 29.50 36.00 36.00
Civilians .50 0.30 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 (.50 (.50
Culture and recreation
Library 15.00 16.00 16.00 1600 15.58 15.75 15.75 1575 15.75 15.75
Art center 425 4.33 4.60 4.55 4.30 443 4.33 4.33 4.33 434
Parks and recreation (4) 14.75 15.00 15.25 13,75 13.75 13.25 12.82 13.00 12.75 12.75
Clommunity and economic
development (5} 5.0 9.00 9.00 Q.00 9.0 7.00 7.00 7.00 6.50 6.50
Public works (6) 2075 20175 20175 73 16,75 16.75 16,75 16.74 16.84 16.50
Business-lype:
Parking 3.50 350 3.50 350 3.65 3.65 3.65 360 3.60 310
Golf course (7} 2.25 2.75 3.00 300 3.00 3.00 275 2.00 3.00 3.00
Boat harbar 0.2% 025 025 .25 025 0.25 .25 025 0.25 023
Transit 2.35 2.60 2.62 2.83 2.83 283 2,83 283 3.03 303
Refuse collection 9.00 .00 9.00 9.80 9.80 9.80 9.80 5.80 1030 10.30
Landfiil (.83 0.83 (183 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.33 0.33 .33 0.33
Transfer station 31 37 307 347 37 317 367 367 3.67 3.67
Water pollution conaol 26.75 2775 2595 2075 2075 2450 29.50 20,50 2970 31.00
Ambulance (8) - - 6.75 7.75 1.35 875 813 7.75 1.25 1.25
Housing 9.45 9.30 9.30 10,50 10:50 10,50 10.50 10.50 1050 1050
Equipment services 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00) 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.0 4.00
Totals (%) 224.76 230.42 24231 24047 232.53 22188 220.78 220.65 221.53 223.00
1. Police officer pesitions fluctuated primarily due to grant funding for special police programs,
2. Police civilian positions were reduced by 9.5 equivalent positions when the City's dispatch center was combined with the Muscatine County dispatch operation in 2004/2005,
3. Firefighter positions were allocated to the Ambulance operation through 2006/2007. This number fluctuated each year. Beginming in 2007/2008 all firefighter positions

are being charged w the Fire Department budget with a portion of the overall persenncl costs allocated to the Ambulance Fund.

oo~ oA

Department budget with & portion of the overall persounel costs allocated to the Ambulance Fund,

9. The overall decline in positions in 2003/2004 and 2004/2005 was due to the decline in revenues to provide General Fund service

Source: City of Muscatine records

- Parks and recreation positions were reduced by 1.5 in 2002/2003 when the City began confracting the operation of the Cemetery office.
- Staffing in the Community Development department was reduced due (o the decline in General Fund revenues.
. Public works staffing was reduced by 3 in the Engineering division beginning in 2003/2004.
- The City changed from a coniractual arrangement with a Golf’ Professional to having a Goll Pro on staff beginning in 2007/2008,

The City began providing ambulance service July 1, 2000 adding 6 equivalent positions. Beginning in 2007/2008 all firefighter positions are being charged to the Fit



911

City of Muscatine, lowa
Operuding Indicutors by Function/Department
Last Ten Calendar or Fiscal Years

Schedule 17

(Unandited)
Calendar Year Indicators
Function/epartment 19499 2000 2041 2002 2003 2004 0= ) 27 2008
Public Safery:
Police
Calts for service 22689 26,425 26,203 26,543 26,555 24,590 21,638 427 21437 20,066
Traffic enforcement. 4,697 5524 4,244 5574 5,335 4,946 4,024 5188 4616 3425
ATTesEs 2,066 2 E50 2,113 1,789 a0 2063 1,971 2,062 2114 2195
Parking Lickes el 1597 1,414 2833 17492 14037 2122 1.852 764 B0 1,721
Fire (imcledes ambulance) (1)
s for service 1,446 2,127 2954 219 3143 EXCA 3.161 2,563 3,530 3,650
Cluelewrs and recreattun:
Purks and recreation
Wil Park Poul/ Aquaric
Cenler attendance (2) 20,084 15.060 17,026 19,152 - 346,576 550948 45,5891 41076 6, et
Adulr program pargicipanes (3 AN 8749 B30 862 075 1i¥)6 272 32 376 408
Children’s program participants 1,338 bB34 1.621 1654 1,333 1355 1698 1,547 1,602 L6Lld
Cemgtery burials £33 108 108 132 126 1 ] 104 oG 7
Community and economic developrent
Building-related permits 1.258 1273 1247 1.277 1150 i.231 1063 Bag 1,193 913
Business-type:
Transit {4)
Total passengers 122,536 134,354 133437 {%ee Nscal year indicarors belows
Golf course
Rounds played 48,085 43,190 41,329 37,666 33,489 32,768 33,195 31825 29,748 326RT
Fisual ¥ewr ledicators
FunctionDepariment 19,2000 AL 200102 2002403 2003104 2004408 Hoi5AM 2006707 207108 ZD0NA0Y
Culture and recreation:
Libwary
Repistered borrowers 20,722 0,187 12.42] 19.774 19,910 20,756 20395 20,315 16.504 16,415
Circulation 257,540 285,425 201,544 306,250 312623 331 445 324,179 33446 332,355 336,210
ATt cenler
Allendance 13,343 16067 16,730 16,633 15,451 17,045 18.088 L5640 22,582 19,704
Public works:
Miles of streels matntatnel 13t 136 136 136 133 133 140 £ T4 140
Busioess-Lyge aciivities:
Transit {4)
Touat prassengers (5S¢ calendar year ndicators aluwe) 141,143 3.7 136,476 136,263 131404 120,352 155,303
Parking
Tickets issued 20,997 15223 20,144 17.708 15,763 T4,764 15.59% 15,764 13,204 2,704
Refuse collecnion
Tons of refuse collecied 2830 B837 8,906 8,393 £,521 5,988 9449 9,482 8,131 8.129
Treansfer sion
Toas of waste processed 61569 63,729 48,797 43,9110 41,435 44,423 41,356 4,583 4,263 41.320
Tons recyeled (commacior) 6.333 6,198 5741 3,571 4,734 4,854 3,72} 6,213 5,830 5388
Water potlution conmed
Cubic Feet of wastewiter
treated (i nuflions) 147.54 13735 13316 192,74 187.47 183,18 173.38 208.26 2GS 25979

Fow b=

w

parking tickets lssued decreased significanely wid tus change.

Sowce: City of Muscatine records

The fire deparrment began providing ambulance service effective July 1, 2000,
The former Weed Park Pool did not open for the 2003 season due 1o mechamical problerns. The Adquatic Center repiaced the foriner pool and opened Tor te 2064 season.
The deciine in adult program partiipants i 2005 s due to the City oo longer organizing te adub softball laague. A privare organizarion oow coordurues this lesgue.
The Trangir system reporied calemlar year indicators thrawgh 2001, lodicaters thereafier are being maimtained on a fiscal year bas

In 2HA2NS. parking was reconfigured in e downtown area. Parking meters wene removed from Second Sireer and free 3-hour parking was estabhished. The number of
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Function/

Public Safety:
Police
Stations
Patrol vehicles
Fire
Fire stations
Aecrial tower
Fire pamnpets
Hazmat vehicle
Ambulances
Cultare and recreation:
Library
Art center and musenm
Parks and recreation:
Parks
Park acreage
Swinming pools
Softball and baseball diamonds
Soccer fields
Tenms courts
Cemeteries
Cemetery acreage
Puhlic works:
Miles of sireels
Business-{ype activities
Transit:
Buses
Golf course
Alrport:
Alrport
Primary runway lenggh (in feet)
Solid waste:
Transfer statian/recycling center
Retuse collection vehicles
Water pollution conmol:
Flants
Daily capacity {in gallons)

Source: Cily of Muscatme records

City of Muscatine. fowa
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Departiment
Last Ten Fiscal Y ears

Schedule 18

iUnaudited)

1999/ 20NN} 2000401 26001/02 2002403 2003/64 200405 2506 2006407 2007708 2008408
1 i 1 1 | 1 1 1 1
g 9 9 2 9 g 9 g 9
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
1 3 1 1 ] 1 1 1 H 1
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4
1 1 1 i 1 1 l 1 i 1
- 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4
1 1 1 1 1
1 ] 1 1 1
18 18 18 i8 18 14 14 14 i4 14
258 258 258 258 258 246 254 254 254 254
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
22 22 21 20 19 19 19 14 19 14
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
11 1} 10 10 10 8 8 g 8 8
1 1 1 l 1 1 i 1 1 l
150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150
136 136 136 136 138 139 140 140 140 140
H) 1o 10 10 10 10 i0 10 10 10
] i 1 1 1 i H 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 l 1 3 1
5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5.500 5500 3.500
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 i 1
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
i 1 1 l 1 1 i 3 1 1
13 million 15 million 15 million 15 million 15 million 13 mallion 15 million 15 million 15 mltion 15 million



McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report on internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Muscatine, lowa

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Muscatine, lowa as of and for the year snded June 30, 2009 which collectively comprise the City of Muscatine,
lowa’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 19, 2009, Cur report was
modified to include a reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepled in the United States of America and the standards applicable in financial audits contained in
Government Audifing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the
financial statements of Muscatine Power and Water, a discretely presented component unit, as described in our
report on the City of Muscaline, lowa's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other
auditors' testing of intemal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on
separately by thoss auditors.

Intarnal Contrel Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considersd the City of Muscatine, lowa's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Muscatine, lowa's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cily of
Muscatine, lowa's internal controf over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal contro! over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and would not necessarily identify al! deficiencies in internal controf over financial reporting that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in
internat controf over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a controt does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstaterments on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's
abitity to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principtes such that thera is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements that is more than inconsequential, will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. We
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying scheduls of findings and questioned costs to be significant
deficiencies in internal confrot over financial reporting: 09-1I-A and 09-1-B.

WMeGladrey % Publen, LEP 15 & member firm of ESM Infernational -
an atfiliation of separate and independent legat entdies.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a
remole likefihood that a material misstaterent of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the
entity's internat control,

Qur consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the intemnal control that might be
significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also
considered to be material weaknesses, Howevar, we believe that none of the significant dsficiencies described above
is a materfal weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Muscatine, lowa's financial statements are freo
of material misstatement, we performed fests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agresments, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financiat statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compfiance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Howsver, we noted immaterial instances of noncompliance that are described in Part IV of the schedule of findings
and qusstionad costs.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City of Muscatine, lowa's operations for the year
ended June 30, 2009 are based exclusively on knowledgs cbtained from procedures performed during our audit of
the basic financial statements of the City of Muscatine, lowa. Since our audit was based on tests and samptes, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments involving
statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretation of those statues,

The City of Muscatine, lowa's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedute of findings and questioned costs. We did not audtt the City of Muscatine, lowa's response and, accordingly,
We exXpress no opinion on it.

We noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance and other matters that we have reported to management of
the City of Muscatine, lowa in a separate tetter dated November 19, 2009.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Mayor and City Council, others within
the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than those spegified patties.
/?c% / //oé&,(_/ P

Davenport, lowa
MNovember 18, 2009
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Pubtic Accountants

independent Auditor's Report on Compliance With Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Muscating, lowa

Scope of this Report

The City of Muscatine, fowa's basic financial statements include the financial statements of Muscatine Power and
Water, adiscretely presented component unit, which was audited by other auditors. We did not audit Muscatine
Power and Water for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, and accordingly,
this report does not extend to Muscatine Power and Water, a discretely presented component unit.

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Muscatine, lowa with the types of compliance requirements described
in the U. 3. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that are applicable to
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. The City of Muscatine, lowa's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedute of Findings and
Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of
its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Muscatine, lowa's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City of Muscating, lowa's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generatly accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OM# Circular A-133, Audits of Stales, Local Governments, and
Nonproiit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about the City of Muscatine, lowa's compliance with those reguirements and performing
such other procedures as we considsred necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City of Muscatine, lowa's
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Muscatine, lowa complied, in alt material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to sach of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009.

MoGlackey & Pullen, LLP is a membwer firm of RSM Internationat -
an affihation of separate and indepandent legal antiies.
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Internat Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Muscatine, fowa is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control aver compliance with requirements of laws, regutations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Muscatine, lowa's internal control over compliance
with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance but, not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effeciveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Cily of Muscatine, lowa's internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internat control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employess, in the normal coursa of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a controt deficiency, or combination of control deficiencles, that adverssly affacts the entity's ability to
administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likefihood that noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by
the entity's internai controt.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in mors than a
remots likelihood that materiat noncomptiance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented or detected by any entity’s internal controf.

Our consideration of infernat control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of

this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies
or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal cantrof over compliance that we consider to

be material weaknesses, as defined above,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Mayor and City Council, others within
the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be ussd by

anyone other than those specified parties.
//42&%&7 / /xoé&.(_/ l 2P

Davenport, lowa
Movember 19, 2009
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Expenditures of Faderal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Pass-Through

CFDA Grantor's
Federat Grantor/Pass- Through GrantoriProgram Title Number Identifying Number Expenditures
LS. Departmant of Housing and Urban Development
Direct:
Section 8 Housing Choice Youchers 14911 tAD49VO0088/10077 $ 1,391,749
Section 8 Housing Chaice Vouchars 14 871 IAQ4SAF0024/0034 177727
Pubtic and Indian Housing Operating Subsidy 14.850 |AD4G00000408D1080 173,583
Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 1A05PG4950108 202,533
ARRA - Public Housing Capital Stmulus 14885 |1AGS5040950409 23,448
Passed through the lowa Department of Economic Development,
Community Development Block Grant State's Program 14228 06-HSG-037 1,037
Subtotal 1,972 087
.S, Department of Transportation
Passed through lowa Department of Transportation:
Formuta Grants for Other than Urbanized Areas 20.509 18-0028-533-08 236,788
Job AccessiReverse Commute Grant 20516 37-X011-533-06 7739
Job AccessfReverse Commute Grant 20516 IV-X016-533-08 28,630
New Freedoms Program 20521 57-X002-533-07 1273
New Freedoms Program 20521 57-4002-33309 4,259
Training Feliowship 20509 TF 2009-074 305
Training F ellowship 20,509 TF 2009-075 68
Training Fellowship 20.509 TF 2009-022 844
Training Feliowship 20509 TF 2009-129 233
Training Fellowship 20,509 TF 2009-234 171
Training Fellowship 20.509 TF 2009-235 160
Training Fellowship 20509 TF 2009-238 357
Passed through lowa Department of Public Safety:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PAP 08-04, Task 21 806
State and Commumity Highway Safety 20 600 PAP 09-04, Task 21 57384
Subtotal 207 117
Federal Aviation Administration
Direct:
Paralle! Taxiway for Runway 12/30 20.108 AP 3-19-0063-13-2007 997 005
Snow Removal Equipment 20.108 AlP 3-19-0063-14-2008 112,277
Subtotal 1.109,283
{Continued)
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Pasgs-Through

CFDA Granfor's
Federat GrantoriPass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number identifying Number Expenditures
Department of Juatica
Direct.
Edwerd Byme Justice Assistance Grant (Byrme/JAG) Program 16.738 2007-DJ-BX-0016 441
Bultetpreof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 NIA 1,570
Passed through lowa Governor's Office of Drug Control Policy,
Stop Viclence Against Women Grant 16.588 ViW-09-488 8.053
Passed through lowa Governor's Alfiance on Substance Abuse and
Muscatine County Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.738 08-JAGIC06-A11 48,821
Subtotat 58,885
Office of National Drug Contro! Policy
Passed through lowa Department of Pubtic Safety:
High Intensity Orug Trefficking Arce Grant 07 None IBPMWPS56 31,604
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area Grant 07 None GOIMWOD02A 43,907
Subtotal 75511
Environmental Protection Agency
Direct:
Brownfields Assessrment and Cleanup Cooperative 66.818 BF$8735801 11,740
Agreements 86.618 BFY8795904 1,73
Passed through lowa Finance Autherity,
State Revolving Refund Loan 66.458 GS5-192377-01 482,203
Subtotal 515693
Department of Homeland Security
Passed through Scoft County, lowa:
Law Enforcement Terrarism Prevention Program 97.074 FFY2007-LETPP-LEING-06 87,139
Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention Program 97 074 FFY2006-LETPP-LEING-81 5 494
Passed through iowa Department of Public Defense,
Homeland Security and Emergency Management Division 97.036 138-55110-00 503,886
Direct, Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program 87.044 EMW-2007-FP-01423 3550
Subtotat 700,068
Totals 4718 646

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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City of Muscatine, fowa

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying scheduls of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City of
Muscatine, lowa (the City) and Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency, its discretely presented component unit and is
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. All federal financiat assistance received directly from federal
agencies, as welt as federal financial assistance passed through other governmentat agencies expended during the
year, is included in the schedute. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States and Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations. Thersfore, some
amounts presented in the schedule may differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the basic
financial statements,

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue from federal awards is recognized when the City has done everything necessary o establish its right to
revenus and the revenus met the available criteria. Expenditures of federal awards are recognized in the accounting
psriod when the liability is incurred and approved for reimbursement.
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Summary Schedute of Prior Audit Findings
Yeat Ended June 30, 2008

Number Comment

Status

Corrective Action or
Other Explanation

None
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Endaed June 30, 2009

Summary of the Independant Auditor's Results
Financiat Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified

internal control over financial reporting:

o Material weakness{es) identified?

o Significant deficiency(ies} identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?
« Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

internal control over major programs:
*  Material weakness{es}) identified?
* Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
*  Any audit findings disciosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
Section 510(a) of Circular A-1337

{dentification of major program:
CFDA Number Name of Federat Program or Cluster
14872 Public Housing Capital Fund
14885 ARRA - Public Housing Capitat Stimulus
2{.108 Paralle} Taxiway for Runway 12/30
66.458 State Revolving Refund Loan
97 036 Homelang Security and Emergency Management Division

Doifar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs. $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

(Continued)
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended Juneg 30, 2009

i, Findings Related to the Financial Statement Audit as Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards

A Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control
09-1I-A

Finding: The City has an improper segregation of duties over the ambulance billing and cash
receipts cycle,

Context: Related to ambulance billing collections cycle,

Condition: The Fire Office Coordinator and EMS Coordinator both have the ability to coltect cash,
prepare the deposit slip and remit cash collection information to the third party billing company,
while sequentially numbered receipis are used thers is no independent review of the receipt
sequence.

Effect: Misappropriation of assets could occur and not be detected in a timely manner.

Recommendation: We recommend an independent review of tha receipt sequence, as well as a
comparison between the amounts deposited into the bank and the amount communicated as
collected to the third party billing company by an independent individuat.

City's Respanss and Corrective Acticn Plan: The fire department raviewed the above comments
and made immediate changes in their processes to address this concern. As of July 1, 2009 the
Fire Chief has filled the rols of independent reviewer, The Fire Chief now has a spreadshest that
tracks and compares the monthly deposits from the third party billing company with the fire
department secretary’s deposits to verify they correspond. At least annually, this spreadsheet will
be submitted to the finance department to verify the comparisons are accurate and that they were
performed by an independent individual. The finance department reviews and logs the sequence of
receipt numbers issued by the fire department.

09-1-B
Finding: The City has an improper segregation of duties of the building permits cash receipts cycle.
Context: Related to cash recelpts transactions in the building and zoning department.

Condition: The planning and zoning office coordinator has the ability to collect cash, issue permits
and balance the cash receipts to the cash register repont,

Effect: Misappropriation of assets could occur and not be detected in a timely manner.,

Recommendation: We recommend an independent review of the cash collections to the sequential
listing of permits issued be performed on a periodic basis.

City's Response and Corrective Action Plan: Finance staff will periodically obtain the logs of the
various permits issued by the building and zoning department and account for all parmit numbers
issued and also compare permit revenues per the log to the amounts in the revenue ledger.

{Continued)
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Endad June 39, 2004

n.

8. Instances of Noncompliance
Mone

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

A Significant Deficiency in Administering Fedaeral Awards
hons

B. Instances of Noncompliance
None

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

09-IV-A - Certified Budget Expendituresfexpsnses during the year ended June 30, 2009 did not exceed
amount budgsted prior to budgst being amanded or at year-end.

09-V-B - Questionabie Expenditures: No questichable disbursemnents were noted.

09-IV-C = Travel Expense: Mo expenditures of City monay for travel expenses of spousss of City officials
or employees were noted.

09-V-D ~ Business Transactions: Business transactions between the City and City officials or empioyees
are detailed as follows:

Mame, Tile and Business Connection Transaction Description Amount

Vonda Ludke, part-time housing office coordinator, Temporary employment services 96,018
husband owns Spectrum Personnel, Ltd.

Andy Kral, equipment operator, wife is part owner of Supglies 14,296
Wilson True Value Hardware

In accordance with Chapter 362.5(10) of the Code of lowa, the transactions with the Spectrum Personnei,
Ltd. does not appear to represent a conflict of interest since it was entered into through compelitive
bidding in accordance with Chapter 362.5{4) of the Code of lowa.

Finding: The transactions with Wilson True Value Hardware may represent a conflict of interest since they
were not entered into through competitive bidding.

Recommendation: We recommend the City consider the relationship as it relates to Chapter 362.5{10} of
the Code of lowa.

{Continued)
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Raspense and Corrective Action Plan: Wilson True Value Hardware had been a City vendor for at least 25
years prior to the hiring of the spouse of one of the owners in 2006. This employes is in a nondecision
making, nonpurchasing related pasition. City Counci approved by motion to continue doing business with
this vendor as long as the responsibilities of this employee continue to be unrelated to purchasing and
also that the volume of business with this vendor be monitored so that it does not increase significantly (no
more than 10 percent) from the fevel prior to the hiring of this employee.

Conglusion: Respanse acceptad,

08-IV-E - Bond Coverage: Surety bond coverage of City officials and smployees is in accordance with
statutory provisions.

09-1V-F = Council Minutes: Mo transactions were found that we belisve should have been approved in the
Coungil minutes but were not.

09-V-G - Deposits and Investments: Mo instances of noncompliance with the deposit and investment
provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Ceds of fowa and the City's investment policy were noted.

08-1V-H - Revenue Notes: No instances of nencompliance with the provisions of the City’s revenua bond
resolutions.
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Current Anticipated Date of
Number Comment Corrective Acticn Plan Completicn Contact Person

Significant Deficiencies in Internal Gontrol

09-1-A The City has an improper segregation See response and corective June 30, 2010 Nancy Lueck,
of duties over the ambulance biling action pian at 09-11-A, Finance Director
and cash receipts cycle,

03-i-B The City has an improper segregation See respense and cormective June 30, 2010 Nangy Lueck,
of duties over the building permits action plan at 08-1-B. Finance Director

cash receipts cycle.

Cther Findings Related to Required Statutory Raporting

08-vD The City has business ransactions with  See response and comective June 34, 2010 Nancy Lueck,
arelated parly that due to the nature of  action plan at 08-Iv-D. Finance Director
the purchase are not formally bid.
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